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Background Paper
In 1988, California will enter the "!~formation age." Before
the year is out, dramatic new commercial information services
(IS) will regularly bring information, products, and advanced
communications services to California's consumers and businesses
via telephone and cable networks. Some IS have been available to
Californians for several years (as this Committee learned at its
1986 hearing on "Electronic Commerce"). Many IS, however, are
newcomers to the state and their impact could be significant.
IS have great potential for affecting the way we live in
California. Though they have public-service characteristics,
they are not utilities per ~ and are not regulated by the Public
Utilities Commission (PUC). It remains to the Legislature to
learn more about information services and define policies that
respond to their impact on California's way of life.

Still, while the IS are not utilities, most are dependent on
the telephone companies for the transmission of information
between them and their consumers. (A few use cable TV networks
for their transmission.) Decisions made by the PUC regarding the
cost of telephone service may dramatically affect the
availability of IS in California. Whether the telephone
utilities may themselves offer IS, or simply transport
information for other IS providers, is a major controversy now
being fought out in the federal courts and before the Federal
Communications Commission (FCC) and the PUC.
Regulatory issues, however, may not be the most crucial
topics for legislative concern. The actual working of IS systems
may have broad social consequences. For example, they can alter
the way children are educated: more learning can take place in
the home, and a higher quality of learning can take place in the
classroom. IS can facilitate public awareness of and
participation in civic affairs. And workers can become more
proficient at knowledge-based production.
On the other hand, the widespread sharing of information via
IS raises key problems: the maintenance of personal privacy when
individuals are more easily accessible to third parties,
commodity marketing of information about consumers (possibly
leading to antisocial segregation), and the disadvantages faced
by those without equitable access to IS.
The Legislature can benefit from a familiarity with these
issues. Today, about 30,000-50,000 Californians actively use
consumer IS. Next year, that number may double1 in five years,
it could increase a hundredfold. At that point, everyone in the
state will be using IS in one way or another, possibly with as
much ease as we use the telephone today.
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Information Services Defined
There are several varieties of IS that could be delivered via
the public telecommunications network. Most experts speak of
three categories of service when they speak about IS:
• Voice Services: Increasingly familiar to telephone users,
these services include answering services, voice-mail, and
enhanced operator and directory services ("talking yellow
pages").
• Data Services: Often used by libraries and office
professionals, but increasingly available to consumers,
these services include commercial databases, electronic
mail, videotex (visual data presentations), and interactive
commercial services (like home-banking and home-shopping).
• Integrated Services: The new wave of IS, these services -still in the prototype stage -- combine voice, data, and
video services in a complete communications package capable
of delivering information in a multimedia presentation.
IS Today and Tomorrow. Currently, at least two million
Americans (and probably more) are regular IS customers. Most use
IS (particularly voice and data services) in the workplace.
Another half-million are avocational IS users who make use of
large commercial IS systems, like CompuServe (RockNet, testifying
today, is a CompuServe service); smaller, special-interest
systems, like Usenet (a global cooperative of computer
researchers) , PeaceHet, and EcoHet (testifying today) ; and small
low-cost or no-cost local computer bulletin boards (BBS's).
California's heavy concentration of computer professionals and
recreationists makes it hospitable to these services: about 20
percent of all IS customers reside in this state.
This makes California a good place to introduce IS, and 1988
will bring a proliferation of indigenous and national IS products
to the market. Among the new entrants is Trintex, a company
owned by IBM and Sears (CBS dropped out of the project last
3

year), which reputedly has spent $450 million to develop its
videotex product, Prodigy. Prodigy will be introduced in San
Francisco later this year.
So far, the audio IS have proven most successful in the
marketplace, perhaps because they require users only to have the
same behavioral skills that are required to use the telephone.
Amvox, testifying today, is an audio IS.) Data services are
invaluable to information professionals (particularly librarians
and researchers) , but their costs are high and they demand a
certain sophistication on the part of their subscribers. Data
services using the videotex presentation format -- numeric
"menu's" with crude graphics --have been tried by newspaper
publishers and AT&T itself, but with little commercial success.
Integrated IS are still on the drawing board, although ICS, Inc.,
a research consortium comprising utilities, newspapers, and
entertainment firms recently demonstrated the "TransText
Universal Gateway," or TUG, before a congressional committee.
One of the problems faced by vendors of nonvoice IS is the
limited audience which they can immediately serve. Established
commercial IS, like The WELL and FREENET (testifying today) and
the Trintex service soon to be tested in San Francisco, can reach
only those persons who have a personal computer, a modem, and a
telephone line at their disposal.
(One exception is X-Press
Information Services, testifying today, which makes its data
available to subscribers of cable television service.) This
limits the population of customers to perhaps five percent (or
fewer) of all Americans. The percentage may be higher in
California, but not much higher. As a result, most nonvoice IS
vendors aim their services at businesses and governmental
agencies, where computers are common and information is an
essential factor of production. Business IS are extremely
expensive, some costing an almost unbelievable $300 per hour of
access.
4

In France, the Teletel service run by the French
Telecommunications Authority now allows over 6,000 IS vendors to
reach more than 3 million subscribers. There, the national
telephone company provides simple terminals in place of
conventional telephone directories to anyone who wants one.
Initially these terminals were given away free; today they are
rented to the subscriber for a very small monthly fee. The
telephone company recoups the cost of these terminals from the
revenues it shares with IS vendors. IJast year, Teletel netted
over $600 million, of which the telephone company kept $200
million. The IS vendors, all of whom are registered publishers
(registration is a simple process), split the rest of the
revenues depending on their use.
Federal Regulation and the Telephone Companies. The seven
Regional Bell Operating Companies (RBOC's) (including the Pacific
Telesis Group, located in California) cite the French experience
as an argument for their involvement in the domestic provision of
IS. Currently, the Modified Final Judgment (MFJ) that resulted
from the AT&T breakup prohibits the RBOC's from getting into the
information business.
(It also prohibits their involvement in
long-distance and equipment manufacturing activities.) In
comments to U.S. District Court Judge Harold Greene, who presides
over the MFJ, the RBOC's have maintained that only they have the
resources to replicate and improve upon the French experience.
But their entry to this market is opposed by the American
Newspaper Publishers Association (ANPA) and a broad assortment of
data-processing firms and associations.
In September 1987, Judge Greene issued a decision allowing
the RBOC's to provide "gateways" to other IS vendors, but
continuing the prohibition on the RBOC's directly offering IS
(including so-called "electronic Yellow Pages"). What a gateway
may entail, beyond necessary transmission fa~ilities, is hotly
5
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contested. The RBOC's believe that the gateway should provide
the end user with a flexible and highly informative "interface"
(mode of presentation).
(They also believe they should be able
to offer data storage, essential to the provision of electronic
Yellow Pages and voice-mail service.) ANPA and the other
opponents of RBOC entry into IS believe the gateway should be
narrowly defined as transmission, a directory, and little else.
Data storage, they believe, should not be among the RBOC's
service offerings since it would enable the RBOC's to
discriminate between their subsidiaries and other IS vendors.

-

In November 1987, Judge Greene issued another decision
absolutely prohibiting RBOC participation in research and
development, including R & D that might be used to design IS.
Several RBOC's cancelled their research undertakings. Ameritech
and US West, two of the RBOC's, are defying the judge's order and
continuing their research plans, in the expectation that their
appeal of this decision (in which all of the RBOC's have joined)
will be successful. If it is not, Ameritech and US West will
have to abandon their research activities, at considerable cost.
Judge Greene's decisions, taken together, create great legal
uncertainties for the RBOC's regarding their ability to offer IS.
Violating the judge's orders would put them in contempt of the
court. The RBOC's resulting caution has opened new opportunities
for other providers of IS. Some are working independently to
develop new services; others are working (at arm's length) with
the RBOC's, using the RBOC's existing facilities to test various
IS configurations. U.S. Videotel, testifying today, is using
telephone lines to distribute information to its subscribers, who
it is equipping with an enhanced version of the French "minitel"
terminal. Guinness Videophone, also testifying, plans to
distribute video information via the telephone network. GTEL, a
subsidiary of GTE California, is testing public-access videotex
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kiosks in San Francisco1 soon, it or the GTE Service Corporation,
the parent of GTE, may do test IS over fiber-optic networks in
GTE's service areas.

•

The FCC and the PUC are conducting proceedings in parallel
with Judge Greene's triennial review of the MFJ. The FCC wants
the telephone companies to provide "comparably efficient
interconnection" (CEI) for all parties who want to distribute IS
via telephone lines. That is, it wants the telco's to ensure
that other IS vendors will have the same access to the public
telecommunications network as do the telephone companies
themselves. Toward this end, the FCC is requiring the telephone
companies to prepare "open network architecture" (ONA) plans that
specify how other parties can hook up to the telephone compa.ny
networks. These reports are due now. IS vendors are waiting
expectantly for these ONA plans, since they will describe the
"basic service elements" (BSE) -- different types of network
functions -- that the IS vendors may purchase for their own and
their customers' use.
State Regulatory Proceedings. There are several related PUC
proceedings, but the most important is Order Instituting
Investigation No. 87-11-033 (OII 87-11-033). This OII, begun in
November 1987, responds to requests by Pacific Bell and GTE
California for a new "regulatory framework." The OII is
expansive: it considers everything from limited deregulation of
the local telephone companies to opening the local service areas
to competition to abandonment of the general rate case
proceeding. Perhaps most germane to this hearing is the PUC's
examination of the way in which new services will be offered by
the telephone companies and their potential competitors. The orr
is still in its formative stages, so it is uncertain how the PUC
will undertake this examination. But the PUC intends to complete
the proceeding by early 1989, so its effects on the IS industry
will be felt in short order.
7

Even if the FCC and PUC determine that IS are properly
unregulated, the manner in which the telephone companies are
regulated will have a dramatic impact on the availability of IS
in California. If underlying telephone services essential to IS
are priced strictly according to.what the market will bear, it
could raise the price of IS out of the range of most
Californians. The regulatory agencies will have to consider the
shape they want the IS industry to assume when they decide how to
regulate the telephone companies. Neither the FCC nor the PUC,
in the past, have had to make regulatory decisions with such
precision; it is a novel challenge for both agencies.
IS and Legislative Policy
In 1988, most IS offered in California will reach a narrow
audience of current and potential users. That is because the
existing services are relatively small ones and the new services
are still in a prototype "test stage." But many experts expect
IS users to increase exponentially over the next five years. That
is, California's population of IS users, which now may number
about 30,000, could increase to 3 million by the year 1993. A
breakthrough in the design and implementation of IS could easily
double or triple that 1993 estimate.
So, many current members of the Legislature will be asked to
deal with the effects of these IS. What will these effects be?
There are at least five broad categories.
Possible Effects of IS. First, IS may change the nature of
work. There is a distinct possibility that working at home or in
remote satellite "work centers" will be the preferred way to do
one's work. The commute and the high price of urban dwellings
will encourage many Californians to seriously investigate the
"teleworking" option. The State of California is conducting a
8

teleworking experiment to examine this option for state workers.
AB 458 (Farr, 1987) sets forth several factors for the
experimenters to examine, including the quality of worklife and
the efficacy of management in a teleworking environment.
Teleworking could have unforeseen consequences for the
organization of firms and labor. For example, small businesses
may become more competitive with large firms because IS make
available to them resources formerly available only to large
firms. On the other hand, decentralization could bring large
national firms into direct competition with small local firms,
threatening the latter's survival. On a more mundane level,
zoning laws may have to be changed to accommodate teleworkers
working at home.
Second, IS may change the way people are educated and the way
they learn. The distribution of knowledge via IS, while of great
interest to IS vendors, technologists, and educators, is still a
relatively unstudied process. IS create the distinct possibility
of literally lifelong learning: subscribers to IS could access a
wide variety of databases, share their own knowledge with other
subscribers, and construct new "learning communities" that
contribute to personal and collective empowerment. On the other
hand, the availability of IS could become an excuse for reduced
support of conventional educational institutions. If this were
to happen, particularly if IS themselves are inequitably
distributed, it could lead to unfortunate dispar~ties in terms of
educational opportunity and attainment. AB 385 (Moore, 1987), now
in the Senate, would assist public libraries in obtaining data
communications equipment for their patrons. But this is only a
first step toward ensuring universal access to IS.
Third, with immense amounts of information flowing around
California in increasingly complex patterns, personal privacy
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could be at risk. Already, personal information turns up in
unexpected places. In the future, it could be easily
accumulated, processed, and distributed in commercial packages
for various purposes. ACA 36 (Moore, 1987), now in the Assembly
Elections Committee, would provide basic constitutional
protections for personal information stored in databases
but
there is no prohibition, today, against the private use of
personal information. SB 255 (Davis, 1987), a tough computer
crime law, can be used against those who illegally invade or
manipulate a database, but it cannot prevent the invasive use of
data that is legally collected. Who "owns" data is a question
that may require legislative attention.
Fourth, IS may affect the state's economy. New information
practices may be developed by entrepreneurs for sale in
California and elsewhere. The French Teletel experiment has
resulted in numerous businesses being set up to exploit the
commercial potential of the technology. The IS sector may
witness significant economic growth and create opportunities for
traditional industries to improve their bottom lines. On the
other hand, as noted above, IS makes the state's domestic economy
permeable to products and services marketed from other states or
even other nations.
Fifth, IS may lead to more vibrant civic activity -- or, in a
darker vision, they may generate cybernetic "loops" that may
strengthen the repressive control exercised by public and private
bureaucracies. Using IS, citizens may be able to learn about
governance firsthand, through close communication with their
elected representatives and appointed officials. They would then
be better equipped to share their opinions with their
representatives to formulate mutually agreed-upon goals.
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(Over 1,000 citizens from around the state have "logged on"
to The "Capitol Connection," a prototype interactive computer
bulletin board system [BBS] operated by the Utilities and
Commerce Committee. This system allows them to learn about bills
and matters pending before the Committee and the PUC, participate
in discussions of issues before the Committee, and suggest ways
the laws can be changed to meet local and statewide needs. The
Capitol Connection is a working model of a larger,
Legislature-wide system. If fully developed, a larger system
could serve every committee in both houses and greatly enhance
communications between legislators and citizens.)
A less enlightened approach to IS, however, could make it
easier for government to surveil individuals and force them to
conform to procedures electronically foisted upon them by public
bureaucrats and private managers.
Congress's Approach. Congress, in order to identify and
understand these issues at the national level, in 1986 directed
the Office of Technology Assessment (OTA) to undertake a
two-year-long study, "Communications Systems for an Information
Age." Although OTA began its work with a mandate to focus on
regulatory issues, it found that it could not constrain the
investigation to these issues alone. OTA's roster of topics for
study has been expanded to include:

11

o Communications and Comparative Advantage in the
Business Arena
o Communications and the Democratic Political Process
o Communication's Role in Producing and Shaping Culture
o Communications and the Individual
o Alternatives for the Communication Infrastructure
o The Decisionmaking Process and Technological Outcomes
o Taking Advantage of New Technologies: A Comparative
Perspective
o The Role of the Federal Government
The OTA study is now at its halfway mark. Concurrent
projects have been initiated by the Congressional Research Office
(Library of Congress) and, in the executive branch, by the
National Telecommunications and Information Administration (in
the U.S. Department of Commerce).
Are New Policy Forums Needed? Though it is likely to be a
testbed for many of the new IS, California is not so well
prepared. Proposals to establish research institutions capable
of helping the Legislature and other policymaking organs
understand IS and their effects have not been successful. The
Governor vetoed AB 808 (Moore, 1986), which would have created a
consolidated Department of Telecommunications and Information
Resource Management. In 1984, the Legislature enacted AB 2368
(Moore, 1985), which called upon the University of California to
study the possibility of creating an Institute for
Telecommunications and Information Policy Research -- a "think
tank" to do long-range research for the Legislature, PUC, and
other agencies. The faculty taskforce organized by the
University reported very favorably on this concept. But today,
except for the work of a few academic researchers scattered
around the state, there is no public scrutiny being given to
IS-associated phenomena in California.
In 1987, Pacific Bell sponsored the work of the Intelligent
Network Task Force. This body, composed of distinguished members
from the academic and social action communities, produced an
12

informative report describing the possible forms that might be
taken by California's future "informationsociety." It prescribed
certain policies that the Legislature, the PUC, and other
policymakers might take to ensure positive outcomes from the
emergence of IS. But the report was focused most intensively on
the role of the telephone companies in supporting the development
of an information society. It necessarily left unanswered many
questions surrounding the operations of IS.
Conclusion
The Legislature may wish to more carefully examine the issues
raised in today's hearing and the full range of policy options
inherent in the appearance of IS. If so, it may need to create
new institutions to assist it in better understanding and
preparing for California's imminent "information age."

Robert Jacobson
Consultant

January 25, 1988
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Questions of Interest to the Committee
1. What are the most significant features of information
services (IS) that make them different from, and/or similar to,
conventional communications media? On what scale will they be
introduced in California, by whom? What will be their most
important impacts on life in California?
2. Are IS best characterized as public services or commodity
products, or do they share characteristics of both? Are there
other services provided to the public, as consumers or utility
customers, with which they share common characteristics?
3. Is it essential that all Californians have access to all
or some IS? What principles and practical considerations
underlie this conclusion? Should IS be available based strictly
on consumer preference and ability to buy, on a universal basis,
or according to other criteria?
4. What is the proper regulatory regime, if any, for IS? How
should long-distance and local telephone companies be required to
deal with independent IS vendors and their own subsidiaries?
Should IS transmission be considered a utility service or should
it be unregulated? Is there now, or will there be in the future,
competitive transport of IS services?
5. What overarching policies, if any, should the Legislature
consider to deal with the introduction of IS services to
California? What mechanisms and institutions, if any, are
required to help the Legislature formulate and refine these
policies?
(These questions are supplemental to those earlier sent to
invited witnesses. Witnesses may respond to either or both sets
of questions.)
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Informational Hearing
of the
Assembly Committee on Utilities and Commerce
AN "INFORMATION AGE" FOR EVERYONE? TELECOMMUNICATIONS
AND INFORMATION SERVICES IN CALIFORNIA'S FUTURE
State Capitol, Room 447
February 1, 1988
CHAIRWOMAN GWEN MOORE:

The strange assemblage of

machinery on the table before us is testimony to the onset of an
"information age" in California. What this information age
portends for us is still a great unknown:

The information

services that this technology can bring into the home or business
can and will change the way we live.
So far, the term, the "information age," has been used
almost as if it was describing a new Utopia.

There are many

hurdles -- technological, economical, and legal -- before we can
realize the benefits of information services.

And there are

potential hazards in their use, particularly when we talk about
equiable access to information.

How can we ensure that all

Californians, and not just those with the greatest resources, can
benefit from the coming of the "information age"?
This is but one of the questions we hope to explore
today.

There may no sure answers, not yet ... but California

should be prepared to have them when the "information age" comes
to call.

We have with us today eight vendors of consumer
information services, of different types, and expert commentators
to set the stage.

So, let us start with an overview.

going to hearing the first four witnesses as a panel.
please come forward?

We are
Would you

Mr. Rheingold, Dr. Barbara O'Conner, Ken

Dowlin and the Honorable Don Vial from the Public Utilities
Commission.
We will start with Howard Rheingold and then hear from
Dr. Barbara O'Connor, then Ken Dowlin and finally, Commissioner
Don Vial.

Commissioner Vial will tie their statements and

concerns together.
MR. HOWARD RHEINGOLD:
me here.

I want to thank you for inviting

I would like to say a few words about what I feel, very

personally, a world invisible to most people.

I'm afraid, in the

policy debates involving all the big players in the
telecommunications game, that it is invisible.
about is what I call "virtual communities."

What I'm talking

There is a piece I

wrote about that in the information packets.
When you hear about information services and the
information age, you get a picture of a stream of information
coming into your home, or a computer that has information that
you look through and get from it.

The kind of community that I'm

talking about there are people at the other end.

The combination

of computers and communication technology has made it possible
for people to create new kinds of communities that are just
beginning to find themselves and thrive.
2

Knowledge of our society is entrusted to universities,
research institutions and the business part of our society. Large
businesses already can benefit from these technologies and are
doing so.
What I mean by communities are people who share
interests.

These may be grade-school teachers, parents, or

people who need to have their car repaired -- the kind of things
we do in our daily lives, not the kind of stuff you think of when
you think of bulletin board systems and computer conferences.
The public image of computer bulletin board systems largely
consists of teenagers who break into other people's computers or
"976" services when, in fact, there are a lot of people out there
who are forging new communities.

They do this because the cost

of connecting your computer to other people's computers by
telephone is low enough.
I know this is all a very complicated issue.

There are

also a lot of political and economic issues, and ahead some
titanic colisions between major players in our society.

However,

this is an opportunity such as we have not seen since the
invention of the printing press.
own kinds of communities.

Ordinary people can find their

To oversimplify, when the price of

connecting your computer to a telephone rises, it becomes
impossible for the little guys to survive.
be lost in these arguments.

3

I don't want that to

I know there are many considerations which have to be
taken into account.

But there are things which now are being

born from the bottom up, which could be very beneficial to our
democracy and citizens.

Today, our technology fragments us.

People feel disconnected from one another because of technology
and the way we lead our lives.

Here is a technology that can

bring people together.
I know this is new to a lot of people.
me to gauge how technicially aware you are.

It is hard for

I created a little

graphic here to put a picture in your minds.
On the agenda is listed my association with the Office
of Technology Assessment.

I want to start there, because what I

have learned from my participation with OTA is very important to
California.

I don't represent the OTA in any way.

adviser to them.

I am an

As I sit here, I am a Californian who is

reporting what I see happening on the federal level, in terms of
communication policymaking.

When I go back to Washington for

their panel meeting next week, I hope to be able to report what
is happening in California.
What the OTA has discovered is that communications
policymaking is very complicated.

It is more complicated than

they thought.

They are very, very good at assessing

technologies.

A lot of the complication has to do with the

regulatory battles being fought.

There are private interests who

are looking at billions and trillions of dollars, and policy
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decisions are very important to them.

If I can grossly

oversimplify, once again, the federal policymaking apparatus is
just too unwieldy and slow moving to put into place coherent
national telecommunications policy before the technology is here.
I fear it will be fought out in the courts.

The interests of

small systems, such as the ones you are going are going see
demonstrated here, may be lost in the shuffle.
The state of California has an opportunity to step into
that policy vacuum.

California is large enough that

telecommunications can be very valuable to this state.

It is

small enough that we don't face the same complexities as national
policymakers.

We have the resources here.

We have the entrepreneurs.

We have the thinkers.

We have the major vendors.

We should

take the lead on a state level and show what can be done.

I

think the federal government will pay a lot of attention, even
follow.
There are a lot of complications in trying to do this.
I would envision, in the best of all possible worlds, that the
state of California should have, if not a department, at least a
panel looking at this at a statewide level, on a short-term
basis, with the mandate to provide recommendations of the kind
that the intelligent network task force provided at Pacific
Bell's request.

We can bring all the competing players together

and say, "This is what a nonpartisan panel feels is best for the
people of California."

How can we do that?
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CHAIRWOMAN MOORE:

Mr. Rheingold, excuse me.

Mr.

Polanco has a question.
ASSEMBLYMAN RICHARD POLANCO:
policy vacuum.

Then you made a statement that this could be of

value to the state of California.
a value?

You indicated there is a

Explain to me how it would be

Be specific as to what you're talking about in terms of

it "being a value."
MR. RHEINGOLD:

I will take one specific which I feel is

important, the computer network known as "Usenet."

This is

something that many people in the Legislature don't even know
about.

It is something that did not happen from the top down.

It happened from the bottom up.

It is a very loose coalition of

computer systems that are used by scientists and academics in
their institutions, in the universities and the major defense
contractors, the high-tech industries.

Each one of these

institutions has a small computer community within which people
exchange ideas.

They talk about technical issues and distribute

knowledge to each other.

They are connected to one another,

because their computers can talk to one another via the telephone
system in this state.

Each computer or institution pays for its

own share of the telephone bill.
Probably every major university in California is
connected with it;

certainly, every major high-tech firm.

Now that you don't have to have a $100,000 computer to
connect with it, the price of connecting to Usenet has dropped.
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We can open the technology structure to elementary schools:
people who did not previously have a connection with the people
who have the knowledge in this state.
abstract.

That sounds pretty

What it can mean in practice is that people who have

great ideas, but who may not have educational opportunities, can
find their mentors.

A poor kid in an impoverished school

district, who may never get the training to turn himself or
herself into a top-notch mathmetician or biologist or whatever,
access this network.

If they know what they're talking about,

they would have access to the top minds in that field.
Ultimately, it could reclaim the minds of people who might be
lost to us because they don't have access to knowledge centers,.
It could mean knowledge is not lost.
A very quick analogy:

In the 19th Century, Gregori

Mendel discovered the law of genetics by playing with peas.
published it in some obscure journal.

He

Biologists for most of the

century did not know that what they were seeking was already in
existence.

Today, somebody at home in their laboratory

workshop may discover an important link in biological research on
cancer or software engineering;
that knowledge is -not going- to be
.
lost.
However, the if the cost of accessing the public network
with your computers rises to the point where individual members
of the network can no longer afford to use it, it is going to
fall apart.
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The federal government did not set up this network.

It

was set up by the people who run the individual computers and who
thought, "Gee, couldn't our computer community talk to one
another?"

It provides the kind of cooperative, distributed

decisionmaking that we would like to see in this democracy.
CHAIRWOMAN MOORE:

I am going to ask each of the members

to hold their questions until each panelist has spoken.

Why

don't we hear from Dr. Barbara O'Connor, the chairman of the
group that developed the "Intelligent Network Report "

(which you

have before you)?
DR. BARBARA O'CONNOR:

I am delighted to be here today.

I will refer to this report.
About two years ago, Pacific Bell, on the advice of
their Consumer Advisory Panel decided, they needed a group of
California citizens who are involved with various political
constituencies to look at "information age" issues.

No one, in

their judgment, was taking a long-term look at what might be
beneficial and how it might be structured to benefit the various
constituencies in California.

They put together a group of

people, whose names you will see listed on the pages 37 and 38 of
this report.

Many of them are familiar to you.

They contacted

us individually and said, "We would like you to look at the these
issues, particularly as they relate to new products and other
phone companies are contemplating offering.

See whether or not

they are of benefit to you or to the constituencies you
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represent.

If they are, tell us how we might measure those new

services that we would offer."
We were all a little skeptical.

As you read the

biographies of the task force members, you will see that we tend
not to be "supporters" of the Pacific Bell.

Assemblywoman Moore

knows: I worked with her very closely on "Calcom," Senator
Alquist's 1985 bill to set up a telecommunications users network
in California, when I was chair of the California Public
Broadcasting Commission.
Bell.

I was not known as a friend of Pacific

I was quite skeptical of them putting this group of people

together.

We insisted that we be allowed to set our own agenda

and our own timeframe, and work at our own pace with our own
speakers and resource people.
first meeting.

They agreed to that.

We had our

Alvin Toffler was the first spokesperson; he

talked about information-rich and information-poor issues as they
relate to the demography of California, what we would have to
confront if we didn't do something about these issues today.
This group tried to actually use the technology, so it
would judge for itself existing services, how many of them were
relevent to its existence.
computers.

We got them up and running on

We put them on Macintosh's, because those were the

most user friendly, and we hooked them up to every known data
service that we could find.
them.

We told them to go ahead and use

They used Compuserve, the Source, Olexis, Nexis,

voicernail, bulletin boards, you name it.
everything.
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They were on

The one person who isn't mentioned here is Richard
Alatorre, who was originally in our group.

When he got elected

to the L.A. City Council, Cheryl, his wife, took his place.
The initial reaction to those services was that they
were interesting.

Many of the ones that Howard was talking

about: the user group services, the bulletin boards, the data
research and library research services that were available.
People found them very interesting, but didn't find a great deal
of relevance to the kinds of constituency that they represented.
These services tended to be elitist.
expensive.
valuable.

They tended to be very

For those with a high degree of education, they were
For me as an university professor, it made my life a

lot easier than having to spend hours and hours in the library.
But for Rita Walters and the kids in the Los Angeles Unified
School District, they were way beyond the reach of what they were
ready to deal with.

So, after the first five or six months of

getting people using the technology, the initial evaluation was
that they were interesting and fun, but not something that
warranted putting a whole lot of effort supporting them on the
public policy level.
We started to bring in people to talk about what future
services might look like.

What were the barriers to a broader

level of service that might be valuable?

You will see the

speaker's list that is on page 39 in the report.

Those are the

people, in order of appearance, who came and talked to the group.
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We took them back to Bellcore, which is the research laboratory
that the Bell Operating Companies run in New Jersey, and showed
them what was online in the research labs.
started to pique some interest:

Those services

the voice recognition services,

the automatic language photo-call services, disabled services
that are on the board, health care monitoring allowing people to
stay in their homes instead of being hospitalized and
institutionalized.

We started to see what could happen if the

subscriber basis were large enough to warrant the capital
investment to develop those services.

That is when the group

started to turn around.
While we found most of the existing services fun, but
not particularly cost-beneficial or necessary to the lives of the
people we were trying to represent in this group, some of the
newer services, we could see, really would make a difference they
warranted some exploration in the area of public policy.

That

drove us to the assumptions that are listed in the beginning of
the report on pages 4 and 5.

The group collectively decided that

we needed to provide information service companies with a
subscriber base large enough to warrant services that would be
relevant to residential users, not just to the large corporate
clients or the more "yuppie" (for one of a better word),
residential customer.
everybody.

We wanted some services that made sense to

Those assumptions drive us to some conclusions:
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(1) The state, Pacific Bell, cable companies, and
everyone should start to broaden the definition of "essential
information services."

We have to head off at the pass the

information-rich and information-poor society that we are
plummeting towards.

We redefined for Pacific Bell's officers a

new definition of universal service.
6 of your report.

You will find that on page

We asked Pacific Bell, the PUC, and the people

at the Legislature to start thinking about universal phone
service as something other than plain old telephone service.
Included in the definition had to be entre-level access to the
new information services for all citizens of California, because
that was the only way we are going to get a large enough
subscriber base to warrant the development of services deemed
essential.
(2)
right.

We also asked that lifeline be afforded that same

Citizens on lifeline have to be able to access the entre

level of services.

We did not define what those would be, other

than that they should at least include Touchtone, because it is
the basic technological entre to that level of service.

We asked

the Legislature and the PUC to look at what would be essential
services.

We recommended to the company that it resolve that

some of those be part of universal service.

On the regulated

side of the company, because that would guarantee the capital
necessary to invest and develop those services.
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We also made 12 recommendations to the Pacific Bell
officers, the Legislature and the California Public Utilities
Commission.

You will see them in the report.

Basically what we did was take a first cut at looking at
the issues other than price.

If you look at the testimony

submitted to Judge Greene on behalf of consumers, over the last
two years, it has dealt solely with price issues.

•

When you ask

the average consumer,"Would you rather pay $9 a month for your
telephone or $12.95?" and there are no services that he or she
deems essential, of course, they are going to say $9.

But when

you start to add services that diminish the cost of their
home/health insurance, their home security service, the kind of
services that are relevant on a day-to-day basis -- and when you
add on top of that, enhancing the access of schools and inner
city residents in Los Angeles or in Sacramento -- those kinds of
services make people look at the issue a little differently.
As you can see, our group is composed of political
guerrilla activists.

It is not a likely group to support

increasing your phone rates.

The quid pro quo was that the

services warranted public policy support and could actually defer
costs that we were paying in other ways.

As chair of the state

Educational Technology Committee (for the third year), I can tell
you, the state-of-the-state in schools is a mess.

We are trying

to infuse technology in school classrooms where there are no
phones and the electrical service doesn't support computers.
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Schools are purchasing noncompatible computers, they can't
deliver software, and they are violating software copyrights.

A

transparent ubiquitious network in California would go a long way
to solving many problems and ensure that we will not become an
information-rich/information-poor society.
CHAIRWOMAN MOORE:

I'm sure there will be a

lot of questions posed to you, Barbara.
you.

We will come back to

Let's hear from Ken Dowlin.
MR. KEN DOWLIN:

Thank you, Madam Chairwoman.

I'm new to California.

I'm new to San Francisco.

have only been here about three months.

I

I am learning very

quickly it is a big city in a big area and a very active state.
But I come with 25 years experience as a director of public
libraries.

I come with almost 25 years of dealing with

information technology.
In the early 1960s, I was involved with computers.
the '70s, I was involved with cable television.

In

At my previous

library, we had a system where more than 4,000 homes connected
directly with the library computer system.

Right now, in San

Francisco, we are redefining what it is we're doing and what we
should be doing in the future.

However, we are making some

assumptions.
I've handed out a statement about the mission of the San
Francisco Public Library.

I think the public libraries can be

key actors as we move into the .. information age."
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The mission of the San Francisco Public Library is to
serve as the focal institution in the city for publicly
subsidized access to information and knowledge.

We currently

meet that mission through our collections, through our
facilities, and through our training professionals.
moving towards a macro-catalog and a network.

We are

The strategic goal

of the library is to meet 90 percent of the public's subsidized
access to information and knowledge through an institutional
setting, and then try to meet the other 10 percent through
network linkages.
The strategy is nothing new, but we need to develop the
collection, the communications, the facilities, the network, the
organization resources management, and at the bottom, technology.
It is the key element right now.
Many electronic information providers assume that the
past is history rather than prologue.

They create systems that

go from now into the future without recognizing the prologues
that came before and the context provided by the records of the
past.

•

Thus, as a major information technology resource center in

San Francisco, we have over 2 million books and hundreds and
thousands of documents; all of those are indexed.

We have a

26-branch library in San Francisco. We are very unique:

we have

a branch library literally in every neighborhood in the city.
On the other hand, as a library (and many libraries do
this), we tend to overlook the community's need for accurate,
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timely, and understandable information focused on the users'
specific problem or concern.

The public library, in San

Francisco particularly, is ready for a paradigon shift.

We will

be shifting from a print-oriented institution developed at the
turn of the century into an information-and-knowledge center and
network.

We have a lot of work to do. There are two major

societal trends that most urban libraries have not recognized.
First, the average person today is better educated than
at the turn of the century.
today than ever before.

There are more information sources

The library needs to provide the context

for that information and knowledge.

But it is very confusing

these days, because our culture is being redefined.
longer defined as a single ethnic group.

We are no

We are redefining our

society in terms of multi-ethnicity, multiple knowledges,
"multiple people" if you will; and no place has the diversity as
great as San Francisco.
The library needs to provide the context for all this
information and knowledge.
Secondly, we need to provide access to information
through location, orgainzation, and delivery vehicles which will
allow individuals to create their own knowledge.
The next page on your chart shows a chart that I
borrowed from Woody Horton.
I am a great fan of his.

He took Meslow's hiearchy of needs,

which I'm sure you're all familiar with, going from the
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biological and physiological needs up to "self-actualization."
(Someday I am going to reach self-actualization.

To me, that is

being the librarian in Tahiti, on the beach).
Horton translated Meslow's hierarchy of needs into a
hierarcy of information needs.

Most libraries have focused their

resources and systems at the top of the scale:

"edifying"

information, "enriching" information, and "enlighting"
information.

We need to move into "helping" information and

"coping" information.
We have a good foundation and excellent tools to do
that, the Dewey Decmal System and the Library Congress
Classification System: those are the most sophisticated filing
systems in the world.

With them, we can file anything.

We have

tools we can bring to the table.
The third major element that the public libraries need
to be involved with is to provide a linkage to information and
knowledge for those people who do not have the education, the
language skills, the money, the technology, the information
seeking skills, or even an awareness of their need for
information.
I would like to make three suggestions to this
Committee:
(1)

We need support for research and development.

The

San Francisco Public Library has been struggling for years just
to keep our head above water:

to get books on the shelves,
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library hours, and so on.
new world here.

It is very difficult.

We have a whole

Let's due a research and development project to

see how we can deliver information directly to the home.
(2)

We need awareness about the potential role of the

public library in this entire scenario.

I have to admit, the

librarians need as much education in this field as the
information providers and the Legislature.
(3)

The encourage public/private partnerships.

If we

can get the library organized so that the information and
knowledge that we have is organized, retrievable, and
deliverable, and we can link through a telecommunications
provider, we can have the best of both worlds.
I thank you for your time this afternoon.

I look

forward to the rest of the presentations.
CHAIRWOMAN MOORE:

Thank you for your presentation.

Commissioner Don Vial?
COMMISSIONER DON VIAL:

I'm happy to be here today.

Obviously, there is no more important subject to discuss than
this subject as it relates to the growth of the modern network.
Of course, that is what the PUC is all about=

dealing with that

growth and dealing with its regulation, to make sure the network
we have is there is integrated and is integrating tour society in
a productive way, providing services on a least-cost basis.
is not easy.
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That

There are many things to discuss about information and
enhancec services, and how those services may be tied into the
network of the future.

I think all of us know, but it needs to

be pointed out again, that how these information and enhance
services are developed and integrated into the basic network is
still very much up in the air.

It is evolving around Judge

Greene's reconsideration of the MFJ, and the role of the
operating companies in providing information and enhanced
services in the future; and the FCC's Computer 3, which is
dealing with the same subject.

They aren't necessarily pulling

in the same direction.
Those of us who must deal with the nitty-gritty issue of
integrate enhanced services and information services with the
network at the state level are in a quandary.

We are keeping

ourselves open to developments, to do the best job possible.
At the outset, there is a lot there to be offered and
integrated with the network in the way of information and
enhanced service.

It is very important to look at the

integration of those services with the network in the context of
the Intelligent Network, Dr. O'Connor's committee's work.

It is

one of the finest pieces of work I have yet seen explaining how
we should look at the network in an evolutionary sense.

We

should not try to lock into any network today's concept of a
basic service.

What we may consider enhanced and information

services today, may very well be the basic services of the
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future.

The way we go about developing the demand for these

information and enhanced services is critically important.
We know there are entrepreneurs out there that are
developing services.
customers.

Many services are already in use by large

Increasingly, we are getting proposals for services

that integrate voice, data, and video.
future.

That is the wave of the

But we have to look view them, not only in terms of what

private marketers can develop, but also in terms of public
responsibility.

Obviously, there are many needs out there.

But

if we rely on private marketers, we are going to see the
emergence of competitive services that are price-e]astic and
competitive.
If we make these services available on the basis of income, we
will have some problems.

As you know, the 20 percent at the

bottom have four percent of society's income.
the top have 46 percent of the income.

The 20 percent at

Many of information and

enhanced services of the future may well be, as Dr. O'Connor
pointed out, very important services for everybody.

For example,

as they relate to the educational field, we have to look at the
demand side:

the role of government in education, the quality of

teaching statewide, and the use of high-technology
telecommunications system to bring that education into the homes
-- elements of an educational policy.

The demands of government

are equally important to the demand that may come from the
private sector.
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That is important to us.

That has to be taken

seriously, because the network must be in the position to capture
all the efficiencies of scale and scope for the public at large.
Those economies of scale and scope must not captured by any one
segment, in the marketing of products.
In conclusion, I want to emphasize the importance of how
these services are integrated into the network, so that you have,
in simple terms, a win-win situation.

New services should be

made available via telecommunications networks on a least-cost
basis to many people as possible.

At the same time, enhancing

the value of the network is very important to the policy that we
develop, not allowing the fragmentation of information and
enhanced services in a way that devalues the network.

The

network itself will continue to be a basic provider of basic
service elements and, likely, a monopoly for a long time to come.
The public, although it is not the owner of investor-owned
utilities, has a big stake in the future of the network, what it
has been in the past and what it might be in the future.

We

should make sure that we capture those economies of scale and
scope for all the people.
You have before you a real challenge in the technology
and the types of services that are availale.

We regulators, of

course, want to work with this Legislature very carefully, to
evolve policies that are compatible with bringing the private
vendor onto the network, those services they can provide best,
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and at the same time, expanding the network where it, itself, may
be a provider.

This is a touchy issue, because Judge Greene said

i t is okay for the network to be "gateway" but not a provider.
What a "gateway" is, for the moment is very much up in
the air.

Nevertheless, it is pretty much a key to how these

loose services are going to be integrated into the network.
CHAIRWOMAN MOORE:

We heard from the PUC last week that

you are going to be looking at that in Phase II of the OII.

You

will also be looking at the regulation of new services in the
second part of the OII.
COMMISSIONER VIAL:
evolving issues.

The OII is an umbrella for these

At the core of that process, it is also a

recognition that technology, while it has exposed some
distortions in the way that we price services (and it necessary
to take another look at how we integrate the marketplace with
social and political values in the pricing of products), it is
very important to recognize economies being introduced into the
local operating companies.

Costs are going down.

That is being

reflected in the the price of utilizing the network.
What we are trying to do is capture those economies as
best we can, to bring prices closer in line with costs.

You have

to remember -- and this is critical to what you're dealing with,
in the telecommunications world

we don't have an handle on

marginal cost pricing, not even as much as we do in electricity.
We are only in the early stages.
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CHAIRWOMAN MOORE:
that.

You know my favorite story about

When one of my staff went to work for the FCC, the FCC

told him that "anything you don't understand about how we're
regulating AT&T, ask AT&T and they will explain it to you."

I

know you don't have an handle on it if you have to be totally
depended on them.
COMMISSIONER VIAL:

Yet, we don't have the luxury, just

because we don't have a handle on marginal cost in an economic
sense.

We look at prices today, relate them to embedded cost.

And we are going to do that.
CHAIRWOMAN MOORE:
members.

I have a series of questions from

I am going to start on my right with Assemblyman

Bradley, then Assemblywoman Hughes, and then Assemblyman Farr.
ASSEMBLYMAN WILLIAM BRADLEY:

Mr. Rheingold, since this

is a budding industry, why should we regulate private sector
development?

Commissioner Vial talks about integrating it into

the social fabric.

Are we talking about just the price of the

computer in the home or the cost of using telephone lines and
transmission of data?
MR. RHEINGOLD:
going to drop.

Where are you coming from?
The price of computers in the home is

There is no doubt about that.

of the computers in the home should increase.

The availability
It would be great

if we gave out $50 or $100 terminals to people in this state.
That, I fear, is impossible.

But if we want to jump into the

21st Century and take advantage of the network, that's what we
should do.
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I'm really not an expert on the regulatory issues.

I

fear, however, that in the technologically complex regulatory
battles that are being fought, that the system that the real
needs of the society are not being considered.

We should look at

the value to the people in our state, and our society as a whole,
of keeping the price of access low enough where services can be
developed from the bottom up.
ASSEMBLYMAN BRADLEY:

How can you say the value hasn 1 t

been taken into account, when you start your comments with, "this
a from the bottom up industry"?

You made that comment early on.

That implies that the small industries are making strides to
provide material at a different level than IBM, for example.

Are

you concerned that the AT&Ts and the IBMs would subdue that
market?
MR. RHEINGOLD:

That is possible.

I am also concerned

that people who use computers to connect to networks, to connect
with one another, and to connect with knowledge are going to be
lumped in with large banks sending information about money to one
another.

You have this huge billion-dollar industry which

obviously requires careful consideration.

In those

considerations, are you including the tiny industries that may
take advantage of access to the network?

The FCC last year

proposed that local operating companies add a charge for access
to packet

switching networks.

That would increase the price

of access to the point where things like Usenet or The WELL or
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Peace Net, or any of the people here, 90 percent of their
out-of-state customers.
I'm making a plea:

look at those people who use access

to networks to build various kinds of communities.

They are not

really visible except when people like me come in and talk about
them.

Does that answer your question?
ASSEMBLYMAN BRADLEY:

•

MR. RHEINGOLD:

Somewhat.

I don't know what kind of regulation is

required.
CHAIRWOMAN MOORE:
and oranges.

I think you're talking about apples

You are talking about regulation of the network,

keeping the cost of access low so that more people can
participate.

I think Mr. Bradley thought you meant regulation of

the different kinds of services.
ASSEMBLYMAN BRADLEY:
from:

I want to know where he is coming

hardware plus software, plus the communications

industries?

Or, as Commissioner Vial indicated, regulating the

cost of computer systems which you and I would buy?
CHAIRWOMAN MOORE:

I think Mr. Rheingold was speaking

more of the network services.
himself.

Commissioner Vial can speak for

I don't think that is what he meant either.
COMMISSIONER VIAL:

There are many services being

developed, information and enhanced services.

They are to be

accessed through the network, so people can reach them from
their homes, for example.

The question is, how should the

network provide for that linkage?
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Judge Greene says a network should be a "transporter" of
the services.

It should just be providing the linkage and not

the service itself.

The term I was trying to use is "gateway."

But the gateway itself is not a clearly defined issue, and the
judge is holding further hearings on it.

The telephone companies

are saying that these individual privately offered services can
link up through this gateway; the utilities would charge for that
gateway service.

The utilities would also like to be able to

provide the services, charging themselves the same price they
would charge the free-standing entrepreneur for the use of the
necessary basic service elements.
cost and regulation.

Those are the big issues of

We have to look, also, at the cost of

modernizing the network to provide for all of this.
But the cost of the hardware itself is another matter.
The cost of the hardware might dependupon whether you have money
in your pocket to buy the hardware; or whether you can integrate
that into the way you develop the information services, as in the
case of Minitel in France, where you provide free use of the
computer.
ASSEMBLYMAN BRADLEY:

Didn't Judge Greene prevent the

utilities from being the suppliers of this equipment and service?
COMMISSIONER VIAL:
CHAIRWOMAN MOORE:

At this point, he has.
Although the hearings are continuing,

because the telephone companies want to broaden that.
it stifles what they are able to do.
discussion and debate.
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They feel

There will be an ongoing

Ms. Wright has a question.
ASSEMBLYWOMAN CATHY WRIGHT:

In regards to the

intelligent network task force, it seems you are only dealing
with the Pacific Bell.
DR. O'CONNOR:

Because we were commissioned by Pacific

Bell to look at the issue.

It was a group that they put

together, but independent group.
ASSEMBLYWOMAN WRIGHT:

I'm wondering how your

recommendation will impact our independent telephone companies?
How it will impact General Telephone, Continentia!, all those
other phone companies?

What you're

recommendin~

is quite

expensive.
DR. O'CONNOR:

The task force hopes that those companies

will take similiar stand.

We did not get total agreement in that

diverse group on some recommendations.

As Don answered earlier,

they are all contingent upon Judge Greene allowing any of that to
happen.
will

We hope, whoever is the gateway, that the end-customer

have access and that the network itself will be transparent

and ubitious to the person using it.

•

We don't want the

rigamarole of different codes to get the services.

In our

experience, that is a barrier to use, particularly for the
average residential customer.
ASSEMBLYWOMAN WRIGHT:

I don't care what the product is,

access depends on what it costs.

I see the word "subsidize,"

which I don't particularly like, in the report.
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In the United

States or in California, there is an access to whatever you are
able to pay for.

I can have a computer in my home today and hook

up to a line if I can pay for it -- if I can afford it.

I want

to be careful, when we start deciding what is the bottom line,
the most important service, that the telephone companies don't
have to provide that all this additional dressing and all the
computers.

If that happens, even with subsidizing, you could put

us right out of the market.

We are not going to be able to have

even a telephone in our homes.
else that goes with it.

We would have to have everything

You have to be very, very careful.

As I glanced through it (I didn't read the whole
report), it frightened me a little bit.
something that nobody can afford.
subsidizing.

What we're looking at is

I don't like the word

In comparison to other countries, we have a very

inexpensive system.

I don't want to see a new age where

everything is going to be available, where we make people feel
they have to have everything that goes with it.
CHAIRWOMAN MOORE:

You indicated you haven't had a

chance to really take a look at the report.
ASSEMBLYWOMAN WRIGHT:
CHAIRWOMAN MOORE:

I just read the recommendations.

Yes, I know, you see words like

"subsidy" and naturally it makes you go off in, your red jacket.
I think the report is talking about much broader kind of thing.
DR. O'CONNOR:

We agree with Assemblywoman Wright.
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ASSEMBI.YWOMAN WRIGHT:

She's agreeing with me, now.

Gwen, don't go off.
CHAIRWOMAN MOORE:
that into consideration.

Things change, and this report takes
Commissioner Vial, sometime ago it cost

more to provide Touchtone service.
ASSEMBLYWOMAN WRIGHT:

Now, it costs less.

Because of the free marketplace,

where we have competition, they are improving.

I'm just scared

we are going to start regulating before we should.
CHAIRWOMAN MOORE:

We're not advocating any regulation.

What we're talking about is taking a look, so you can understand
and see where there needs to be regulation.

We don't know where

it needs to be.
ASSEMBLYWOMAN WRIGHT:
CHAIRWOMAN MOORE:

Maybe no any where.

It could be.

You won't know until

you finish hearing about some of these new services.
going to have that opportunity today.

You are

As we hear about the

things that are out there, we can understand some of the dilemma
that the PUC has in trying to regulate and balance what is
available.
Assemblyman Farr had a question.
ASSEMBLYMAN SAM FARR:
triggered the second one.

I have two questions.

To Commissioner Vial:

Ms. Moore

I'm sick and

tired of these rotary phones, but I don't want to pay a dollar a
month more for Touchtone service.

The cost is coming down.

the Commission going to do anything about eliminating that
monthly service charge?
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Is

co~~ISSIONER

VIAL:

I am the assigned corr®issioner on

Phase II, which is rate design.
how we price all services.

We will take another look at on

As part of the OII that was mentioned

earlier, we will be doing another round of rate design, depending
upon how much money is identified as being available for the
reduction of rates.

What we're doing is doing the best job we

can to relate prices to cost and to set prices on that basis.
Obviously, for the moment, the money that is being obtained for
Touchtone is being used to maintain the low basic rate.
ASSEMBLYMAN FARR:
COMMISSIONER VIAL:
services of the future.
that context.

It's a moneymaker.
And obviously basic to the enhanced

Obviously, it should be looked at in

I can't say which way the corr®ission will go,

because I am the assigned commissioners on this case.
CHAIRWOMAN MOORE:

Sam, in last week's hearing we heard

that that was one of the things they were looking at.
ASSEMBLYMAN r,ARR:
COtv"lMISSIONER VIAL:
that issue.

I just wanted to voice my concern.
I think you're right in identifying

It is an important one.

ASSEMBLYMAN FARR:

As a utility commissioner you wear a

lot of hats. You regulate trucking, utilities, and airports
(although, you don't have a lot of airport authority).

It seems

to me those are places, BART stations and so forth, where you
have tremendous cross-over of people.

There ought to be

libraries within those terminals where you could access this kind
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of information.

Those are quasi-public places.

Has the

Commission has ever taken a look at how you make the electronic
information available there?
COMISSSIONER VIAL:

Our responsibility right now is to

create a modernized network that is capable of providing access
to the kinds of services that you're talking about.

We will be

looking at how to do that.
As I said earlier, much of that depends upon national
policies.

We may be preempted by the FCC in how we deal with the

new technologies.
authority.

Judge Greene may rule in ways that limit our

We're trying to get our house in order, looking at

how to keep the network modernized and open for these new
services to be linked to the network.
services can be provided airports.

Obviously, a lot of these

They can be provided by

private business enterprises; linking up with the utility.
You could access them at the airport.

There are various way of

doing it.
As I was trying to distinguish earlier, demand is
developing privately, as you indicate.

Those needs are private

needs.

There are going to be many providers responding to those

needs.

I think it's important that you understand that a lot of

the demand is going to be publicly generated.

The new

technology, the transmission of voice, data, and video, is
equally important to a school system, for example.

There, the

demand is stimulated more by public-sector expenditures than it
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is by private expenditures.

We need a network that is respons

to demand, to public needs as well as private n

That

what's important.
ASSEMBLY~1AN

FARR:

The Public Utilities

ssion sits

as the referee for a lot of the primary information.
information I receive is bills:
regulatie;

The pr

bills from PG&E, which you

from the water company, in which you regulate; and

from the telephone company, which you also regulate.

Those bills

have little messages in every one of them -- little newsletters.
COMISSIONER VIAL:

Some of them we require.

ASSEMBLYMAN FARR:

It seems to me there

i~

a tremendous

opportunity (though I don't want to discuss all that today).
have required that information with out bills.

You

As we move into

electronic services, the Commission ought to keep

mind what

role it can play as a key negotiator for the public on the
information we get through our utility bills.
COMMISSIONER VIAL:

I think that's a good suggestion.

I'm not quite sure how we can do that, but I do have one
observation to make.

There are many information services that

are being developed that can be extended

the home

policy that is holding up a lot of these right now.
policy issues are going to be resolved.
be resolved.

Computer

The MFJ is going to be resolved.

~

It is

But the
is going to

We are going to

have the responsibility of seeing to it that the network can
provide for those services to come into the home.
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Also important (and we only seen the tip of the iceberg
on this) , the more services you may access through the home by
picking up the telephone, then the more emphasis there is on
controlling access to the telephone.

That bill can go up very

high if you add every service to it.

We are seeing the problems

of that in "976": I don't want to raise that issue, but it is a
part of it.

You have many ways to get into the home with a

business line.

Attach to that a collection service, put it on

the telephone bill itself.

When you do that, you are developing

all kinds of issues relating to access to that telephone.

Yor

background paper begins to deal with this issue of access and
billing in the future.
All of these are very important regulatory issues that
have to be dealt with.
CHAIRWOMAN MOORE:

They are being considered currently.

You indicated you were the commissioner of record -- did they
split the OII?

I thought Mitch Wilk was the commissioner of

record.
COMMISSIONER VIAL:

Commissioner Wilk is in charge of

this OII as the assigned commissioner.

The first phase of the

OII looks at the areas of flexibility we might move into at the
present time.

Before moving into alternative forms of

regulation, there is another round of rate design.

We anticipate

revenue reductions being available to bring prices closer in line
with cost.

It is really very important, as I said earlier, to
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deal with the problems that have been created by technology.
old pricing policies were made obsolete by new technology.
have to adjust prices closer to cost.
place.

Our
We

This is going to take

I am the assigned commissioner on that aspect of the OII.

I will be working very closely with Commissioner Wilk, because
that rate design phase is going to take place under the umbrella
of his OII.
CHAIRWOMAN MOORE:
trying to get clarification.
we have a very long agenda.
presentation.

That's what I thought.

I was just

We are going to move ahead, because
I want to thank each of you for your

If you have a parting comment you

f<~el

you need to

make, please feel free to make it.
Mr. Longshore has a question.
ASSEMBLYMAN RICHARD LONGSHORE:

PacBell agrees with

everything that is in this report?
DR. O'CONNOR:
question.

They have lobbysts here to answer that

They have not responded.

the company:
are valid.

The deal that we had with

we make the recommendations, because we think they
They will respond to us in writing by March.

ASSEMBLYMAN LONGSHORE:
DR. O'CONNOR:

They paid for the report?

They paid for the printing.

ASSEMBLYWOMAN TERESA HUGHES:

Madam Chair, I have a

question for Dr. O'Connor.
You made a comment during your initial presentation
about the difficulty schools are running into because they don't
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have the right telephone equipment to install a lot of the
communication systems that you think would be worthwhile.

Is

there any way that schools are being advised on building or
renovation to make them technically ready for the new equipment?
DR. O'CONNOR:
areas.

We are trying to do that in a couple of

We had the State Architect working with them on plant

design which is "state-of-the-art."

There is a school in Los

Angeles that was recently built under those guidelines.
had one plug on one wall.

It still

If we're talking about banks of

computers, we'll have to go back and retrofit all the plans.

I

think, after the six or seven years I have been working on it,
that the quickest way to do it is to set up business and industry
partnerships with local businesses who will go in and help.
ASSEMBLYWOMAN HUGHES:
Architect.

You're working with the State

Is this on a voluntary basis?

DR. O'CONNOR:

Is it mandated?

I'm not an authority on this.

Sam's committee or someone can tell you.

Maybe

There are some new

guidelines on how new physical plant is to be built.

The State

Ed Tech Committee, which you review, is setting up guidelines for
superintendents and district level folks that explains what new
plants should contain.
CHAIRWOMAN MOORE:

It is not just there.

They had to do

the same thing for this building.
MR. DOWLIN:

One last shot:

Just to remind you that

Senate Bill 181 would help public libraries to get new buildings
and Assembly Bill 385 would help us to get equipment.
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DR. O'CONNOR:

I have one last comment.

The State

Educational Technology Act is up for reauthorization this year.
I would hope that all of you, bipartisanly, will support it.
CHAIRWOMAN MOORE:
Thank you very much.

All right, any more commercials?

We really appreciate your testimony.

We are going to move on the next part of our hearing and
look at some of the information service vendors, so we can have
an opportunity to look at these new services.
Members, you will note, I have asked for the computers
and programs to be set up in here so we can actually see the
technology.

Oftentimes, we don't get a chance to see these

demonstrations.

I think it is very important, if we are going to

understand the services that we're talking about, how these new
services are going to be regulated, and how they are going to be
integrated into the existing system, that they be demonstrated to
the Committee.
With that, I would like Amin Rahme, Lawrence Guinness
and the rest of the information service providers to come to the
witness table.
Let's begin with Amin Rahme, President of
MR. AMIN RAHME:

u.s.

Videotel.

Setting up on-line services for the

masses entails a communications network capable of supporting a
novice user, not a computer-literate person.
I would like to outline some of the things that would
bring on-line services to the people.
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First, they have to be priced properly.
entertaining.

They havr

to he

There has to be a tangible vaJue to the services.

So far, most services have been based on a user owning a
PC, modem, and communication software.
very expensive way to start.

For the masses, that is a

At Videotel, we built our success

based on the success on the French market.

We brought over a

Minitel and modified it for the U.S. environment; we made it
available for the people that do not have a PC unit.
The services ranges from educational to entertainment
services.
CHAIRWOMAN MOORE:
your system.

me make a sugqestion.

Let.

J

know

Why don't you demonstrate, so the members can see

what you're talking about?
MR. RAHME:
have to have PCs.

I started with the premise that people don't
I think that is an important premise.

U.S. version of the French Minitel.

This a

All I need to do is connect

the jack on the telephone line in the back and I'm an finished
with my installation.
The keyboard is very simple.
numeric pad.

It has on one side the

It is similiar to the telephone numeric pad.

On

the top, there are designated function keys which say, in
English, index, guide, direction, cancel, send, repeat and so
forth.

It is a simple keyboard.
If you have a PC, you do not need this unit.

Since we

are not locally available in this area, I have to dial into
Houston.
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ASSEMBLYWOMAN WRIGHT:
MR. RAHME:

Collect?

Unfortunately, not.

When I hear the beep,

all I have to do is press the button and I am connected to the
services.
CHAIRWOMAN MOORE:
network.

Members, this can work as a closed

This can be done for the Legislature.

for legislative committees.
MR. RAHME:

It can be done

It can be done in the home.

What we have prepared this afternoon is a

closed user group example.
CHAIRWOMAN MOORE:

Ms. Hughes wants to know if she can

vote over it.
ASSEMBLYWOMAN HUGHES:

Could we stay in our district and

vote from our district offices?
MR. RAHME:

I don't see why not.

CHAIRWOMAN MOORE:
MR. RAHME:

I see a lot of reasons.

We prepared a list of services to

demonstrate the system to you.

We tried to put together a

sampling, including the ability for people to talk together
on-line.

Sometimes you find 100 or 200 people at the same time

on the service.

Others are:

classified ads, electronic mail,

Hangman (a game), USA Today news, horoscopes,and a host of
services.
What I called up right now is USA Today.

There are some

interesting things we can show you, or at least draw a parallel
to, which suppose the Legislature wants to provide information to

38

its constituents:
today's discussion.

for example, this could be the topic of
People can log in and obtain archived

information.
With this system, you can obtain on-line news.

I'm

going to go to the A.P. News, which is a live connection to the
Associated Press.

Notice how the screens change; the services

are of different standards.
different kinds of hardware.

They are being provided over
Because of the lack of a standard

in the U.S., because there is no uniformity, we had to provide a
network capable of making the adjustments necessary to access the
various kinds of services.
This is a live connection into A.P.
up now is "News Briefs."

What I am picking

This brief is on 6 P.M., Eastern

Standard Time.
CHAIRWOMAN MOORE:
No, that's not what it says.

It says, "President Reagan resigns."
Don't anyone walk out and repeat

that.
MR. RAHME:

We can also get stock quotes.

We can get a

lot of things.

•

CHAIRWOMAN MOORE:

The the point you're making is that

any kind of information can be packaged and brought onto this
network.
MR. RAHME:

That's correct.

This can be a perfect tool

for many types of information services, including education and
the dissemination of information from the Legislature to the
people.
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CHAIRWOMAN MOORE:
Parl

We saw the system

the Canadian

Members could call up TV programs that were
in their districts during the previous night.

Is that

possible to do through this system?
MR. RAHME:
system s

Yes, it is.

In fact, we are providing a

liar to that for the local chapter of the American

Medical Association in Houston, where all the members are being
kept up to date with what is happening:

research, statistics,

and conferences which are going on.
I want to emphasize the communications aspect:
bi-directional communications aspect is very important.
certain extent, it is entertaining, too.

the
To a

It is important to have

the people come back to use this kind of service.
CHAIRWOMAN MOORE:

If I had a computer at home, I could

use my own computer to get your services over the telephone?

If

we use your system, tell me what the cost would be for the
person.
MR. RAHME:

If you have a computer at home, whether

is IBM, Macintosh, or Apple (soon, we'll handle Atari and
We will

) , you don't have to pay for that
provide you with an emulation program.

Then you would pay a

minimum of $6 per month for using the services.
kinds of services.

We have various

Some of them are free of charge.

10¢ a minu·te and upward.

Others are

If you do not have a computer and you

don't wish to make that investment, we will provide you with this
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unit for $12.59 a month; then you have the same access to
information as an IBM or PC user.
Another point I would like to make:
it easy for people to provide services.

my company has made

They can turn a PC into

a service provider mechanism, or we have software and hardware
for mainframes.

It is the beginning of a new industry.

to encourage people to come in and get started.
is already there.

We need

The technology

I think it is time to start providing

information to the people and making the services available.
CHAIRWOMAN MOORE:

Assemblywoman Wright?

ASSEMBLYWOMAN WRIGHT:
MR. RAHME:

You said $12.59 a month?

Yes.

ASSEr•1BLYWOMAN WRIGHT:

Is there any additional cost?

Is

that base rate or is there additional cost for its use?
MR. RAHME:

That is just to rent the terminal.

ASSEMBLYWOMAN WRIGHT:
going to be $6 a month.

If I had my own terminal, it is

If I rent a terminal, its $12.59 per

month and then an $6 additional to use the service?
MR.

P~HME:

If you have your terminal, you don't pay the

$12.59 a month for a rental.
ASSEMBLYWOMAN WRIGHT:
MR. RAHME:

I would pay $6 a month.

You would pay the minimal usage of $6 per

month.
ASSEMBLYWO~AN

WRIGHT:

It could be more?
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MR. RAHME:

Yes, based on what you use.

It is just like

a telephone.
A.SSEMBI..YWOMAN WRIGHT:

If I pay $12.59, I still have

that additional $6 charge for usage?
MR. RAHME:

Yes, Madam.

ASSEMBLYWOMAN WRIGHT:
MR. RAHME:

How about services?

There are some services that are being

provided free of charge.

For example, in Houston, we have the

physician-referral system which is provided free of charge to the
people.

There are a lot of basic services that we will provide

free of charge.
ASSEMBLYWOMAN WRIGHT:

I am also concerned about

maintaining the equipment.
MR. RAHME:

The $12.59 rental charge includes

maintenance for the equipment we provide.
just exchange it for you.

If it goes down, we

You don't even have to wait for

repairs.
ASSEMBLYMAN LONGSHORE:

If you use $6.00 worth of

service, you wouldn 1 t pay an additional charge?
MR. RAHME:

No, you would be credited immediately.

ASSEMBLYMAN LONGSHORE:

One of your presumptions is that

there is a lack of compatibility among equipment.
MR. RAHME:

That is the point I am trying to emphasize.

What we are providing is a common way to get all of the
incompatible equipment together.
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In fact, I can use an IBM PC,

an

Apple Macintosh, or this device for the people who do not

have a communications device.

The services are coming from

different types of computers, languages, and locations.
I

fact, A.P. js located in the northeast corner of the United

States.

When I call up American Airlines, I am "in" Arizona.

don't know what kind of computer it is.
conve

I

An Apple takes care of

the signal and making it compatible with the service,

so the user does not have to learn anything.
•

When you trying to approach the masses, ease of use is
important, because you cannot educate every person on how to
use

se services.

system.

I

hope I

answered your question.

I

would like to a parallel between this and the French

I

don't know how many of you know about the French

This is not a clone of it.

I think it is worthwhile

rstanding the magnitude of its success.
3

llion users in France.

Today, there are

There are 6,000 services

More

importantly, there are 6,000 new permanent jobs for people in
this industry.
CHAIRWO~~N

MOORE:

Let's hear from Larry Guinness of

ss Videophone, who has a similiar system right here in
Ca i
MR. LAWRENCE GUINNESS:

Thank you, Madam Chairwoman and

Members of the Committee.
Let me give you a little bit of our background.
60s, we were publishers of educational textbooks.
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In the

We worked on

programming materials.

In the 70s, we took some of our ideas

applied them to television production and to computer.

We

experimented throughout the '70s with weaving information into an
interactive network.
In the '80s, we decided to open our office in the Bay
Area to begin to test an information and knowledge system that
could be used in the educational field.

Our intention was to set

up a network with school districts throughout California.
Unfortunately, Wall Street wasn't prepared to invest in something
that was educationally oriented.

We had to take our concepts,

turn them around, and apply them to a consumer-oriented network.
When we applied them to a consumer-oriented network, then people
became interested.
We chose California for our test.
ASSEMBLYWOMAN WRIGHT:
MR. GUINNESS:

Why?

If I am going to create one product, I

want to hit the masses. If I was going to test a tube of
toothpast, I would go to Seattle, Washington, or Kansas City.
This interactive system allows each individual to tailor
their own individual program -- in effect, to make their own
toothpaste.
most diverse.

So, what you want to do is go to an area that is
In other words, if the system is able to work

here, for the people of California -- at least for the Bay Area
then it should be able to apply to all of the United States.
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CHAIRWOMAN MOORE:

You are going to give us a

demonstration?
MR. GUINNESS:

I might in a minute.

After seeing the

demonstration from U.S. Videotel, you will get an idea of what we
have added and what's different.

You will have a fairly good

idea of what's on our system.
The system we developed is going to be an
education-based system.
choice.

The first screen gives the people a

Let me go to the unit itself.
We just designed what we called, "Superphone."

using a Northern Telecom unit.

We are

Here, our unit, which will be

available in about two weeks, is an size of the AT&T Merlin
phone, with the telephone on one side; an LCD (liquid crystal
display) screen at the top, which you can lift up or put down,
and a key pad in the center, underneath the screen, which you can
flip forward to give you a full keyboard.
The phone itself contains a directory of over 200
telephone numbers.

You can have information about the

individuals that you're calling will flash up on the screen when
you make your telephone call.

Also, it has a reminder service:

you can set up appointments six months in advance.

It will phone

you a couple days before and remind you of your appointment, with
the information flashing on the screen.
In addition to that, we have what we call a freezing
unit.

You can freeze out any telephone numbers you don't want
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people to dial from your unit.

For instance, a couple of friends

of ours had a party six months ago.

Later, there were $300 worth

of telephone charges on their phone.

If they had system, they

could have cancelled long distance calling and only allowed the
system to dial local calls.
In addition to that, there is a voice chip in the
system.

If you leave the house you can push a button and people

who dial your phone number, whether from a regular phone or any
other type of phone, can leave voice message for you; you can
pick up these messages when you get home.

In addition to that,

you can send voice messages through the terminal.

I can set up a

message in about 30 or 60 seconds to remind all my Scout Troop
there is a meeting the following week.

Push a button and it will

phone all the Scout members and remind them of that meeting
coming up.
It has other features:

if you have two lines, you can

have conference calling, call waiting, and all the other fancy
features.
This unit will be renting for $10 per month.
features are inside the unit.
GVlO button.

Those

Another button on the unit is our

You press it to connect the visual unit with our

data base system.

We are going with an integrated system.

It

will allow for both voice and data to be transmitted and stored
throughout the network.
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If they push "gateway services," they will have access
to other services such as American Airlines, home banking, Bank
of America, etc.

We are negotiating with some of these people

because we are concerned about our network and its educational
value to the marketplace.
For example, in discussions with American Airlines, we
said, "What if somebody makes a reservation from a hotel in
Spain, and they get there and find out the reservation did not
arrive and they are out in the street with their luggage?
could they call?"

Who

American Airlines said to us, "We can't be

responsible for things like that."

We said, You are going to

have to be or we can't have those things on the network.
not signing the contracts."

We are

Those are important issues, as far

as I'm concerned, in such a network.
The individual who uses this network and accesses
information in the network has no contract.

How many times have

we been frustrated by a computer error or something the computer
says?

Anybody in this information business must assume

responsibility for the network and for the information they pass
on.

Some individual must be responsible for that.

We can't have

a situation where everybody is responsible for their own thing,
and one cannot find the individual they should talk to.
This unit is going to be in my living room, in my home.
I want to make sure that I have control over that system and that
unit.

I am irritated enough with telephone calls which ring me
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out of my comfortable chair, only to find that, when I rush to
the phone, there is some recorded message that tries to sell me
insurance.
It is important that this network and the use of
interaction services be educationally involved.

If I want

garbage and if I want to be brainwashed, I can watch TV.

I can

look at sign boards along the highway.
I think this is a nucleus medium that can bring all the
other types of media together and complement them.

If I use an

interactive system, I don't want to see what's in the newspaper I
looked at earlier.
last night.

I don't want to hear what 60 MINUTES said

I want to see information that supplements that.

I

want to see the little things that peak my curiosity as a result
of my getting a general view.
CHAIRWOMAN MOORE:
MR. GUINNESS:
per month.

What would be the cost of your unit?

The rental of the telephone unit is $10

In time, we can reduce that cost through the

participation of other organizations in the system.

They would

help subsidize it.
It is $10 a month.
you can send it back.

You just plug it into your phone.

CHAIRWOMAN MOORE:
availability.

After 30 days, if you don't like it,

My second question relates to its

You are more geared towards educational kinds of

activities?
MR. GUINNESS:

Very

~uch
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so.

CHAIRWO~~N

MOORE:

MR. GUINNESS:

Was that your intent?

Correct.

If I'm looking for a

restaurant, I want to find out what services and facilities that
restaurant has and be educated, so I can make my own decision as
to whether I want to go or not.

I don't want a sign that says,

"Come in and get free meals."
CHAIRWOMAN MOORE:

I was looking at some of the personal

services you have established:
electronic teachers.

the electronic library, the

Those those kinds of things are peculiar to

your company.
MR. GUINNESS:

Correct, they are.

CHAIRWOIJIAN MOORE:

That would be a difference between

your system and the one we just saw?
MR. GUINNESS:

Very much so.

CHAIRWOMAN MOORE:

I think Mrs. Wright had a question.

ASSEMBLYWOMAN WRIGHT:

You are saying $10 per month.

That's it?
MR. GUINNESS:

No.

I'm saying that $10 per month is the

price for use of this phone, for which you can use many features
such as recording your telephone calls, setting up your
messages ...
ASSEMBLYWOJiilAN WRIGHT:

You are going to charge me for

every time I use the system?
MR. GUINNESS:

Once you push the button that connects

your telephone with our data base, there is a minimum charge of
five cents a minute for the use of our system.
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ASSEMBLYWO~~N

WRIGHT:

Well, if I have your equipment in

my home and all I do is dust it every month, and I don't use it
at all, what is the bottom line cost?

Am I going to pay $10?

The other one was $18.59.
MR. GUINNESS:

It is only $10 a month, but you can do

more than dust it, because you record your information.
ASSEMBLYWOMAN WRIGHT:

The previous witness said, if I

didn't have any equipment in the house at all, it is going to
cost me $12.59 a month.

Then, I had a minimum cost of $6 charge

for access, whether I used it not.

You're telling me it is $10 a

month and there is no other charge except when I use it, at five
cents a minute.
CHAIRWOMAN MOORE:

The first one also gave you some free

services.
ASSEMBLYWOMAN WRIGHT:

If the equipment just sits there

and I don't use it, his was $18.59 and the other one is $10.
MOORE:

CHA.IRWO~..AN

ASSEMBLY~...AN

LONGSHORE:

and ten cents a minute?
ten cents a minute.

What's so sacrosanct about five

I noticed that the other gentleman had

Is that standard in France?

MR. GUINNESS:
significant.

Mr. Longshore?

In our particular case, it's very

We're serving a local area.

We see ourselves as a

small-town newspaper, not a huge network that is going to go
across the state.

We are trying to avoid people having to use

the very expensive telecommunications systems working at the
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present time.

The five cents-a-minute relates mainly the cost of

the equipment that people will be able to access through the
system, covering the cost of some of the programming that we put
into the system itself.
Other services will add their prices accordingly.

If

you want to use Day Mars Real Estate Service, then you pay an
extra amount of money over and above the five cents-a-minute to
access that particular network.

•

If you want to use the library,

you will be paying ten cents a minute:

half the money will go to

the people who actually put the information into the public
library.
CHAIRWOMAN MOORE:

If there are no other questions,

let's hear from the other vendors.
MR. HARRY SCHWEDOCK:

Let's hear from AMVOX.

AMVOX is in a somewhat different

position than the other members of the panel.
graphic displays.

That is the bad news;

which to entertain you today.

We are not using

we have nothing with

The good news is you already have

the terminal that AMVOX requires, if you have a Touchtone
telephone.

You already have the AMVOX terminal.

AMVOX is a California corporation.
year.

It was formed last

Its purpose is the nationwide deployment of a telephone

answering, automated voice message network.

Our primary markets

are the residential and small business markets.

These are

markets that we feel are not being addressed by the technology as
it was being made available by hardware manufacturers.
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Our corporate headquarters are in Carpinteria,
California.

Our operation center is in Los Gatos.

operations in July 1987.

We began selling our voice mail

services in October 1987.
customers on-line.

As of this past Friday, we had 12,000

We are currently operational or under

construction in 22 states.
states.

We began

By the end of 1989, we will be in 50

Currently we are serving 27 locations in the state of

California.

The map directly in front of me indicates those

locations that we are currently servicing or where we will be in
operation before the end of this year.
Ultimately, in California, we will serve 97 communities,
about 90 percent of the population of the State of California.
Service is now or will be available by April next year to about
90 percent of the population of California.

We do have

nationwide distribution.
I am going to show you how the system works.
to give you a short demonstration.

I'm going

It is difficult, in the short

time that we have, to go through everything it can do.

I have

selected a single application.
When you start the AMVOX service, AMVOX provides you
with the telephone number, a different telephone number than your
home telephone number.

That telephone number could be for a

local area, if that is where you want it.

In the case of the

people on this Committee, they could certainly have one in their
home area and one here in Sacramento.
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That telephone number is a

private, unlisted telephone number.

No directories are

published.
AMVOK can be used in two ways.
There are people in my life that I want to talk to when
I want to talk to them, and not when they want to talk to them.
I give them that number.

Those people, when they call that

number, are going to reach my AMVOX.

I will pick up my messages,

as you will see in the moment, and then I will call them back.
The other way the service can be used is by using a
service which is provided almost throughout the state -- not only
by Pacific Bell, but also by independent telephone companies
called, "call forwarding."

If you subscribe t_o call forwarding,

you can forward from any phone for which you subscribe to call
forwarding -- your home phone, your office, your cellular phone
to your AMVOX number or numbers.

You can use AMVOX directly

by 9iving people that number \'lhen they want to reach you, or
indirectly by using call forwarding to screen calls and have them
forwarded to your AMVOX.
Heere is the application that I have set

I have an

irrate customer who is very unhappy with the service he is
receiving.

He has called me, because he has lost faith with the

rest of my organization.

I am going to show you how that kind of

call might be handled using voice mail.
First, I'm going to do is enter "star," which is going
to tell the system that it is me and I am calling in
messages.
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my

Hello.

This is Harry Swedock.

VOICE MESSAGE:

Hello.

Please enter your pass code.

(Mr. Swedock enters his pass code.)
VOICE MESSAGE:
mailbox.

You have two unheard messages in your

Two messages total.
That's fine.

Press 2 to receive those messages.

She only has one.

I'm not quite sure what

I'm going to do with the other one.
VOICE MESSAGE:

This is Sunday, 9 A.M.

That's not it.
VOICE MESSAGE:

Message kept.

I don't want you to hear it, but I want to hear it
later.

So, I am saying, "Keep that message."
VOICE MESSAGE:

Press 2 to play the current message.

1:04 P.M.
MESSAGE:

My name is Vernon Prentice.

number is 408-993-2501.
what to do.

My call back

I absolutely frustrated.

I don't know

I have been trying to get some results from your

customer service groups, and not getting any call backs or
anything.

I would appreciate, at your earliest convenience, your

giving me a call back so we can resolve this issue.
VOICE MESSAGE:

Thank you.

End of message.

What I am going to do is give this message to my
administrative assistant.
VOICE MESSAGE:

Enter mailbox to get mailbox 2.

additional comments.
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Record

Ann, this kind of message drives me crazy.

Would you

please listen to it and make sure that the customer
people know that they're not supposed to transfer calls to a
local place.
directly.

They should either handle themselves or call back

Thanks a lot.
VOICE MESSAGE:

Your comments and a copy of your message

sent.
I

just sent that message.

Now, I am going to

I

am going to go into Vivian's mailbox and pick it up, and I am
going to show you what Vivian can do with that message.
CHAIRWOMAN MOORE:

If I use the AMVOX system and I

transfer the call to it, what does the person calling rece
MR. SCHWEDOCK:

You are going to hear right now.

?
I

am

going into Vivian's mailbox.
VOICE MESSAGE:

Hello, Vivian.

Please enter

s

code.
You have two unheard messages in your mailbox.
messages total.

Press 2 to receive current message.

Message kept. MESSAGE: From:
of message drives me crazy.

7:55 A.M.

Harry Schwedock.
Would you please listen to

make sure that the customer service people know that
supposed to transfer calls to a local place?
handle themselves or call back directly.
VOICE MESSAGE:
Prentice.

Two

1:04 P.M.

TThey

re not
either

Thanks a lot.

MESSAGE:

My name is Vernon

My call back number is 408-993-2501.
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and

I am

ly

frustrated.

I don't know what to do.

I have been trying to get

some results from your customer service group, and not getting
any call backs or anything.

I would appreciate, at your earlier

convenience, your giving me a call back so we can resolve this
issue.

Thank you ..
VOICE MESSAGE:

End of message.

MR. SCHWEDOCK:

I am sending this message you just heard

to a distribution list of all of the customer service people.
VOICE MESSAGE:

Okay, customer service folks, I want you

to listen to a message that the boss received.
message is very clear.
MR. SCHSWDOCK:
of the system.

I think this

You better return your phone calls.
That message just went to 10 other users

The original message I received, my message and

my comments on that message, and Vivian's comments on that
message.

Ten other users of the system now have it.
In addition, when Vivian goes back into her AMVOX, she

will know which of those 10 customer service picked up the
message and which of them haven't.

The applications can go on

forever, but I am not going to go much further.

There are a

couple I will mention because they would be of interest is
community service organizations.
You can contact many people within a community service
organization.

Fundraising is certainly an activity where lots of

people have to be communicated to.

There are a number of

applications in which this kind of system could be useful.
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Just a couple of comments I would like to make.
really excited.
California.

We are

We think we are bringing something to

We think we are providing an affordable

, which

Assemblywoman Wright seems to be most interested in.

No terminal

cost.

I will start with that.
Depending upon the level of service you select,

anywhere from $13 a month to $30 a month.

is

No additional charges.

However how much you use it within those constraints, that is

•

what it costs.
There seems to be a question as to whether or not
California's

telecommunications policy should be congruent with

the federal government's telecommunications policy.

We at AMVOX,

and other members of the information service industry, feel very
strongly that California's policy should not be congruent with
the federal government's.
The position of our federal executives today

based on

three myths.
Myth 1:

Deregulate the Bell Operating Companies,

because despite the risk of unfair competition, we can 1 t regulate
them.

We can be sure they will not abuse their monopo
Myth 2:

power.

Deregulate the Bell Operating Companies,

because they are the only ones who can bring the benefits of the
information age to the United States.

This is becoming almost as

good as the missle gap used to be, the information gap which is
supposed to be developing between the U.S. and the rest of the
world.
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Myth 3:

The Bell Operating Companies should not be

required to offer these information services on a structurally
separated basis, because that would cause a loss of efficiency.
I'd like very briefly to go

over these three myths.

"We should deregulate the Bell Operating Companies
because we assure competition will be fair.
their monopoly power."

They will not abuse

This is really interesting on the part of

the federal government, because it is a total reversal of its
position as recently as five years ago.

Five years ago, one of

the prime motivating forces in the consent decree which resulted
in the Modified Final Judgement was that the FCC had virtually
thrown up its hands in terms of its ability to regulate.
put it on us.

They

When you have more accountants hiding the money

than you have looking for it, that's a tough road to go.

I

respectfully suggest that not many regulatory bodies could
regulate something which is so much larger than they are.
The second motivating force, and that one of the reasons
the FCC could not easily regulate AT&T, was that it was very
difficult to discover cross-subsidization.
cross-subsidize.

It is very easy to

The regulators' task is even more difficult

today, because "The Giant" is now seven giants, each with its own
district corporate structure, complex hierachies, subsidiaries,
and divisions.

This makes it more difficult to regulate.

The General Accounting Office recently reported on the
FCC's ability to regulate the Regional Bell Operating Companies
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under cost accounting guidelines that the companies

propose.

The General Accounting Office concluded that the guidelines were
unrealistic and the FCC was not likely to be able to regulate the
RBOC's.

As recently as 1986, our own California Public Utilities

Commission found what extensive evidence of cross-subsidization
taking place since divestiture.
The FCC has been strongly biased against competition.
The rate cap being applied now is an indication of a governing
body implementing an ideology.

That ideology is deregulation.

The FCC is not concerned about whether or not deregulation will
work; it is concerned only about deregulating.
"We should deregulate the Bell Operating Companies,
because they are the only ones who can bring the United States
into the information age."

The gentleman at this tab

clearly that that is not true.
out there.

indicated

There are a lot of good people

Lots of people will continue to provide their

services in an unsubsidized way.

Minitel is very interesting.

The French gave away their terminals.

It is much, much easier to

fill demand for service when you give things away.
how long it will last, though.)

I m not sure

There are certainly many, many

companies who are providing the kinds of services that these
people are providing today, and there will be more.
In our business, in California alone, there are more
than 20 companies providing voice mail services.
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The issue in the market is not supply, but demand.
demand isn't there yet.

It's developing, but it is not there.

Who should pay for the service?
for this Legislature.

I think that is the bottom line

Who do you get to pay for service?

should take the risks?

The

Who should get the rewards?

Who

Should

taxpayers and ratepayers subsidize services, to make them
available to the 90 percent of the population who aren't yet sure
they want them?

Or alternatively, for those who are taking the

risks, should the 10 percent of the people who are waiting for
those services pay for them?
than the first one.

Our position is the second rather

The Legislature has to decide where we are

going to, because I agreed with what was said earlier:

the

federal government is not going to do it.
The California Legislature has an unique opportunity to
shape what happens to information service.
A very interesting study has been done recently by Probe
Research.

Probe is a respected telecommunications research

company in New Jersey.

Probe has studied where the revenues

would go if the Regional Bell Operating Companies were allowed in
the business or, the other hand, if they simply provided
transport:

the gateway.

They went through all seven of the

Regional Bell Operating Companies.

For Pacific Bell in the

residential market, without providing voice mail service, without
a nickel of investment, 48 percent of voice mail revenue would
go, t.o Pacific Bell.

In the small business market, 67 percent of
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the total revenue coming from voice mail would go to Pacific
Bell, without Pacific Bell being in the business.
We think the Legislature has a place in this process.
We are concerned about the direction that the federal government
has taken.

We are going to be around talking to all of you.

Thank you.
CHAIRWOMAN MOORE:

Thank you for your comments.

Let's

hear from John Coate.
MR. JOHN COATE:
medium.

The WELL is really a conversational

We don't have real spiffy graphics right now.

see, it actually exists.

You can

I will tell you what it is.

We are about to get into our third year of actually
providing information services.

To subscribe to The WELL, you do

have to have a computer and modem.

I have personally seen

everything you need at a garage sale in my neighborhood.
ASSEMBLYWOMAN WRIGHT:
MR. COATE:

Where is your neighborhood?

I live in Sebastopol.

Our goal with The WELL is to bring this tool to anybody
who can afford it.

We try to keep the cost as low as we can.

think it is pretty low.

It costs $8 a month to subscribe to the

service, plus $3 per hour to use it.
phone call.

I

You have to pay for the

That varies a lot obviously.

We are based in Sausalito.

So, if you are in San Francisco, it

is a local call.
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The cost of the phone call is a big concern to us,
because a lot of people wind up actually paying more for the call
than to use the service.

We're keeping the cost as low as we

can, because that is our goal.

We are really trying to a have a

place where anybody who is interested, whether they want to do
business, talk about social things, talk about politics, or just
meet people, can log into The WELL and get started.
The WELL is broken down into what we call "conferences."
They are discussion areas.

We have politics, human sexuality,

parenting, health, telecommunications, television, and many more.
There is one kind of networking where you say, Hhere is my card.
Here is your card."

Then there is meeting someplace and talking

with people about things that are important to you, not only in
business, but things you like and things you are interested in.
What your values are.

That is how you get to know people.

Because of our conversational orientation, that is what we see
actually happening.

People are getting to know each other.

Real

networks are forming and people are doing real business through
The tvELL.
CHAIRWOMAN MOORE:

You pointed out that one of your

concerns is the cost of the telephone call.
right in order for your service to work.

It has to be priced

Essentially, you have

an ongoing discussion line where people can call back and check
their comments and that sort of thing.
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MR. COATE:

That is correct.

at great length on The WELL.

This hearing was discussed

All of the doings of this Corrunittee

as well as all telecom policy, get discussed on the WELL.

I

could have brought in reams of stuff about it.
But yes, the cost of the phone call is very important,
this being an information service for everyone.
business.

We are a small business.

and we are concerned.

•

We are a

We want to be for everyone,

This early on, it is just going to be the

people that have the tools who can use this system.
opening up.

But it's

I'm concerned about people who live up in more

remote locations.

There are a lot of good bright people who have

something to contribute.

They can't

even consider doing any of

these things, because it is so expensive to use the telephone.
CHAIRWOMAN MOORE:

Conceivably, you can go on the

Guinness system?
MR. COATE:

That is correct.

CHAIRWOMAN MOORE:
MR. COATE:

That is one of the services?

A couple of Guinness's people carne by to

show us that little thing.
CHAIRWOMAN MOORE:

The only reason why I responded to

that is because of t.he terminal situation.
alleviate the need for
system.

-- you don't need a terminal with your

Do you?
MR. COATE:

Both of these would

You can use the screen.
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CHAIRWOMAN MOORE:

Can I use my television with your

system?
MR. COATE:
our office.

As it now, we have the equipment.

It is in

We are trying to be flexible with this thing.

If

something universal does happen, we would like to be part of it.
Our experience has already taught us a lot of things about how
people can come together, talk, interchange, do business, and
remain friends; that is ongoing.
The WELL constantly.
they 1 re doing.

We have a lot of people who use

It becomes more and more important to what

I'm not a regulatory expert.

We are straddling

regular telephone use and what they call "enhanced services."

I

really see us as being a middle ground.
I am very concerned that this whole technology doesn't
become very elitist, where only really well-off people can afford
it.

I am very concerned about that.
We want to keep the price low.

We want to keep doing

what we're doing, and doing a good job at it.

Hopefully, we

won't get steam-rolled in the process.
CHAIRWOMAN MOORE:

You want your industry to continue to

grov1.
MR. COATE:

That's right.

CHAIRWOMAN MOORE:

Let's hear from FreeNet.

I imagine

their concerns will be probably the same as yours.
DR. THOMAS GRUNDNER:

My name is Dr. Thomas Grundner.

am an assistant professor as Case Western Reserve University in

64

I

Cleveland and director of the Cleveland FreeNet project, the
nation's first completely open access community computer system.
I am also the executive director of an organization called The
Society for Public Access Computing, a nonprofit organization
devoted to disseminating these community computer systems to
cities all over the country.
I have all sorts of notes and prepared statements to
submit to the Committee.

•

I'm not really sure what to say after

listening to the presentations we had already.
Part of that is because I am coming from a 180 degree
angle from where everyone else is coming from.
selling anything.

We have nothing to sell.

giving away, which is less than $6 an hour.

We are not

What we have, we are
It is cheaper than

that.
CHAIRWOMAN MOORE:

Mrs. Wright did jump on the fact that

it said FreeNet, and she wants to know is it free?
DR. GRUNDNER:

It is.

CHAIRWOMAN MOORE:

She doesn't believe in "free."

She

said, "There is no free lunch."
ASSEMBLYWOMAN WRIGHT:
DR. GRUNDNER:

That's right.

I will go over the details all of the

things that are on the system and so forth.
computer service.

FreeNet is a

If you think of Compuserve and The Source, the

large commercial vendors, as being at one extreme, and
single-line BBS systems (like the one you operate here at the
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Legislature) as being at another extreme, we occupy a
ground.

FreeNet is a multi-user system that has the power and

sophistication of large commercial networks, but it's run local
and has a distinctly

local flavor.

Conceptually, I'd like you to turn your think

away

from the approach being put forth by commercial networks and
think of the problem that was facing this country 100

ago.

In the mid-1800s (most people don't realize), there was
no such thing as the public library.
exist.

The public librar

s didn't

When literacy got high enough and the cost of

got

cheap enough, the concept of a free public library took hold, and
eventually developed into a movement.

Of course,

there

not a city or village in the country that doesn t have a public
library.
In this century, that computer literacy
enough.

high

The cost of the equipment is getting cheap

are going to see a similiar movement for free publ
computer systems into the next century.

I

You
access

would be will

speculate that the public access computer movement go

to
to have

the same impact in the next century as the public library has
on our century.
We have been working for the last four years to develop
the software necessary for public access computers to come
on-line.

We have developed the software for community computer

systems.

We are making the software availab
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to any c

in the

country that wants to start a similiar community computer system,
on a lease basis, for a dollar a year.
about this.

We are being hardnosed

It has to be cash, no check.

The fee involved is a

dollar a year to lease the software necessary to put up the
system.
We opened the Cleveland system in 1986.

We cloned our

first system in the summer of 1987 in Youngstown, Ohio, the
"Youngstown FreeNet," under the terms of this one dollar a year
lease offer.

We have two more systems coming on-line late

winter, early spring.

In Akron, Summit County, will be a system

sponsored by the Summit County government; followed by Miami,
Florida, which will be our first bilingual system.
All together, there are about 35 cities around the
country that are in various stages of bringing FreeNet on-line.
In California, we just formed a committee in the Los
Angeles area that will be bringing on-line a seven-system network
to service the Los Angeles Basin with free public access
community computing.

We haven't even begun our formal

fundraising efforts for this thing.

Last week, we received our

first substantive donation of $10,000 from the Hope Foundation in
Los Angeles, which is going to get us on the road in setting up
these systems.
Francisco area.

We have working groups in the Sausalito-San
Of course, we would like to be on-line

throughout California.
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The potential impact of public access community
computing is potentially profound.

First of all, these systems

open up telecomputing to populations that previously have been
denied access to them.

Clearly, the data we are getting out of

Cleveland and Northeast Ohio, in Youngstown, shows that these
systems are penetrating very deeply into the middle-class, which
opens that whole group of people to the benefits of the
information age.

In fact, when I get back I am meeting with

Superintendent Al Totella of Cleveland Public Schools to design
special programs to throw open these services even further to
Blacks and minority people within the inner city schools of
Cleveland.
CHAIRWOMAN MOORE:

Let me ask you a couple questions, so

we can continue to move the hearing along.
If you had your druthers in terms of regulation, as we
move into the information age, what advise would you
DR. GRUNDNER:
an issue here.
to support.
corr~unity

us?

I don't think regulation is necessarily

I think it is a question of what the state want

I encourage the state to support public access

computer systems in locations around the state.

There

are other issues that could be looked at -- for example, the
state-created databases that currently get sold to commercial
vendors, only

to be resold to the citizens of California.

One of the things that needs to be looked at is making
those database available to your citizenry via a computer.
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CHAIRWOMAN MOORE:

Mrs. Wright, you had your hand up as

soon as he said regulation was not the issue.
ASSEMBLYWOMAN WRIGHT:
here.

You keep saying "free."

"somebody has to pay."

I think there is another issue
I keep saying, in my mind,

You're talking about going into the city

and giving the city access.

You are going to sell them software.

They are going to buy that software for a dollar.
the balance of producing that software?
software for a dollar.

Who pays for

You don't produce

It sounds to me that tax dollars are

involved.
DR. GRUNDNER:

Zero tax dollars are involved in this

project.
ASSEMBLYWOMAN WRIGHT:
DR. GRUNDNER:

Where is the money coming from?

The software was written by staff members

of my project.
ASSEMBLYWOMAN WRIGHT:
DR. GRUNDNER:

But they don't work for free.

The original funding for the project came

from AT&T Information Systems, Bell Telephone, University
Hospital, Case Western Univesity, and a host of very bright
graduate students.

The funding sources for the systems vary

widely from grants and donations, which support the Cleveland
system; to institutional support, in Youngstown and Miami; to
governmental support in the case of Akron Summit County.
The thing that makes the systems work is this:
Everything on the systems is there because there are people in
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the community who are willing to take the time and effort to
operate the system.

So, for example, on the Cleveland system, we

have over 160 "SYSOPS":

doctors, lawyers, veterinarians, space

scientists, hobbyists, all kinds of people.
the handicapped.

People representing

There are a whole raft of people who contribute

their time and talents in a common computerized "pool."
ASSEMBL~JO~~N

Youngstown, Ohio.

WRIGHT:

I'm at home.

I live in

I have to have a computer system?

DR. GRUNDNER:

A terminal or access to one.

ASSEMBLYWOMAN WRIGHT:
"access to your home."

Most of the others are saying,

With your system, I have to have a

computer if I want to get into it from my home?
DR. GRUNDNER:

If you wanted to do it from home, you

would need a computer or dumb terminal; you can access

from

your office or from your school; from the public library, or you
can go -- we are putting two kiosks in shopping malls.
ASSEMBLYWOMAN WRIGHT:
DR. GRUNDNER:

Then there is the cost of the equipment.

ASSEMBLYWOMAN WRIGHT:
equipment.

I want to do it from my home.

So, there is the cost of the

I also have to get software, don't I?

DR. GRUNDNER:

Only the software for your own modem, for

your own equipment.
CHAIRWOMAN MOORE:
lots of discussions.

It is like a huge bulletin board with

I hear you saying that one of the things

that would be helpful would be if more public information was

70

made available over your network, with greater access to
libraries, along with other kinds of information that are found
on your system.

Regulation would not necessarily be the issue.

But there must be some way of keeping these things available
since it is a public service.
DR. GRUNDNER:

It is very much a public service.

It is

something that deserves governmental support at all levels.

It

really gets to the essence of what a democracy is all about, in
terms of the things you can provide your citizenry.
ASSEMBLYMAN LONGSHORE:

This task force that you have in

Los Angeles -- does that also include members from Orange County?
DR. GRUNDNER:

Not at the moment, but the organizing

committee is in the process of expanding.
CHAIRWOMAN MOORE:

They can start their own, because

FreeNet is locally oriented.
DR. GRUNDNER:

The idea is to put a network of seven

systems in the Los Angeles area.

I don't think the final

decision has been made about where, exactly, they are going to be
located.

I know Long Beach is one of them, though that is

notquite in Orange County.
ASSEMBLYMAN LONGSHORE:

I would like one of your cards.

CHAIRWOMA.N MOORE:

Let 1 s hear from Mr. Palozola for

MR. JIM PALOZOLA:

My

ROCKNET.
name is Jim Palozola.

I will try

to make my comments really brief so we can move this along.
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Basically, I represent ROCKNET.
company.

It is a California

Here is some information about it.

company here, in Citrus Heights, in 1985.
50,000 people.

We founded the

We currently serve

I sell my information and/or services to

Compuserve and Quantum Link.

When Houston and this area gets

going, we hope to add them as customers.
I'd like to add that we do our part for the
balance.

We just sold our information service to the Japanese.

We sell rock-and-roll information.

We like to call ourselves,

"The Associated Press" of rock and roll.
conferences.

We have on-line

We've had people like Barry Manolow, rock stars,

come in live and interact with our audience

We have a bulletin

board -- message board service that is really active.
I have been involved in the on-line industry,
awhile, as a consultant.

I consulted with the Sierra Club and

several nonprofit groups on the political advantages of
mobilizing their constituency through this type of

I

worked as a consultant with the Electronic University, and set up
a program with thousands of disabled Californians to continue
their education.
on-line education.

Their corporations refunded the
For several years

tuition for

I have been actively

dealing with people on-line.
I think there are some very strong regulatory issues.
As a businessman in California, I am concerned about some of the
technology that I see here today, very little of which is
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developed in California.

The state of California, paradoxially,

has the best technology on the planet today.
These devices called modems are completely unnecessary.
We need to upgrade the network in the State of California to
allow services like ISDN.

(For Project Victoria, by the way, I

was a consultant on user interface and the types of applications
that people might want.)
Everybody is high and mighty about education.
is used a lot.

That word

But you really don't see that happening with

consumer videotex services.

Unless something is done

regulatorly, I see the "976" fiasco happening all over again.
What we will have is a lot of compu-sex.
I am looking forward to that transparent ubiquitous
network to which all providers, large and small, can have a equal
access.

That is absolutely necessary.

Otherwise, the

information vendors, for economic reasons, will be driven to
provide only the most profitable services which happens to be
compu-sex and lesser issues.
The person who developed television, developed it as an
educational medium.

He committed suicide when he saw the first

of THE BEVERLY HILLBILLIES.

I would like to see a strong

emphasis on how we can make certain that good information (the
information I see a lot on The WELL for example) is distributed
to the people of California.
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We are talking about how much money it is going to cost.
I would like to say, a penny saved in this area is a dollar
burned.

We are going to be behind the eight ball.

world's best telephone system.

We hae the

Unless we do spend the money to

upgrade it and keep ahead, we are going to be second-rate as a
nation.
I

have children, and I want them to have the advantage

of the of educational possibilities that the on-line industry
brings about-; ·-·-- - - - - - - - - - - Every study of education via the computer has shown that
you need a multi-sensory interface with the student.
have that with the limited technology we have here.

You can't
You need

more access, bandwidth, and modems.
We in this state have the potential to lead the world
through this technology and also through the content of the
information.

As a purveyor of information services to

Computserve, Quantum Link, and other people, I known
everybody is after their market share.
given to the content of the information.
important.
information.

Very little attention is
The content is

We in California lead the world in "content"
Look at Hollywood.

Look at the record industry.

Look at the movie industry.

We have all the ingredients here.

Do not follow what the Europeans are doing.
and lead the world!

Instead, take off

This is the best place to do it and we need

to do it here and now.
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I agree with our friend in voice mail.

(Although voice

mail may not be a regulatory issue, from his point of view:

he

doesn't want voice available through Centrex or the phone company
to compete.)

I believe we need to work in conjunction with the

phone company to compete worldwide with the Japanese and others.
We need to unshackle the phone company and let it work with us to
invest in this technology.
CHAIRWOMAN MOORE:

Thank you.
Mrs. Wright?

ASSEMBLYWOMAN WRIGHT:

He was talking about cost, but he

doesn't mention how much his service costs.
MR. PALOZOLA:

My service's price is up to the various

providers, whether it is on Guinness's service or whereever.

It

depends upon whom we sell it to.
ASSEMBLYWOMAN WRIGHT:
MR. PALOZOLA:

That's correct.

CHAIRWOMAN MOORE:
MR. PALOZOLA:

You piggyback on his service?

He is like a wholesaler, Mrs. Wright.

Our percentages are so low, it is very

difficult to develop quality information.
are on a "prestart."
providers.
manpower.

Services like The WELL

We do a lot of work as information

We gather the information and set it up.

We are the

We create jobs and we are hiring people in Citrus

Heights.
CHAIRWOMAN MOORE:
MR. MARK GRAHAM:
to distribute.

Let's hear from Mark Graham.
I have some materials for the sergeant

As you mentioned, my name is Mark Graham, and I'm
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here representing two services:

Peacenet and Econet.

These are

computer base and communication sharing services of the Tides
Foundation, a California nonprofit corporation.
These services represent the largest progressive on-line
community anywhere in the world.
in 30 countries.
California.

We have more than 2,000 users

Approximately 700 of these users are located in

We have been on-line for about a year-and-a-half.

We are growing a rate of 150 new services every month.
We are a small and specialized service.

Our reason for

being is to pursue certain objectives and to enhance the work of
people who are working in certain fields.

For that reason, we

consider ourselves a "purposeful" network.
Our speciality areas as our names suggest, are peace,
environmental, social justice, and human-rights issues.

We work

with a number of advocacy organizations like the Sierra Club,
Physicians for Social Responsibility, Amnesty International,
Greenpeace, and others.
We provide alternative information.
carry any of the standard news services

We currently don't

ike VPI and AP.

We do

provide up-to-date information from the front-line states in
Southern Africa, from journalists who are there.

We carry,

everyday, between five and ten news reports from Greenpeace about
environmental issues and toxic issues.

We carry information on

nuclear weapons testing and the Defense Initiative.
Amnesty International "Urban Action Reports."
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We carry

In this way, we provide distribution mechanism for
individuals and organizations who develop information and want to
make it available to others.

Nearly all of the information on

our systems is available in the public domain.

That is, one can

take the information in their computer, download it, print it out
on a printer and not worry about any copyright problems.
We have recently establish our second host system in
London.

•

This system is fully networked with our system located

in Palo Alto and provides the same resources we have here in
North America to Europeans at approximately the same price.
The price to use the service is $10 per month for a
subscription.

The hourly fees are $5 on evenings and weekends

and $10 in the middle of day, Monday through Friday.
The first hour to use the system each month in the
evenings and weekends is free.

If you use the system for two or

three hours per month, we are cheaper then Compuserve, Dialcom,
The Source, or any of the other commercial networks.
We are working right now to establish two other host
systems, one in Costa Rica.
trip there.

I just returned from an exploratory

We will be installing systems in San Jose, Costa

Rica, as a part towards the peace process, bringing together a
number of Latin American countries.

We are also working to set

up additional host systems in Kenya, to help support national
science there., and in West Germany.

We have been in

negotiations with folks in the Soviet for some time.
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We

currently have a number of Soviet Union users on our host
systems.
What can I say about regulations?
of providing this medium.

We're in the business

We do our best to work with the

information providers to bridge the gap between information
consumers and information providers.
involved.

There is a real cost

For us, a big chunk of providing the information to

the consumers is the communication charge.
dol

figures that I referenced are the actual charges that we

get billed by Telenet.
carr

The five and ten

GTE Telenet is a long distance data

that provides our communications.
was recently a large scare that the FCC was going

to allow the local Bell Operating Companies to increase the
amount
Indeed

charge Telenet to link into the local system.
the prices that are being spoken of coule have doubled

the cost to

end users of our services.

We are concerned that

the price of the communication be kept as low as possible by
enhancing the service.

As Jim mentioned, we need to move to a

digital system, ISDN in the long term.
In the meantime, we shouldn't allow the local Bell
Ope rat

Companies to impose large tariffs on the long distance

cata carriers.
Additionally, I think it is important that we look at
our society and legislative process in this information age, and
to see how we can use these new, developing tools to provide more
resources and services to our constituencies.
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Right now, it is very difficult to get good information
about the legislative process, unless you subscribe to one of the
very expensive legislative services.
approximately $10,000 a year.

On the

~ederal

level', it is

Only large associations and

corporations are able to easily tap into the process of the
Legislature.

It is difficult for the general public to get

access to quality information about the legislative process.

A

lot of information is developed by various legislatures, but it
is not made available through distribution vehicles.

An

important gap could be bridged if the state and the federal
governments took it upon themselves to make the information
available through a number of existing distribution vehicles.
CHAIRWOMAN MOORE:
Grundner.

That is what we heard from Dr.

You're saying that the Legislature needs to modernize

and move itself into the information age in terms of its
distribution of our information.
MR. GRAHAM:

From the perspective of the constituency

being the consumer of the information.
involved in that consumer process.
information?

You should be more

How do you package the

How do you distribute it so that people will

actually and make good use of it?
CHAIRWOMAN MOORE:
with our Capitol Connection.

As you know, we are trying to do that
It is just a modest step.

way of beginning to move into the information age.
lot more needs to be done.
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It is a

Obviously, a

The question I have relates to a statement you made
regarding the need for the telephone companies to continue to
modernize and upgrade their system.

On the other hand, there is

a need to keep the cost of a phonecall low.

Do you have any idea

how we can reconcile that?
MR. GRAHAM:

I am not a specialist in these matters.

However, the numbers I have seen suggest the increased revenue
the operating companies would garner from the taxing of data
communications, as opposed to voice communications, is relatively
insignificant.

There is enough money in the system overall to

optimize the whole system and everyone will benefit.
What we are seeing is a merging of all the various
communications mediums.

In fact, that has been said by other

here.
CHAIRWOMAN MOORE:

You would disagree with one of our

leading consumer representatives who says that the modernization
of the telephone system should be paid for by that those who
benefit.

Traditionally, it has been thought those who benefit

the most have been the large users who have a need for high-speed
data.

It poses a real dilemma.
On one hand,

~f

everyone is to be a part of the network,

you've got to keep the low, so the cost of modernization ought to
be spread amoung everyone.

On the other hand, because it hasn't

been that low and the cost of having a computer has been high,
everyone is not a part of it.

(I am answering my own question as
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I talk and think) -- I guess what you're saying is we have to
plan for the future.

In doing so, we need to take everyone's

interest into consideration.
MR. GRAHAM:

Right.

There are significant savings to be

realized though modernization.

We have seen our cost of

operating the technical side of our business decrease
dramatically just because of an increase in technology.
ASSEMBLYWOMAN WRIGHT:
MR. GRAHAM:

No.

Do you supply the computers?

One can use any kind of a computer and

modem to gain access to our system.

That is not our business.

Our business is to help foster the development of communities and
bridge the gap between the information consumers and providers in
those communities.
CHAIRWOMAN MOORE:

All these things with limited

audiences could have a much broader audience if you had access to
a system such as the one that we heard about from Guinness and
Videotel.

Any of these services can be placed on it giving you

access to a much wider group.

The question is (and we are going

to hear this as we continue to move along) whether the telephone
company should be allowed to provide some of these services, on a
more efficient and wider basis, or how these independent services
are integrated into the telephone network.

When the telephone

companies testify, they are going to know the direction I want to
go.
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MR. GUINNESS:

If IBM and AT&T keep on spending the

money they are spending now on failures, it is going to cost us
more than what we can afford.
CHAIWOMAN MOORE:

They are going to want to defend that.

Assemblyman Farr?
ASSEMBLYMAN FARR:

Mr. Graham, what role did your play

in the BBeyond War Peace conference in which I was fortunate to
be a participant.
MR. GRAHAM:
has approximate

We played a supporting role.

400 accounts with us.

conferences all together.
When

Beyond War

We have about 300

Beyond War has about 30 or 40 of them.

do these sophisticated space bridges, where

they have a number of downlinks and uplinks, a lot of
coordination

s necessary.

electronic mai

They use our conferences and

systems to coordinate a number of geographically

distributed
The people in the various sites were using our system to
coordinate and plan their activities.
of media.

were using telephones.

They were us

electronic mail.

ASSEMBLYMAN FARR:

They were using a number
They were using Telex.

I was approached by a constituent in

Santa Cruz

to offer some of the services you are

providing.

Santa Cruz has a sister city in the Soviet Union.

They want to

up their city school system with the Soviet

school system

electronic pen pals.
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MR. GRAHAM:

A member of my board is on the New

Foundation for Human Survival in the Soviet Union and working
with Dr. Velokoff right now, in setting up pen-pal projects on a
massive scale between our two countries.
ASSEMBLYMAN FARR:

Coulg this constituent get a hold of

you?
MR. GRAHAM:

Sure.

My business card is right there.

ASSEMBLYWOMAN WRIGHT:

On this print out paper, if you

want to win some awards yourself, you ought to begin printing out
these people's names with capitol letters:
MR. GRAHAM:
not case sensitive.
conference names.

Bush, Dole, et al.

That's a technical feature.

The system is

Those happen to be, if you read the context,
The conferences are in lower case.

CHAIRWOMAN MOORE:

Let's hear from Michael McDonald.

MR. MICHAEL MCDONALD:

My name is Michael McDonald.

I

have three pieces of information that I would like distributed.
One is on AIDS-NET.
today.

Another is the statement that I am making

And the third is about promotion of telecommunications

technologies and the risks associated with introducing health
applications with this kind of technology.
First, there is a tremendous value in introducing these
technologies.

For example, during the Chernobyl accident,

electronic technology probably saved us from ten and twenty times
as much fallout through the rapid communication of data.
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With AIDS, we have in a sense a slower moving explosion,
but one that is claiming millions of lives.
What I want to do today is talk about AIDES-NET, which
is a worldwide AIDS research communication system.

In

introducing AIDS-NET, I'll talk a little bit about the MACNET
system on which IDS-NET is resident.

AIDS-NET and MACNET were

designed and developed in California.
I am going to talk about three things today in addition
to AIDS-NET:

California's role in making the United States a

responsible and productive information-based society; and the
health applications of emerging electronic communications; and
the difference between information and wisdom.
California is a bellweather state.

I have chosen to

live and work here not only because of the natural beauty of this
state, but also because we have the availability to affect the
nation and the world from here -- and especially on this issue.
California has been on the forefront of innovation for several
decades; and through its high-tech industry, more than any other
industry, California has been a world leader.
I would urge that we not only look at the introduction
of this technology as a new telephone or some other new device.
There are vast opportunities that come with it, and vast
responsibilities, because we're talking about a shift in the
social ecology of our society.

That is as fundamental a shift as

from agriculture to industry.
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The United States, so far, has been irresponsible with
its policy.

We have actually stifled the growth of these

technologies, with France and Japan really leaping far ahead of
us.
CHAIRWOMAN MOORE:

On that point, tell us what policies

we should be looking at to help and not stifle the growth of this
kind of industry, what we need to be doing in terms of helping
AIDS-NET , and the kind of policy we can develop to have an
impact.
MR. MACDONALD:
applications.

I would like to talk just about health

Here is an application that has vast consequences

for everyone in California and our society.

What would it mean

if we can introduce a system that will allow people to have
access to any kind of health information and decision-making
tools, seven days week, 24 hours a day, in their home, their
workplace, and schools?

What would that mean?

saving of thousands of lives.

It would mean the

It would also mean the saving of

billions of dollars, in California alone, in medical costs.
There are a couple of things I might address in these
terms.

The subsidy issue:

we have to look at support for such a

system not only as a subsidy, but as an investment in our
society.

If, by 1995, we could save close to a billion dollars

in Medi-Cal and Medicare costs, doesn't it make sense for us to
invest now?

If $100 million invested now saves us a billion

dollars five years from now?

We have to consider that very

carefully.
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In terms of regulation, the equity issue is not the only
issue.

We also have vast questions about the quality of

information.

That is a commercial issue for ROCKNET, certainly.

Think of a mother who is trying to make decision in the middle of
the night about her child's health, that is vastly important.
We can provide that kind of service with this medium.

I

think, within a decade, we could reach everyone in California.
CHAIRWOMAN MOORE:

If certain things occur.

What are

those things?
MR. MACDONALD:

One of the big issues is whether the

phone company should be able to offer certain kinds of
technologies.

We've put billions of dollars, probably hundreds

of billions of dollars, into building this network over several
decades.

We have got to use the investment we already have.

not saying that the phone company should do everything.
against them doing everything.
providing information.

I'm

I am

I don't particular want them

Their business is not health care, and I

don't want them making decisions about health care.

I think

health-care professionals should be doing that.
If it means the difference between two years and ten
years to introduce a system so that that mother can make
decisions about the health of her child, I think we have to
consider it very carefully.
CHAIRWONAN MOORE:

You're saying there is a role for the

telephone companies in the new information age?
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MR. MACDONALD:

I think the investment in the phone

company is the public's investment in the network.

I don't want

to waste my dollars or other taxpayers' dollars replicating that.
However, I also don't want the phone company getting in the way
of other information providers and other businesses.
talking about the development of a vast new industry.

We are
That

industry is probably going to be at the center of our economy in
the on-coming decade.

I think we have to be very careful to

guard those opportunities and also to establish regulations or
other mechanisms, professional guidelines, for offering this
information in a responsible way.
CHAIRWOMAN MOORE:

Assemblyman Farr?

ASSEMBLYMAN FARR:

I see the same thing happening in

education technology:

you need a seal of approval for what is

being sold, that it has some quality to it.

The classrooms are

being deluged with "state-of-the-art" technology and
"state-of-the-art" software.

Often, school districts buy them

and then discovery they don't relate to anything that is going
on.

They have them in the classroom, and all they can do is

point to it.
Look what's happening in the the insurance world-particularly with senior citizens who are very, very concerned
about their health care.

They are now getting an insurance

policy every week in the mail, to the point where we found some
fellow with 28 or 30 different health insurance programs, paying
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on every one of them.

They are coming to the Legislature wanting

some controls on these abusive health insurance programs.

How do

we set up a policy that allows the private sector to be as
inventive as possible (which I think we want in California) , but
without people being taken advantage of?
CHAIRWOMAN MOORE:

I think the information that you put

over the network and the information given could be developed to
alert people to problem areas, in terms of advising them to keep
aware of what's going on.
MR. MACDONALD:

I would like to address that.

Put aside

the issues of regulations and subsidy for a second and just look
at the question of infrastructure.

I think that is what we're

talking about, the incredibly complex social organization that is
developing before our eyes.
grow in a wise way?
doesn't matter.

How do we help that infrastructure

Whether you are Republican or Democrat, it

It is a matter of putting in place the

infrastructure that uses existing investment, and then, opening
opportunities for as many players as possible to participate.
CHAIRWOMP~

MOORE:

Mrs. Wright?

ASSEMBLYWOMAN WRIGHT:

I'm just going to say something

to be vicious, and then I will make a statement.

There is a

difference, whether one is Republican or Democrat, because we do
things a little differently.
CHAIRWOMAN MOORE:

There are good guys and bad guys, and

we're the good guys.
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ASSEMBLYWOMAN WRIGHT:
interfere with your business.

Not necessarily, because we would
Do you furnish computers or are

you furnishing the service?
MR. MACDONALD:

To be honest with you, I am not that

interested in offering computers or services.
getting applications to the public.
applications.

I'm interested in

I make my living by creating

More importantly, I'm trying to contribute

something to society and I see this as an incredibly important
leverage point.
ASSEMBLYWOMAN WRIGHT:

Some people here furnish the

computer and the equipment, and also some services.

There are

others here who, when you have a computer of your own and gain
access to the system, would buy your service.
MR. MACDONALD:
financed.

There are many ways it could be

It could be financed through commercials, like

television.

If we do that, and I'm sure we are going to do that

in some form, we have to be very careful.

I don't want the new

interactive technology ending up being a mind-numbing medium like
television.
ASSEMBLYWOMAN WRIGHT:

I understand that.

The whole

thing is that every one of these services still depends upon
telephone lines.
MR. MACDONALD:
other mechanisms

For the time being.

Although, there are

for example, direct broadcast satelite

the

telephone system is going to be in the midst of this for a long
time.
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ASSEMBLYWOMAN WRIGHT:
MR. MACDONALD:

Yes.

They are going to be conduit?
At least part of it.

There are

other potential conduits, pieces of the system.
ASSEMBLYWOMAN WRIGHT:

What you offer here today,

whether it is service or equipment, you have to rely on some one
to transmit it.

There is going to be somebody else involved?

MR. MACDONALD:

Yes.

ASSEMBLYMAN LONGSHORE:

Is he selling a service or is he

selling an idea?
CHAIRWOMAN MOORE:
community.

You do provide a service to the

You develop the application and then you sell it to

someone who uses it.

You may operate it or you may not.

Do you

still operate the AIDS-NET?
MR. MACDONALD:
"page" for AIDS-NET.
application would be:
thing.

Yes, we do.

I can show you the front

To give you an example of what a health
I think as I do this, I should explain one

We haven•t talked about the huge difference between the

"high-end" systems and the "low-end" systems of communication.
think it is very important that we provide equitable access.

I
At

the same time the general public does not need the same
sophisitication as the top researchers who are solving a very
fast epidemic.

The solutions that we put in place have to

consider those differences.
CHAIRWOMAN MOORE:

I think you're right.

This brochure

talks about the applications for which you have used your
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service.

I think you pretty much established that your service

can service a wide variety of audiences, depending on what they
need.
MR. MACDONALD:

In lieu of the on-line video projection,

this will give you a sense of AIDS-NET.

We can talk about some

of the details of the system here.
Basically, we are going into a new era of on-line
systems which we call, "Desk Top Communications."

No longer is

it trying to get into central computers to do computing tasks.
We're not just gathering information for building our own
knowledge basis.

In this era, we're communicating from computer

to computer, data to desk, one AIDS researcher in New York to
another in San Francisco -- building communities of people
on-line.

They now have the capability of sending, almost

instantaneously, any kind of information in graphic or text form.
Very soon, video and audio.

AIDS-NET advantage of this new

desk-top communications.
AIDS-NET forms, so people can communicate on an ongoing
basis about the issues that are evolving in the AIDS epidemic;
these are represented here.

There is a news item that allows

them to keep in touch with late breaking changes, and there are
databases in which they can access state-of-the-art information
in very flexible ways.
In terms of our changing social ecology, the nature of
knowledge is changing.

We are no longer focused just on the
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delivery of information.

We are now focused on how an individual

can build their own knowledge on a local level, and how they go
about sharing that with others.

It means a society in which many

more people are building their own knowledge basis.
CHAIRWO~~N

MOORE:

You are a few steps ahead of us.

are still on the basic delivery of service.

We

Although there are

different kinds of applications, there is a common theme:

how

these things get delivered.

I

We want to be aware of that.

recognize that your services are different, but some of your
problems are shared.

We heard earlier there are some closed

networks, for example of doctors and researchers, who could have
direct on-line discussions regarding important discoveries.

What

are the things that need or should be done to make sure that this
happens, and your system continues to evolve?
MR. MACDONALD:

I would like to recommend that you

consider some of the broader issues surrounding the building of
knowledge, not just the developing of systems.

Because that is

going to be the difference between building an age of wisdom or a
mere information age.
CHAIWOMAN MOORE:
We don't want to have to make those kinds of decisions.

We

want to make sure you have the tools that you need to do your
business in the manner that is needed.

We don't want to get

involved in telling you what to do, but we want to be sure there
are no barriers that keep you from doing what you have to do.
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.r-m.

MACDONALD:

In the health-promotion communications

paper I mention health technologies and risks.

I talk

extensively about regulation in the area of health applications.
Rather than take more time of the Committee, I would have you
refer to that.

I talk about trade issues, application issues,

medical device and health issues.
CHAIRWOMAN MOORE:
part of the hearing.
MR. RAHME:
services.

You written testimony will become

Mr. Rahme?
I think we're seeing today an abundance of

There an abundance of information.

I think what's

missing is the conduit to provide that information to a willing
user on the other end.
groups.

My company has done a lot of focus

We found there are a lot of people interested in

receiving and even, to a certain extent, paying for those
services.

But when we started our business, we found there is no

conduit for us to get to users.
to receive that information.
our own gateway.

The users do not have any device

We embarked on a project to create

Today U.S. Videotel operates its own

user-friendly gateway.

Some of the Bell Operating Companies, as

Judge Greene has provided them, discovered we have the gateway

•

they can use.
We had the luxury of the funds and the know-how to
develop that.
Today we are leasing 5,000 telephone lines from the telephone
company in Houston to deploy our services in the Houston
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community.

Elsewhere, the conduit and the receiving device is

not there.

If we do provide that, I think we can let momentum

take place; the industry will flourish.

People are very creative

in doing the things that they have to do.
CHAIRWOMAN MOORE:

Last on our program, but not least,

we have Dr. Gerald Bennington, X-Press Information Services,
which uses another kind of conduit different from those we heard
from earlier.

Dr Bennington?

DR. GERALD BENNINGTON:

My name is Gerald Bennington.

I'm president of X-Press Information Services.

I am here to wake

you up, because it has been a long day for you.

I'm a little bit

different than the o·t:her people you have talked to.

We are an

information service, primarily, with a cable TV and satellite
base.

We are a partnership of McGraw-Hill Publishing (which owns

Business Week) Tele-Comnmnications, Inc. a large cable company.
We have about 21 employees.

We have been trying to figure out

how to make this information age work.
We have two products.

I'd like to talk to about them

very briefly, and then give you some observations.
The first product is called, X-Press "Exchange."

a. part of basic cable.

In communities '\!.There it's offered, there

is no additional charge per month.

It is right in there with CNN

and SPN which you've probably seen on cable.

Except, this is

information delivered to your personal computer.
on your television set.

It is

It doesn't show

To get access, though there is no
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monthly charge, you have to buy a little hardware and software.
You have to split your cable away from your television set.
There is a little box which interfaces with your computer.
has a sales price of $125.

That

That is the only price you will ever

pay for using X-Press in a read-only mode.
I will come back to the other product in a moment.
We transfer information seven days a week, twenty-four
hours a day.

•

You tell your PC what you're interested in-- "I'm

interested in NFL football"
football.

It stores them away for your reference when you want

to play with them.
what~s

and it captures stories about NFL

The same for stock symbols.

You can find out

going on with press from Russia and Chinwa, unedited,

from Mainland China.
manufactured.)

(Also horoscropes and all the stuff that's

I have run out of things that I can buy at a

reasonable price, in an electronic form, that are even
semi-relevant to this marketJ they're all available via X-Press.
We are at home in the education business.

We are not

interested in getting to businesses and competing with Quotron or
services like that.
We can do a couple of other things.
data files and we can transfer software.

We can transfer

If you had been in

Anaheim in December, you would have seen the first time we did a
software transfer:

we sent a graphics program and cartoons

bounced across the screen.

If you can do it on a computer, we

can deliver it into the home or school.
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This service was inaugurated in the second quarter of
1987.

It is offered on 350 cable systems in the United States,

available to 4 million homes, at no additional charge.
accumulated about 10,000 users in that period.

We have

There are also

subscription service layered on top of that for investors, but
they're not nearly as popular.
I would like to discuss one other thing, because there
seems to have been quite a bit of emphasis on school
applications.
We have a program that we call, "Exchange in the
Schools."

It is a joint effort of X-Press and the local cable

companies.

This year we went into the communities we serve,

where this product is available, and gave 25,000 subscription to
the local schools K through 12 (typically two per school, about
12,500 schools).

We can support IBM and Mcintosh, so they can

typically hook up their school.

Several times a year, we send to

teacher associated with that school a program and back-up
materials about how to use X-Press in their curriculum.

Things

like compare and constrast, what the Russians are saying, or
what's going on at a conference on AIDS, or something of that
nature that is going out over X-Press.
Although the primary service is a broadcast service, we
do support a host of teleconferences which are two-way in nature.
If you want to speak, you can call an answering machine, and we
will enter it on the conference; you can write us a letter; or
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you can log in electronically on an electronic platform as in New
Jersey, much like a bulletin board service.

Those conferences

run all the time.
This really is a different way of delivering services.
We have made a lot of progress and we expect to make a lot more.
A couple of statistics with which you may not be
familiar.

We reach about 4 million homes.

There are about 40

million basic subscribers in the United States.

About 85 percent

of the homes in the United States today could have access to
cable if they so desired.

I'm not trying to sell you a cable

subscription., but I am trying to point out although you have 98
percent who have a telephone, cable is comparable as a delivery
system.
If you look at the traditional conference, it is much
like a discussion with your mother-in-law or your boss.
discussions are asymmetric:
everybody else listening.

The

mostly one person talking and
When you run a conference, even on a

two-way telephone system, 80 percent of the participants in the
conference never speak.

They never contribute.

Enhance a

braodcast delivery method, especially one that is basically free
and costs nothing to serve 80 percent of the people, and it is
an ideal conferencing facility.
I'd like to point out although we are specializing
"entering the information age," we have been in one for some
time.

There are a vast array of information products available

97

today:

books, magazines, newspapers, TV, radio, and two-way

conferencing.

When we think about electronic information service

and the information age, we shouldn't think that we need a
telephone to make it work.

This is not in fact true.

Although

the telephone is a wonderful one-to-one communications vehicle,
it is very expensive as a one-to-many communications vehicle.
That's why those other technologies exist.
satelite paging systems.

That's why we have

That's why we have FM radio services.

'l'hat' s why we have "Discovery Channel" and "Tempo" and the "FNN",
all similiar services.

There are two wires to the home (even

though X-Press is probably the best kept secret in the business).
There are four guidelines for information services.

I

just described one of them, a symmetry in the nature of most of
these products.

There are three others that I use to try to run

my business, which I think wouldn't be totally inappropriate from
a policy point of view.
In the market today, the consumer is getting exactly
what he wants, and soundly rejecting what he doesn't want.

For

business, you have high-value products; you make money with them,
big dollars.

In the consumer market, in spite of focus groups

and everything else, people won't pay, because there isn't a high
impact on their lives from information products.

This age that

we're talking about will not depend upon technology.
certainly be stifled by federal policy and regulation.
going to be driven by informat.ion products.

98

It could
But it is

We have seen some of

them today.

We don't know what those products are.

If we try to

regulate them, specify them today, we are certainly going to
fail.

What we need to have, from a policy point of view, is an

environment in which the consumer can experiment, learn what he
wants, and then respond.
CHAIRWOMAN MOORE:
presentations.
helpful.

Thank you.
Let me thank each of you for your

They have been very informative.

It's been

When we see or hear from you, we get a better idea than

we ever had in abstract terms about the issues you are raising.
Often, once you have finished your presentation, you
will think of something, "Gee, I wish I had said that!"

Why

don't I go around and you give me your
"Gee-I-wish-I-had-said-thatl" closing statement?
MR. COATE:

I want to quickly make one final statement.

In the regulatory part of this debate, there seems to be a
distinction only between two categories between voice
communications and data.

Technically, "data communications" is

the same as a gasoline credit card transaction or a Visa card
transaction.

I think there really ought to be a third category

that gets considered.
doing is "data."

What we and a lot of other people are

But, it talking, too.

I don't think this can

be overlooked.
MR. GRAHAM:

I'd like to note that we will be

redistributing the information on the Capitol Connection and
making it available to others.

We're a welcome recipient of any
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information about the legislative process.

Reciprocally, there

is probably a great deal of specific information on our system
that will be useful to Assembly members.
MR. GUINNESS:

If the

Co~nittee

is concerned with

content and material, it is going to have to educate people on
the use of systems and technology, and license them to use it
properly.

And then, keep on top of what is being done.

If the

Legislature is only concerned about conduit itself, PacBell has
the copper wire out there.

With the new technology that is

becoming available today, transmission is very, very cheap.

If

individual suppliers are forced to do all of their transmission,
facility switching and i:he rest, become major telecommunications
companies, then there is going to be problems of expense.

But,

if each person is allowed to set up their own system through the
existing copper wire, the price will decrease as time goes on.
Thank you.
MR. SCHWEDOCK:

Monopolies have traditionally used

market power to gain control of and have a free hand in the
market.

The thing in our country that has prevented that has

been regulation.
v.Jill happen today.

Without effective regulation, the same thing
We a.s a company are looking for a credible

assurance (and, I underscore credible, because the assurances
that we have had so far have not been) , that the telephone
companies will not be allowed to abuse their monopoly powers in
terms of competing with us in the business.
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We are perfectly

willing to compete with them of a level playing field.

What

we're looking for, from the Legisalture, is that credible
assurance on a level playing field.
CHAIRWOMAN MOORE:
MR. PALOZOLA:
medium.

Take that, Jim Palozola!

In closing:

We have had people announce they are getting married

from being on our service.
this.

we have a very powerful

We need to pay a lot of attention to

We need to let PacBell invest in California and to create

California jobs, to make sure we have the leading edge on
technology in the world and that we maintain that position.
Unshackle PacBell, and let them make it happen.
CHAIRWOMAN MOORE:

That was a rebuttal.

Let's hear from

Gerald Bennington.
DR. BENNINGTON:

My suggestion to you is, you don't have

to give this business away to any one -- the telephone company,
the cable industry or anyone -- to make it work.
forces are working.

It is not broken.

The market

For God's sake, don't try

to fix it.
MR.

~ACDONALD:

I want to commend you on what you're

doing with the Capitol Connection.

I want to suggest that you

can do it better with gateways to all systems.

There is no

reason why every single system can't tap into the Capitol
Connection.

It would provide an example about how to gateway

into a lot of other systems.
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I want an assurance there will be both an informal and
formal economy for information providers in the information age.
If everything is given away for free, then there isn't a place
for people who make their living doing this.
place for people who make their living

There should be a

doing this.

I think it

will improve the quality of the services that are offered.
I think you have to seek, not only equity, in terms of
the reception of information, but also a democratic mechanism for
the production of information.
how information is provided.

This medium changes the nature of
It is not like television, where a

few producers "serve" vast number of consumers.

The beauty of

this is, you could have everybody producing knowledge.
CHAIRWOMAN MOORE:

Some of you have been listening to

what Assemblywoman Wright has been saying.

This hearing is

basically for us to hear -vlhat' s going on, to find out what the
issues are.
make policy.

We don't have to make policy nor are we trying to
We are trying to understand the issues, so that we

can determine whether there is a need for a policy.

We are here

to gather information, so that we can understand what's going on
out there.
MR. MACDONALD:

'J'o stand out of the way is a policy.

Certainly, the world is looking to California to take the lead.
We have been a bellweather on lots of issues, and we are
definitely going to be a bellweather on this issue.
CHAIRWOMA.N MOORE:

Mr. Jim Bald has a question.

102

MR. JIM BALD:

The reason I don't have a name plate is

because I am the minority consultant to this Committee.
is Jim Bald.

I

My name

would like to call to the Members' attention the

analogy between what these people do and what the people named
John Adams, Benjamin Franklin, and Thomas Jefferson were doing
back in early 1700s.

They are electronic pamphleteers,

advertisers, and businessmen.
issue here?

Is there is a First Amendment

As you try to regulate them, are you bumping up

against their freedom of speech?
CHAIRWOMAN MOORE:

I think that's a good question.

However, no one is trying to regulate anybody.

What I would

rather focus on is trying to get you a name plate.
ASSEMBLYMAN FARR:

Mr. Farr?

In light of what you just said:

there is a public policy issue here, and that is, the freedom of
information which is so exciting to hear about today.

If we

bought all of the services being provided, it would cost you $103
a month plus hourly costs.

There is a point at which access to

that information is going to depend on your pocketbook.
CHAIRWOMAN MOORE:
these services.

Everyone is not going to want all

People will choose the services they need.

The real question, Sam, if we want to really get into
this is should people have the opportunity to make that choice?
The only way for them to do that is if access is available to
them.

That is is what we're really talking about.

make sure, as we move into the information, that
information age for everyone?
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How do we
's an

We are going to hear from the telephone companies.

They

are going to close out the program, because they are the gateway.
MR. ROBERT STECKERT:

Madam Chair and members of the

Committee, I appreciate ·the opportunity to be here this
afternoon.

I have a prepared statement which will be made

available to the Committee.
brief.

I

My remarks to you will be very

just want to touch on one point which has come up

several times this afternoon.
From AT&T's point of view, the best way to make
information services available is to do it in a competitive
environment wherever that is possible.

We believe that is the

route to success, great innovation, and so on.

We should

eliminate, wherever possible, regulatory constraints on the
process.
CHAIRWOlflAN MOORE:
etched.

When we say

11

1.'1R. STECKERT:

Your position has been permanently

l>.T~!T,"

we say "competition."

IJet me hasten to add that we recognize

(indeed, it was recognized in the triannuial review), the line of
business restrictions on the Operating Companies.

There are

components of information services that may not be provided
effectively competitively.

Accordingly, AT&T did not oppose

elimination of the line of business restrictions which had kept
the Bell Operating Companies from providing information services.
We recognize, along with a number o:f other parties to
the proceeding, that

those~

restrictions may well have prevented
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the development of information services in this country in the
way they developed in France, Japan and other countries abroad.
We have supported elimination of those restrictions for the
Operating Cmpanies.
Judge Greene, in his September decision, found that the
Operating Companies should be permitted to provide the
transmission gateways for information services.

He is now, as

Commissioner Vial pointed out earlier, trying to define excactly
what that gateway should be.
We believe that, once that process is completed, there
will be a legal framework in place for information services to
flourish in this country.
CHAIRWO.r-1AN 1'-100RE:

So, you fully support AMVOX being

able to provide information services?
MR. STECKERT:

Yes, we do.

CHAIRWOMAN MOORE:

I'm sure that makes them really

happy.
Let's hear from GTE California.
MR. JIM THOMPSON:
today.

Madam Chair, I am glad to be here

I'm Jim Thompson of GTE California.
I have created a best seller which is circulating.

I am

going to give you four or five observations regarding what I have
heard this afternoon, because most of what has been discussed is
already in my

prepared document.
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The success of the information age in California will be
determined by the experimentation that is going to take place in
the next few years.

The vendors in the marketplace will be able

to define accurately ·the ·things \vhat consumers have a need for.
Up until this point in time, the vendors have only been capable
of targetting a small piece of the market, and that is the
business community.

They are just now starting to move into the

educational arena.
As I look down the road 10 years, we've has got to get
to the 80 percent of market that we don't address today, and that
is the masses within the residential community.

We've got to get

to them in several ways.
First of all, information services have to be
economical, but they also have to be functional to meet what the
consumer' priority daily needs.
CHAIRWO~..AN

MOORE:

vle have

SE~en

a couple of ways of how

information services can be distributed on a mass basis.
Obviously, one of the problems has been transmission, in terms of
everybody having access, a computer, and in many instances, a
modem.

We have seen some demonstrations today that tell us that

the question of how we can transmit on a rapid basis, as AT&T
points out, has been resolved.

Still in question is the cost of

that transmission, in terms of making it available to all people.
Here is a potential for competition by the telephone companies
that might knock some of these providers out of the box.
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Local

cable and telephone companies, with their market share and their
captive audiences -- is that equal competition?
to equalize it?

What can be done

What do you see happening along those lines?

MR. THOMPSON:

You have to recognize that the industry

has gone through and is still going through an evolution.

A year

or two down the road, something called, "SS7" will be in place.
That is the backbone network that will give the information
services an opportunity to really expand.
equal access to that backbone network.

The key is to provide

That is where all the

attention is being focused, at the FCC level.

We believe that,

in that arena at the FCC, there should be a consortium of
regulators and telecommunications providers from California,
since we do lead the nation in technology.
We should have the consortium attempt to influence the
direction of the rules that the FCC is going to define.

You're

asking, how should it be stipulated that equal access is
available on a cost effective manner?
level playing field."

Everybody gets to have a

The FCC hearings and guidelines will call

out exactly how that should be done.

We are recommending that we

should participate as a "consortium for California."

PacBell,

GTE, and the regulators would equally share in communicating our
concerns about how information services should be distributed to
the general public.
The technology and the cost of that transport is in the
infrastructure that's here now.

We need not concern ourselves
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with that piece.

We need to concern ourselves with creating the

approach to that technology that allows for universal access and
distribution of information, and the creation of information that
the marketplace wants.
CHAIRWOMAN Iv100RE:

What is missing from your best

seller, is how do we get there?

You're saying, do it by forming

a consortium to discuss it at the federal level.
MR.
of GTE.

~'IACARTHUR

I am from the unregulated side

BOYKINS:

GTE can provide information services through its

deregulated subsidiar.

I am with GTEL, which is the unregulated

arm of GTE California.
My background is application development

in other

words, looking at the applications that integrate various systems
on a sharable common netvrork.
One of the things we have specifically addressed has
been electronic payment services.

GTE has formed a number of

industry groups to look at information and the marketplaces for
information.

These industries segments are state and local

governments, education, financial services.

We are determining

the applications that would require the integration these
services.
'I'he information industry is divided between information
users and information providers:

those who create information

and those who seek access to information via a variety of media.
To bring these communities of interest together, there are
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certain types of applications that must be written and embedded
in switching software and technology, such as ISDN.
provide the intelligence so that

co~~unities

This will

don't have to change

or recreate systems to access mediums whenever another activity
is required.
The value of this type of research can be shown a
specific way by focusing specifically on financial services.
Even if connectivity and access are provided, there are certain

•

functions and features that have to be embedded in applications
to allow these things to take place.

As an example:

when a bank

wants to share information with another bank, there are a common
steps that have to be taken to provide the continuity of a
transaction.

If a telephone company equipment fails or if the

network isn't there, the person standing in front of a ATM or in
a grocery line isn't being served.

An application has to stand

in to take the place of that processor until the network is again
available, so that transaction process can take place.

These

applications are irrelevant to the ownership of the information,
the type of terminal that accesses the network, and but the IBM
NCR processor that actually formulates the transaction; but they
must be embedded in the technology itself.
We have looked at providing the systems that would
integrate common products.
creating the gateway.

We think we are in the forefront of

If we can reduce to a common equation the

connection to 1500 financial institutions and more than 25
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different interchanges, or any number and types of devices
without any changes being forced on either end of that
transaction, then we will truly have a gateway transaction that
for everybody can use.
CHAIRWOMAN MOORE:

In that context, then, would you not

be in competition with ·those systems that we have heard from
today who also talked about being able to put together a number
of people and a number of groups?
MR. BOYKINS:

No.

What we would be doing would be

integrating all of these systems with on a common, sharable
format.

There are still going to be different types of

terminals.
CHAIRWOMAN MOORE:
the services?

Didn't we just hear that from one of

It is exactly the same thing.

You would be in

direct competition with at least two services that we heard from
today who indicat.ed 1:hey have developed integrated systems.
is what you're telling
MR. BOYKINS:

mE~

How

different?

Ours is a software application that says,

if that software is vvritt:en in M.S-DOS or any given type of
application ...
CHAIRWOMAN 1'100RE:

Now, you are talking a language which

I do not understand.
MR. BOYKINS:

If a system is written in a given

architecture, then it: can operate on a

~riven

piece of hardware.

But this is the connectivity issue -- if the transaction goes
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from one medium to another, it has to be transferable via the
telephone company network.
CHAIRWOMAN MOORE:

If you're doing the same thing that

they are doing, you can put barriers up to keep them from being
able to use the network.
MR. BOYKINS:

I think that is the issue.

That is the application side of gateway.

We actually normalize the transaction, make the transaction
appear as though it has a common format.
CHAIRWO~~N

MOORE:

They don't need that.

to plug into the telephone system.
easy thing.

They just want

Mr. Guinness showed us an

You just stick those two plugs in and you can do all

the things just described to me that you took all this time to
study and do.

I'm not trying to be funny.

What I am trying to

get you to see, the very thing that everybody is saying, is that
you are "controlling" (as you just said) their ability to connect
to the system, even if they are in direct competition with you.
What I am concerned about as a policy maker is, how do I keep the
playing field level?

It is not level if you have the say-so as

to whether they can connect to your system.
MR. BOYKINS:

I am providing a way in which each of

those applications can attach to and share the network without
each having to make a significant change in their software or
each end user leaving a new behavior.
CHAIRNOMAN MOORE:

They have already done that.

assurances do we have .•. ?
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What

MR. BOYKINS:

What we found in the industry in working

with these various segments, is that there can be
interconnectivity among these systems and applications.
CHAIRWOMAN MOORE:
don't want to belabor it.
it afterwards.

They have to use your system.

I

Maybe we can talk a little bit about

The real crux is, in getting to the level playing

field, are you going to be as fair and benevolent to someone who
is going after the same piece of pie that you are?

That is what

we're talking about.
MR. BOYKINS:

I understand.

Specifically, in the

financial services industry, there are a number of proprietary
networks that use the telephone companies.

They must use

proprietary networks, because their transactions, formats, and
terminals use different types of protocol.
create the proprietary networks.

Therefore, they

If we can provide the

applications at the gateway that neutralize these application
differences, we're making it easier for an information provider
to provide information and have access.

WE make it cost

effective.
CHAIRWOMAN MOORE:

I understand that part of it.

What

we were talking about, however is that at least two of systemsare
exploiting exactly the same kind of gateway opportunity that you
described.

They would be in direct competition with you if you

provide that service.

If you are just providing transmission,

then there is no problem, as I understand the issue.
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We can come

back to that.

Bob Lee is saying, "Give me my turn," and I want

to do that.
MR. ROBERT LEE:

Madam Chair and Members of the

Committee, as the last speaker this aft.ernoon, it is hard to tell
who is more delighted that it is my turn

me or you!

I am representing Pacific Bell.
vice-president of marketing.

I am the execut.ive

My organization serves our business

and residential customers in California and the carrier market.
But also within my organization is the group that develops
products and services for our company.

Many of these products

and services will enhance the things we have been talking about
in terms of information services.
I'd like to quickly get to the bottom line, with respect
to the issues that has been raised today.

Throughout all of the

presentations, there has some discussion about the important role
the local telephone company can play in terms of bringing the
benefits of information services to California.

But what has not

been commonly held is how far we should go in terms of that role.
I'd like to place our differences on continuum, and
describe for you our spot on the continuum, where we think we
ought to play.
At a minimum, our role would be to do just what we're
doing now.

Stand out of the way, allow the information providers

to develop and create products and services -- just step back.
In that scenario, a year from now, we will have a few more
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information providers in the market, and a few will go out of the
market.

We will not see any significant spark or massive growth

of the information services market in California.

What we will

see is a continuing polarization, in terms of those people who
can use information services and those who can't.
Let me explore that end of the spectrum a little
further.

We heard from some information providers, like

Peacenet, Econet, and AIDS-NET.

Let me compare those services

with another information service product, Emergency 911 service.
Both are information service products.

We were initially

prohibited from offering both of them by the Modified Final
Judgment.

We now have a waiver for Emergency 911 service.

I

think the comparison between Peacenet and Emergency 911
demonstrates the constrast between a service with scale and
momentum and one without, and the impacts they have on the
citizenry of California.
Let me explore the other end of the spectrum:

the

"maximal" view.
CHAIWOMAN MOORE:

I would debate you on that, but the

hour is too late.
MR. LEE:

Maybe we can do that another time.

The

maximal role would have Pacific Bell getting into the information
service business as an information service provider, dealing with
both content and transport.

That would snuff out the creativity

and the power that these information providers demonstrated as
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they talk about the kinds of things they can bring to bear, in
terms of serving Californians.

That is an equally unattractive

alternative for Pacific Bell.
We ought to be somewhere in between.
providing a gateway.

It boils down to

The gateway would be a uniform menu that

allows the user to get into and out of various information
services without having to learn different menus and codes.

This

uniform gateway would provide the user with navigational
assistance to move in and out of various information services.
I don't think that gateway is enough, however.

I don't

think it is enough that we only provide protocol conversion, to
facilitate people's communication with each other using different
types of computers.

I think we need a few magnet applications to

really draw people to information services.

A couple of "magnet

applications" that we believe have scale and would benefit the
consumers are voice mail and the "electronic yellow pages."

We

believe that a couple of magnet applications like that will help
Californians to understand the true value of information services
and allow the industry as a whole to benefit as well.
The magnet application model deals with our concerns
about an information-rich and information-poor dichiotomy.
Unless we are allowed to provide information services that meet
ubiquitous needs, like emergency disaster information or medical
information, we will continue to have some people who can call
the Tymnet's and Tlenet's, various mailbox services, and a large
setment of our population which still has no access.
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CHAIRWOMAN MOORE:

You're saying that, unless you are

able to provide it, there will never be the universal access that
we're looking for.
MR. LEE:

Is that what you're saying?
Yes, to a limited extent.

should provide many information services.

I don't think we

I think that would be

disfunctional to the marketplace and to the customers.

But a few

applications would allow us to kick start the program.
ASSEMBLY~~N

FARR:

You want the cream of the crop.

The

other private vendors can pick up what's left?
MR. LEE:

On the contrary, we want to provide some

services free to all consumers, because unless we do, I don't
think the private vendors will come into it.

Unless we provide a

few free information services to all, the consumers of this state
will not discover the value and attractiveness of information
services.
ASSEMBLYMAN FARR:

What services do you envision as

being provided free?
MR. LEE:
Network Task Force.

We have been talking to the Iintelligent
They really put this notion forward in a

much more powerful way than it was put forth within our business.
One of the areas they suggested, and which I am pursuing with
them, is the field of education.

For example, today, my kids can

bring home an educational program and run it in atheir Apple II
computer.
benefit.

A lot of kids in California's schools don't have that
I believe we can look for opportunities in the
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education and health fields, information services that would be
of use to all Californians.
ubiquitous basis.

And, look to providing them on

It may not be us providing the information.

We may form an alliance with an information provider.

But I

believe that is what we in the industry need.
ASSEMBLYMAN PARR:

In that example, the consumer would

need other equipmen·t in order to get the free use of information.
The consumer would have to go out and invest in more equipment.
MR. LEE:

Not if it was available through the telephone.

Videotex would require terminals.

Audiotex, however, would be

information services that you can get over a telephone equipped
with a Touch-tone pad.
ASSEMBLY~ffiN

MR. LEE:

FARR:

Such as voice mail?

That would be one kind of service.

ASSEMBLYMAN FARR:

Yes.

Where would you make your money if

you gave all of this for free?
MR. LEE:

I initially picture a limited menu o

information services.

That menu might be ten services

ASSEMBLYMAN FARR:
MR. LEE:

Yes.

Will others provide these services?

I was going to get that.

Maybe be two

or three services on that menu might be available either at a low
cost or free to all Californians.
other information services.

Then, there will be eight

Those services will be charged on a

pay-as-you-use basis.
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ASSEMBLYMAN FARR:

It sounds like a cable TV

advertisement, with must-carry channels.
CHAIRWOMAN MOORE:

One issue is the placement, the of

location of the gen services on the menu.

People on other media

pay money for top billing or low billing.

There are a variety of

reasons why the information service people are nervous about
this,.

Again, it limits their opportunities.

If the yellow

pages become "electronic," as a deregulated service they would be
in direct competition with the people who are publishing other
kinds of books.

Also, there are problems with the cost of

advertising, whether one would offer graphics or videotex.
are a lot of public policy issues.

There

Even when we say you are

going to do something free, there will be a cost obviously for
the people to get on the electronic Yellow Pages.
they pay?

How much will

There are competitive questions inherent in this type

of deregulated service.
I agree that there has to be some way to discover and
chart which services are desirable.

The telephone companies

might be the best way to distribute services.

But, these are

things that are going to have to be ironed out in the public
arena.

As Assemblywoman Wright said earlier, nothing is free.

There is a cost attached to every solution.
I agree that here may to be a role for the telco's.
started with a guestion that I don't think I've answered.
pays for the gateway?
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Who

You

ASSEMBLY¥illN FARR:

It seems like there is going to be a

gateway charge that you would levy.
That has not yet been determined.

I'iR.

uncertainly

the cost of the gateway is related to how

robust

lf can be.

robust

can become.

that issue unti
look

Part of the

like~

I

Today, we are discussing how

There will be a tug and war on

we can define just what the gateway is going to

have my vision.

It is a menu that allows a person

very easi

to access the menu, know all the information services

that can be

accE:~ssed,

would fac

and be able to move fluidly among them.

i

We

movement among the various information

providers.
Now

is going to cost depends on the

usefulness of

gateway and how robust it will be.

CHAH'VO!v1AN MOORE
They

Thank you for your presentations.

helpful.
shots.

to have your

MR. STECKERT:

Thank you, Madam Chair.

In closing, the

a balance between the telephone companies'

cha1
o

role and
ss.

in the bus
challenge.

I am going to give you your chances

I

was struclc by

t.he information providers, who are already

That is going to be the real test, the real
it is achievable.
telephone companies.

In France, that balance
France provides the

conduit, the

ssion path, and the gateway, so that

independent.

s can actually furnish the content.
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Exactly,

how that gateway is defined in America is going to be the real
challenge of the future.
MR. THOMPSON:
"balance."

A couple o:E quick words about this

You have to have a balance between the information

providers and transport capabilities to get the servicegoing.
Through all the comments this afternoon has run a
concern for the cost of the access.

The point ought to be made

that the network is evolving (I'm 1:alking now of the
telecommunications network) :
more intelligent.

the network is becoming more and

The access terminal configuration will depend

upon how the gateway is eventually configured.

The access

terminal should significant drop in cost, because it will not
require any intelligence.

It will merely require some memory

capacity and perhaps some rapid interaction capabilities.

That

needs to be thought of as we figure out what roles there are in
this for transporters and providers, in getting universal,
cost-effective distribution for the information age.
MR. BOYKINS:

In summary, these services will be

provided by a number of information providers.

In determining

the type of access needed whether provided by the regulated
telephone companies or those who would compete with regulated
telephone companies, the emphasis should be determined by
information itself.
social product.

Information is a fungible good.

It is a

It is very, very difficult to control.

There is

a certain set of information that obviously is in the public
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good.

We're doing a pilot with the State of California to

provide job information on public terminals.

This Committe and

those who would like to have that type of information available
would want to take a special interest in ensuring that that kind
of information is made allowable to all.
As in any emerging industry, the free hand of economy
will determine what those services should be.

The providers

themselves, in how they structure their prices, how they
structure their service options and so forth, will determine how
those services will eventually emerge.
MR. LEE:
example.

Thank you.

Today, many people have mentioned the Minitel

In that example, the governmental telephone system not

only provided that gateway, but provided a magnet application to
get it off with a big start:
page" service.

that was the electronic "white

We are faced with the same kind of challenge.

Today's hearing called forth a diversity of views and illustrated
the difficulty of gaining convergence among those views.
con~end

I

this Committee for creating this forum where, on an

ongoing basis, we can over time gain convergence to bring the
benefits of the information services to the people of California.
Thank you.
CHAIRWOMAN MOORE:

I thank all of you for your comments.

It has been a very long hearing, only the first of a number of
hearings that we hope to hold in this area.

As you pointed out,

we face a dilemma as regulators and regulatees:
the balance that we heard so much about.
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how to strike

Again, I thank you for your comments.

Thank you for

taking time from your busy schedule to come and talk to us.
that, we are going to adjourn the hearing.
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Plea For the Preservation of Virtual Communities
In support of

by Howard Rheingo!d

To the California legislature Assembly Committee on Utilities and
Commerce

What is a virtual community?
I want to plead for the preservation of a new kind of community that you may never
have encountered before, but which holds great potential for the people of California. Right
now, computer-mediated communities are experimental and esoteric to most people. In a
few years, when high-speed communication networks and inexpensive computers make
virtual communities accessible to larger populations, the results of today's experiments
could prove very usefuL But

communities are fragile and this potential could easily be

endangered by rising costs of access to the telephone network or by restraints on electronic
freedom of expression.
I know that your Committee is dealing with large populations and big players in the
communications world, but I believe that the preservation of today's public
telecommunications experiments -

tiny as they may be today in terms of numbers -

will

have demonstrable benefits to the people of California over the next 10 years. We are at an
early enough stage in the development of the latest and most powerful communications
revolution to take a look at the way it ought to go if the maximum social benefits are to be
realized, rather than settling for whatever is left after the big players fight it out. When
ISDN and optical fiber networks bring a tidal wave of information in and out of people's
homes and offices, a great many people might benefit from the lessons learned by some of
today's pioneers.
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Every day, I communicate with several dozen friends and colleagues. I got to know
them because I was attracted to their thoughts and interests, not because they live down the
street from me or work in my office. We exchange information and ideas, learn from one
another, form businesses, engage in political debate, have fun together, and lend each other
a helping hand whenever necessary. I hire some of these people to help me in my writing
and consulting business. Some of them hire me to help in their businesses. We babysit for
each other's kids, comfort each other in times of crisis, and share the trials and tribulations
of our daily lives. It's a real community. The only virtual thing about it is the fact that we
met by means of a computer.
The key idea is that the use of computers as communication devices can make new
communities possible. The first online community was ARP Anet, a research community
sponsored by the Department of Defense. Because the price of desktop computers has
dropped so drastically, and because it is possible to send computer-generated information
over public telephone channels, public versions of online communities have become
possible. "Virtual community" is the name I use for the kind of social entity that can emerge
when people communicate with each other using inexpensive computers and the public
telephone network. We do this by means of computer bulletin board systems- also
known as BBSs.
A BBS is an inexpensive computer that is connected to telephone lines by means of
a device known as a modem; with a computer, modem, and telecommunications software,
anybody can send and receive information to BBS computers. Special programs for these
BBS host computers enable other people to call into the BBS, using their own personal
computers and modems, and leave messages for one another. A more sophisticated system,
employing more powerful (and more expensive) minicomputers as host computers is
known as a computer conferencing (CC) system.
A BBS generally allows only one person to connect with the system at any time,
and has a simple system for posting public notices (hence the "bulletin board" metaphor) or
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sending private mail (known as "E-mail" or "electronic mail") to other users. There are
thousands of BBSs operating in California. Most of them are special-interest boards for
enthusiasts of IBMs or Macintoshes or computer-based games or various political causes.
The number of different special interests that use BBSs runs into the hundreds. Some of
them constitute in-house electronic communication systems for small businesses or public
service groups. Some of them serve the needs of innovative educators. Many of them are in
the bedrooms of teenagers. A BBS is inherently a populist medium- if you don't like the
ones in your neighborhood, you can easily start your own.
CCs enable many more people to connect with the system at any one time, and
allow for online publishing of long texts and more complex forms of communication such
as the structured discussions known as "conferences." BBSs are far less expensive to set
up- a couple hundred dollars rather than tens of thousands -

so CCs are much more rare

than BBSs. The largest CCs run on expensive mainframe computers, and the conferencing
aspect is part of a larger package of services. There are several major national CCs Compuserve, the Source, Genie, Quantum Link and Bix, for example. The customers
number in the hundreds of thousands.
Regional conferencing systems fit into the gap between local BBSs and national
information utilities. A few years ago, it took hundreds of thousands of dollars worth of
hardware and software to set up such a system; the costs have dropped drastically, to the
point where it can be done for less than $10,000. This drastic drop in cost has opened up
the entire population to the new medium that was formerly restricted to small elites. While
most non-government conferencing systems in recent years were restricted to the research
staff of technology-oriented industries or high-level management, a new trend has started in
that past couple of years. People from a variety of backgrounds are beginning to use public
regional teleconferencing systems to create regional online communities. There are three
major public conferencing systems in the San Francisco Bay Area -

the WELL in

Sausalito, Portal in Sunnyvale, and PeaceNet in San Francisco. These regional systems
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also serve as gateways to larger entities that link together BBSs and CCs around the
world.
Networks are loosely organizations of BBSs and CCs that link their respective
populations into contact with one another through the telephone network. The Usenet, for
example, links the Bay Area's public regional conferencing systems with tens of thousands
of computers at universities, defense contractors, and other private-sector corporations.
U senet reaches hundreds of thousands of people all over the world. I'll get back to the
Usenet when I talk about the tremendous intellectual resource we might lose if these
thinkers can no longer afford to share their thoughts in open forums and communicate
privately through electronic mail.
When a BBS or CC is in your home town, and all you need to do is make a local
telephone call, you don't have to worry about your bills. But a great deal of the charm and
power of computer-mediated communication is the way it can bring people together over
issues and ideas, even if they live in different parts of the world. One way to send
computer-generated information over the telephone network is by a technique known as
packet-switching. The term refers to the short chunks of information ("packets") that are
routed through the telephone network from the user's computer or terminal to the host
computer.
A third party, sometimes known as a "Value-Added Network" or VAN, provides
the service of transporting users' information to and from host computers. Several largescale packet-switching services- Tymnet, Telenet, PC-Pursuit- allow people with
modems to access remote BBSs or CCs at reasonable cost. It would be impossible for
people to use this medium outside their immediate geographic vicinity if the cost of packetswitching services were to rise drastically, as they might indeed do if the recent proposed
FCC ruling allows telephone companies to collect access charges for connection to longdistance data networks.
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These are the bare technical underpinnings of virtual communities. The community
itself is not a matter of hardware or software, however. The communities are created by
people who use the technology to find like-minded souls, and weave human relationships
from the threads of written conversations that we read on our computer screens. The key
aspect of the technology that empowers community-building is the way BBS and CC
communications allow people to reach across barriers of space, time, age, race, and gender
to find one another on the basis of shared interests and values. This barrier-crossing
power, if properly developed, could yield significant social benefits.
Although this medium, still in its infancy, now is used predominantly (although not
strictly) by white, male, middle class, technically literate "early adapters," these special
characteristics of the computer communication medium could eventually prove very useful
to less affluent, more culturally heterogeneous, less technically-minded populations who
nevertheless have a strong need -

and few resources -

to connect with people and

information to help them with their jobs and lives.
People use electronic bulletin boards and computer conferencing systems to find
information, communicate with institutions, and- most important- interact with other
people. Thousands of pioneers are using this new communications medium to create
knowledge, do business, build communities, and influence public policy. I became
involved in this world of computer-mediated communications several years ago, when I
was researching a book on the history and future of computer technology. I joined the
Whole Earth Lectronic Link (aka "the WELL"), headquartered in Sausalito, in 1985. My
online companions gradually grew in importance to both my professional and personal life.
Ultimately, my involvement with the WELL led me here.
In 1986, when the U.S. Congress Office of Technology Assessment invited me to
contribute a report and join their ongoing panel on "Communication Systems for The
Information Age," I created a conference on the WELL and invited knowledgeable people
to join me. Within a matter of hours, I found that a self-selected volunteer panel of experts

Personal Computers and Telephones Make
New Communities Possible
Libraries

Virtual Communities
connect people with:
•

Other people.

•

Information.

•

Institutions.

Virtual Communities enable people to:
•

Create knowledge.

•

Do business.

•

Build communities.

•

Influence public policy.
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were willing to help educate me and the OTA on what the people who are using, designing,
and building the new technologies think of public policies that affect these tools. In three
weeks, my colleagues were able to produce 300 pages of recommendations, which were
read carefully by OTA staff.
After I finished my report, OTA staff continued to participate in the conference. We
who had been participating in the dialogue decided to keep the conference alive as an open
forum where anybody with an interest in communication systems and public policy could
come to debate issues and learn from one another. Bob Jacobson, principal consultant to
Assembly Member Gwen Moore, was one of the people who joined our online forum,
which is how we met. Bob and I had exchanged views and participated in discussions for
months before we met face to face.

California Can Establish A Position of World Leadership in
Telecommunications Policy
I meet with a couple dozen other OTA panel members and the OTA staff twice a
year in Washington. The panel was chosen from academia, the major telecommunication
corporations, the private sector, and from a very wide range of political perspectives, in an
attempt to broaden the OTA staffs knowledge about issues related to communications
policy. The first thing I learned from my participation in the OTA panel was the first thing
anybody learns when they start dabbling in telecommunication policy issues -that the
future of telecommunication policy is inherently complicated because there are so many
different interests involved.
You can't discuss communication policy without looking at technological, political,
economic, regulatory, and social aspects. Very powerful opposed interests have their own
strong opinions about each of these aspects. And the whole complex of issues is
complicated by the technology, which is changing so rapidly that the Federal policymaking
apparatus is losing the capability of dealing with it. For one example of this accelerated

f~O
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technological mutation, consider the fact that today's typical telecommunication enthusiasm
uses a modem that transmits words, numbers, and even computer programs, at about 1200
bits per second. Optical fiber networks, due to be installed in the late 1990s, will move
information at the rate of millions of bits per second. The price of computing power is also
continuing to drop drastically. You can set yourself up to telecommunicate for less than
$100 today. Five years from now, that price might drop to $50 or less.
The OTA is performing a long-term study of all these complex aspects, and is
taking a long-term look at the effects of the communication revolution, in order to produce
a report for the benefit of policymakers in Congress. It is in everybody's best interest to
inform our national lawmakers about the kinds of communication technologies that lie
ahead, and point out their policy implications. But I have grown convinced that
telecommunications technologies and its social effects are moving too quickly, and there are
simply too many epic conflicts involved in the business applications of these technologies,
for us to hope for a bold national telecommunication policy any time soon.
That is why I think the State of California has a tremendous opportunity. We are in
a position to demonstrate some leadership in this field- on a global and national levelif we could just get our priorities straight and use our resources wisely. I have some
specific ideas about how this might be done, but first I want to briefly present the potential
advantages of preserving and facilitating virtual communities as I've begun to describe
them. While this might seem peripheral to the larger issues of California's communications
future, I think an understanding of today's grass-roots telecommunication experiments
could help plan wisely for the day when hundreds of enthusiasts with modems and
telephone lines are joined by millions of people using the ISDN of the 1990s and the optical
networks of the 21st century.
The potential advantages of virtual communities fall into four categories, each
which I will discuss in tum:

J3/
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•

Political expression

•

Growth of knowledge

•

Community-building tools

•

Leverage for small businesses

In order to summarize the essential characteristics of computer-mediated
communication, I have created the graphic headlined: "Personal Computers And
Telephones Make New Communities Possible," which accompanies this presentation.
Short expansions of each of the bullet categories follow.

Electronic Citizenship and Political Expression
I'm putting this first because all the other benefits of computer-mediated
communications disappear without freedom of expression and because these media will
become increasingly important in the political process itself. At the time of this draft, I
don't know how ACA 36 fared in the State Legislature, but I believe that electronic speech
should have the same protections as any other kind of speech, if the medium is to survive
and grow as a useful forum of community expression. The use of small BBSs and larger
CCs to discuss issues on a community-wide basis, to organize citizens for political action,
to set up new lines of communications between policymakers and constituents, is also in a
pioneering phase. The first results are impressive enough in themselves to warrant a close
look by any group that seeks to understand the nature of this communication medium.
Note that the power of computer-mediated communications, and the increasing
activism of online communicators, was demonstrated on a national level recently when the
FCC proposed a measure that would result in increased fees for users of packet-switching
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networks -

the means by which people now communicate inexpensively with distant

BBSs or CCs. Not only individual telecommunicators, but many libraries and other
organizations voiced their opposition, by the tens of thousands. Dave Hughes and Louis
Jaffee, who operate the Chariot system in Colorado Springs, Colorado, have been
celebrated nationally for their success in using online communities to influence legislation.
Hughes is well known for his use and advocacy of BBSs and CCs as political
instruments. His first demonstration of the power of the medium was when he discovered
that the City Council of Colorado Springs was on the verge of passing an ordinance aimed
at people who conduct business in their homes. Initially intended to meet complaints of
noisy manufacturing operations in suburban neighborhoods, the bill as written would also
have prevented may independent and small businesses operators from going about their
business. Hughes posted the text of the bill on his BBS, wrote a letter to the editor of the
town paper, and invited comment. Hundreds of citizens contacted the BBS, downloaded
and printed the text of the ordinance and the comments, and passed the printouts around.
The City Council was shocked to find its chambers filled with a very wide cross section of
the population in opposition to the bill.
There are many other uses for electronic mail and electronic meetings, in building
any kind of interest-group or public service operation, from soliciting funds and new
members, to advocating positions and organizing for political action. The use of remote
information services and online databases to perform research, the organizational
advantages of electronic mail and computer conferencing, the ability to disseminate timesensitive information quickly to a wide population- all the different uses of the new
media for populist political expression -

are being actively explored by dozens of

pioneers, from all shades of the political spectrum. Those pioneers who have garnered
some successes are only now beginning to teach others. The first handbooks are being
printed and distributed. The knowledge is only beginning to spread, but it is rippling
quickly.

/33
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If this medium is allowed to grow and develop, grassroots political BBSs and CCs

could not only inform the electorate more effectively than the mass media, but could
revitalize citizen participation in government. Mass media have contributed to apathy.
Interactive media can inspire involvement. Nobody who cares about the future of the
democratic process can afford to ignore the potential of interactive telecommunication media
in the hands of the citizenry. Excessive communication access fees or chilling assaults on
the freedom of expression could severely damage or outright kill this budding movement,
however, which is one reason why it is in the public interest in the broadest sense to keep
these small but promising experiments in mind when you are debating the big picture of
telecommunications policy.

Online Communities and the Growth of Knowledge
New technologies make new communication media possible. And new
communication media amplify the growth of knowledge by making it possible for
individuals to gain access to the culture's accumulated body of knowledge. Alphabets,
printing presses, telephone networks, and now computers create communication platforms
upon which we build our scientific and cultural edifices. It is certainly not a new notion that
California and the United States has been experiencing a rapid cultural change as the result
of the emergence of an information-based economy that has been created, in large part, by
the new technologies to emerge from Silicon Valley and other high-tech centers. I would
like to point out that the coming knowledge revolution will involve communication and
interactive exchange of information, rather than the mechanical funneling of words and
numbers from one place to another. Knowledge comes from discourse between minds.
And minds grow by gaining access to knowledge.
We desperately need to find new ways to keep today's proliferating and specializing
knowledge-workers in touch with their fields and one another. Vannevar Bush, Director of
the Office of Scientific Research and Development during World War II, foresaw our
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challenge today when he wrote in 1945 that "The summation of human experience is being
expanded at a prodigious rate, and yet the means we use for threading through the
consequent maze to the momentarily important item is the same as was used in the days of
squarerigged ships."
All this is a preamble to noting the emergence of a new, fragile, and absolutely vital
means of communicating knowledge. The loose association of computer systems known as
U senet already links scholars and researchers at every major university campus in the state
to a complex of bibliographic and full-text databases, and to organized discussions of
several hundred topics. The U senet is also linked, via gateway computers, to parts of the
revamped Arpanet, and to the considerable networks of IBM and DEC. Increasingly, the
goal is being called the Worldnet. The phenomenon is all the more notable because it was
not created by government fiat, as the ARPAnet was, but appears to be a grass-roots
phenomenon, initiated, organized, and maintained by a confederacy of volunteer system
operators. And the people who maintain the system are among the best and brightest
computer and communication specialists in the State. The managers of these systems allow
their computer system administrators to participate in this novel form of organization that
cuts across academic and corporate boundaries, and allow their companies to underwrite
the costs of operating it,because they know what a tremendous knowledge and
communication resource the net has become to their employees.
The computer systems that join the Usenet are those which run the Unix operating
system software first developed at Bell Laboratories and further developed by the
University of California. Until very recently, it cost hundreds of thousands of dollars to
maintain a computer powerful enough to run Unix, so the first systems to participate in the
Usenet were large mainframes and somewhat less powerful minicomputers at universities
and research centers. California is full of high-tech research centers with Unix computers,
so the population of the Usenet is in the tens of thousands in California, among the
hundreds of thousands of users who participate nationwide -and worldwide.
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The underlying principle ofUsenet is based on an inherently decentralized
organization. Every computer system and associated community of users that wishes to
join the network agrees to run a certain software program known as Netnews, and agrees
to store and deliver electronic mail to nearby sites. The WELL, for example, exchanges
mail with Lawrence Livermore, Apple, Hewlett Packard, University of California at
Berkeley, and other nearby sites. These computers automatically call one another at
predetermined intervals. They pass the mail along, and receive mail from sites that are
nearby to them, but remote from the WELL. In a few hops, it is possible to send mail long
distances quickly, using only local telephone calls. The cost of the network is spread out
among the participating systems. Along with regular electronic mail between any one
individual and any other individual on the network, the daily or hourly Netnews feeds also
contain a version of conferences known as "newsgroups." These can range from the
technically arcane to the frivolous, from computer architecture and molecular biology to
movie reviews and political debates.
The Usenet generates about two million bytes of new material every day, which
comes out to thousands of pages of text. The level of technical discourse in just about any
topic is extremely high. Refereed journals are beginning to use the Usenet to call for the
submission of scientific papers. Without any hierarchical organization or centralized
funding, the Usenet has managed to link together many of those people in this state, nation,
and the world who produce an increasingly valuable vital commodity -knowledge. It is
the equivalent of giving construction workers backhoes and piledrivers in place of shovels
and sledgehammers.
The Usenet is an incalculably valuable resource, and it could disappear if cost of
communications was to increase. It doesn't cost much for each computer to run the
Netnews software, so the major cost is the price of telephone calls to transfer news, and it
is here that the system is vulnerable. Even though many people outside academia and
technical fields have never heard of it, the destruction of this new knowledge-
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communication system in its robust infancy would be an enormous blow to scientific,
cultural, and economic progress -

all of which are founded on knowledge, the one form

of wealth that increases when you give it away. It could flourish even more dramatically if
a very low-cost public packet-switching service was to somehow spring into action in
California.
So far, I have been talking about the maintenance of a wonderful infrastructure for
knowledge-workers. But they are far from the only ones who need and could benefit from
access to the kind of information and communications available to networks like Usenet.
All kinds of people in offices, factories, and households could benefit from access to the
Worldnet, just as surely as they benefit from access to public libraries. And this speaks
directly to the concern about the widening gap between the information rich and
information poor, for the best place to concentrate attention on a truly public, widely
accessible knowledge network is an institution that was set up to do this very job -

our

public libraries.
For perspective on this situation, I turned to Steve Cisler, an information-age
librarian based at the Pinole, California public library. Steve is a member of the WELL and
participates in the info conference along with the OTA and Bob Jacobson and others, so it
was natural for me to ask him what he thought. With Steve's permission, here are his
thoughts on the role of libraries in the coming communication/information revolutions:
"There is an electronic ocean of information out there,and each phone company,
packet-switching network and online database company owns prime ocean front property.
They own their own wharves and their own fishing boats. If you want access you have to
buy your way in, or you have to be a member of the club, or you have to have the money.
There are few public wharfs. These are needed because so much of the information in that
ocean was put there at local, state, and federal government expense: census records,
scientific research, medical databases One very important public path to this ocean of
information is the library.
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"The public libraries in this state need to widen the paths, to facilitate the access the
citizens have to information, whether it is commercial or non-commercial. Remember that
people like to visit city and county libraries; more people voluntarily go there them than
any other agency. But as the student and businessperson come to depend on rapid access to
up-to-date information, fewer will use the library if it cannot keep pace with all the
commercial outfits offering more extensive services. If you help widen the paths from the
library to the electronic ocean, the librarian's tradition of knowledge, helpfulness and
service can be offered to many taxpayers, both rich and poor, some of whom have no other
way of getting to that information beachhead.
"The main ways to facilitate this path-widening are to provide more funding for
state library projects, tax incentives for donations of equipment and services to libraries,
and the support for low cost public data networks, using both radio and telephone."

Community-Building Tools -

Today and Tomorrow

First of all, I want to dispel the notion that regional teleconferencing communities
are strictly abstract affairs, consisting of words on a screen. The people I've met and
grown to know on the WELL are my colleagues, my friends, and my family. When I have
a question about parenting, or somebody in my family has a medical problem, or my
computer seems to be broken, or I want to blow off steam about a work situation, I tum to
my virtual community. We help each other in times of crisis, and share joy with each other
in better times. We never would have met if it weren't for that computer in Sausalito, but
out relations extend far deeper than those words stored in the computer's memory. There
are many, partially overlapping communities within the WELL. And other, similar
communities are springing up in Michigan, Massachusetts, Colorado Springs, Portland,
Washington, D.C.
We know that computer conferencing is adaptable to the task of communitybuilding by looking at some of the uses people have found for the medium. And it is worth
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noting that after the technologists and communicators, the first wave of enthusiasts to
embrace public computer conferencing appears to include a disproportionate number of
people directly involved in community-building- teachers, health-care professionals,
non-profit organizations, grassroots political activists.
In the larger sense, entire populations ought to be able to have the benefit of the
leverage community-builders are finding. Who has the time or the wherewithal to find,
much less participate in one's community these days? Online access to community
institutions, computer-mediated special interest groups or topic-oriented BBSs help people
find other people who share their interests and problems. Parents are a community who
could use a home-accessible means of talking about mutual concerns. Retired people are an
enormous, untapped resource - a community waiting for a medium to connect them. The
physically handicapped could literally free themselves from the bonds of their physical
problems and meet people on a mind-to-mind basis.
We know that the price of computers is going to drop dramatically over the next
five, ten, and fifteen years. And the capacity of public communication channels- the
amount of information you can send from one place to another in a unit of time- is going
to increase dramatically. It might be possible, a decade hence, to send your voice, a couple
of still photo-images, some sync-sound video, as well as text- all at the same time. If an
effort is made to keep access costs low, and to provide educators and librarians with the
support necessary to guide people into these new "highways of the mind" as Dave Hughes
calls them, it will be possible to begin bridging the growing gap between information-rich
and information poor. The benefits of computer-mediated communications do not have the
be confined to the ranks of the wealthy or the well-educated. But the popular and populist
growth of this medium is not guaranteed. It isn't something we can assume will happen
automatically when the phone company lays in new wires, or the cost of personal
computers drops low enough. Nobody knows where the answer lies, which is exactly why
we ought to be paying attention to the question of future public-access telecomputing.
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Virtual Communities Offer Leverage For Small Businesses
Cheaper computer communications facilitates small businesses exchanging
information and, according to experts like SRI consultant Tom Mandel, actually results in
the creation of many different kinds of new businesses. Mandel, a futurist who is currently
studying the business impacts and implications of videotex and computer-mediated
communication media, had this to say by way of example, when I asked him about the role
of these media in small businesses:
"EDEN, the New York (Queen's)-based Economic Development Electronic
Network (ajoint venture of the Queens Overall Economic Development Corporation and
Metasystems Design Group, Inc.) EDEN is a new CAUCUS system designed to bring
together local and regional economic development people and local businesspersons."
Mandel also notes that the U.S. Department of Commerce has recently stated that videotex
services, which include the ones I've been discussing here, will be the fastest growing
service industry in the U.S. in 1988.
With the rising costs of moving paper around, electronic mail is becoming
increasingly attractive to small and medium-sized businesses, just as it has proved costeffective for larger businesses. Individual entrepreneurs and small companies can use the
"grapevine effect" of spreading the word through computer networks as a cheap and easy

•

way to advertise services or products. And service-oriented companies can set up BBSs to
help customers, suppliers, and other stakeholders straighten out delivery problems,
trouble-shoot, and perform other communications that not only keep business flowing
smoothly but contribute to the creation of a business community that cooperates as well as
competes.
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Recommendations

•

Establish a broad-based advisory body.
Some sort of advisory body could help focus attention on the need for
forecasting and planning telecommunications policy. The talent available for such a
panel is staggering. A short-term study could reveal much more about the
educational, civic, and economic aspects of telecommunications that I've touched
upon here. Regulatory policies should not infringe upon intellectual leverage.
Legislation should protect, not chill, freedom of expression. Care should be taken
to keep access open to many parts of the community. These important issues are
best approached knowledgeably and early, before they become problems to be
solved rather than opportunities to be exploited. And don't forget to include the
experts you can find online.

•

Encourage a statewide public packet-switching network.
A public packet-switching network is the one technological infrastructure
that could most effectively boost the advancement of telecommunications in
California. It could open up access to millions who had previously been excluded,
it could broaden and deepen the intellectual dialogue, it would boost the
development of associated technologies such as easy-to-use "front ends" for
citizens to use telecommunications services without becoming technical experts.

•

Focus on the role of libraries and librarians.
The technology is going to happen no matter what any of us do. The
number of people who will be able to afford it and the number of people who will
be able to become communications-literate enough to benefit from the new
technology will be almost directly proportionate to the amount of support given to
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information-age librarians. Start by letting them show you what they can do. And
ask them what they need.

•

Protect electronic freedom of speech.

•

Provide funds for libraries as public access and education centers

•

Encourage the spread of information on electronic citizenship

Personal Computers and Telephones Make
New Communities Possible
Libraries

Virtual Communities
connect people with:
•

Other people.

•

Information.

•

Institutions.

Virtual Communities enable people to
•

Create knowledge.

•

Do business.

•

Build communities.

•

Influence public policy.

Howard Rheingold
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I. Executive Summary
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government: about the economics of modern telecommunications: and about services both present
and prospective. together with their implications
for various groups. When the project began, few
members had even the slightest acquaintance with
computers, but learned, and consciously incorporated computer communications and database
applications into the work. Through it alL the
members learned about-and discussed at great
length -a society in transition. From eleven
different perspectives the Task Force forged the
consensus reported below.
Task Force Assumptions. These are the assumptions emerging from the deliberations of the Task
Force and which lay the foundation for comments
to follow:

Today's basic phone service will not be adequate
to meet the needs of tomorrow's consumer. The
concept of universal service must evolve to recognize the need of ordinary residents for information
services to be delivered by an intelligent network.
Information Age technology must be used to
advance social integration and avoid further social
stratification.
If access to advanced services is treated entirely
as a marketplace issue. most citizens will be disenfranchised from the benefits of the Information
Age. Intelligence within the public network.
where the consumer is guaranteed access via a
subsidized rate. will ensure equity: intelligence
limited to the equipment used on the network
would mean elitism.

Privacy is a fundamental right that must be
protected in the evolving telecommunications
system. Just as customers now have a right to
assume their phones are not being tapped. they
have a right to expect that future banking. shopping. or message transactions will be private. and
absent their specific permission. personal information derived from use of the system will neither
be made available to public agencies nor treated
as a product for sale.
Ratepayers have a stake in the future of
California's telecommunication system. and must
have a voice in decisions which affect it. In this

Information Age, telecommunication service is
too important for its consumers to be considered
only as buyers in a marketplace. In fact, ratepayers, like shareholders. have an accrued equity
in the system.
Education has never been more crucial than in
the Information Age. It must be available lifelong.
in schools and colleges, in libraries. at home, and
when appropriate in the workplace. to all Californians. The Intelligent Network can be a major
force in the future success of California education,
and, therefore, its benefits must be available to all.
Services made available via the Intelligent
Network will suggest new economic combinations.
For example, health care monitoring via modern
telecommunication systems should be covered by
health care plans.
Services of the Intelligent Network should be
accessible to people with disabilities. and should
be designed in ways that make their lives easier
and help them participate in society. It must be
recognized there is no single group of "the handicapped:· but that a range of disabilities must be
accommodated.
New telecommunication services can be of great
value to all Californians. but these services must
be seen as reliable. responsive, economically
prudent. and comfortable to use.
The telecommunication system of California
must accommodate the fact that forty percent of
all Mexican and Asian immigrants to America
indicate California as their first choice of residence. Because of California's diversified
economy and well-established ethnic and racial
population groups. Latin American and Asian
immigrants will continue to establish residency in
California at the present rate well into the twentyfirst century.
New telecommunication services should be
accessible and helpful to those who have difficulty
with the English language. While Spanish is the
state's most common non-English language. Californians speak a great many of the world's languages.
The Intelligent Network can encourage
increased citizen participation in the democratic
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..,.. Transmission and routing for such homeoriented services as household security, health
care monitoring, and remote environmental
control;
..,.. Provision for network access by disabled
persons and those not fluent in English;
..,.. As technology advances, such services as
automatic language translation.
Defmition: Universal Service. The Task Force
recognizes that the traditional definition of
Universal Service-affordable access to basic
telephone service for virtually all citizens- is no
longer sufficient.

I. Those responsible for telecommunication
regulat}on should authorize. and Pacific Bell
should build and make available to the people of
California. an Intelligent ~etwork that incorporates the qualities envisioned in the Task Force's
definition .

2. t:niversal Service should be redefined by
regulators and the telecommunication industry to
include access to the Intelligent Network and to a
specific set of essential applications services. as
envisioned in the Task Force ddinition.

J. In order for the benefits of the information age
to be available to virtuallv all Californians in the

•

The Task Force defines Universal Service as
affordable access for virtually all citizens to:
1. The Intelligent Network;
2. A package of specific network applications
services deemed by law or regulation to be
essential in everyday life, and thus included
in the regulated rate base. The makeup of
this set of services will evolve over time, but
the Task Force anticipates that it will include:
..,.. Touch tone service, which is a prerequisite
to many Intelligent Network services;
..,.. Conventional phone service, including
long distance access, access to 911,411, etc.;
..,.. Access to publicly supported information
services (including data bases and public
library services);
..,.. Access to information services integral to
public education;
..,.. The network's provisions for serving
customers not fluent in English;
..,.. Network facilities for persons with
disabilities.
Definition: Lifeline Service. The Task Force
defines Lifeline Service as Universal Service
extended to the economically disadvantaged via
a publicly subsidized rate for which the Lifeline
subscriber receives a basic quantity of access to
the Intelligent Network.
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most dficiem and economical way, Pacific Bell
must design intelligence into the network and
incorporate the most important clements of the
S\..;tem into a redefined Universal Service.

-l. The California Public L'tilities Commission
should form a ioint advisory committee of
Commission staff. Pacific Bell staff. and consumer representatives to discuss rates, regulation,
and cost subsidy issues relative 1<l development of
an Intelligent Network.

5. Telecommunication companies. regulatory
agencic'>. consumers. and legislators. \\orking
together. should de\ i'>e appropriate standards and
techniques to assure system security and protect
user pri\acy. It is recognized there are difficult
is<.;ues and significant costs. hut in a democracy
few things are ultimately more important than the
per<.;onal privaey of the individual.
h. The Intelligent Network ha'> the potential to
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II. Overview of Pacific Bell's
Intelligent Network

In order to understand the Intelligent Network, this
Task Force spent considerable time discussing the
history of the telecommunications industry and
future capabilities. The group feels it is worthwhile
to share some of that discussion with the reader.
POTS, PODS, and PANS. A speeded-up, timelapse view of the American telecommunications
system would show four clear themes, each of
which has overlapping elements of technology and
politics. The themes are:
..,.. The development of the telephone, dating
from Bell's patent in 1876, and the early
evolution of automatic switching; the rise of a
jumble of companies serving different sets of
customers in the same areas .
.... The rise of an integrated national telephone
system-essentially the Bell System-with its
goal of Universal Service, dating from the
Communications Act of 1934.
.... The evolution of digital technology, which first
resulted in vastly improved switching systems,
and then in a virtual merger of the technologies used in telecommunication and computing. Meanwhile, the regulatory structure
continued to insist that telephone companies
must transport information, but not process it .
.... The AT & T divestiture proceeding, announced
in 1982,and the deregulation of many elements
of American telecommunications, with an
explosion in the development of new information products and services.
Since 1876, the telephone system has been equated
with POTS, Plain Old Telephone Service. True,
we have always had telegraphy (which preceded the
telephone by 40 years), and teletype service has
been on the network for many years. From the
1920s, AT &T provided interconnection service to
broadcasting stations. But the crucial service, the
raison d'etre, was POTS.
With the dramatic rise of computing, which began
in the 1950s, the network was adapted for the
exchange of digital signals. Some specific systems,
e.g. Telenet, were optimized for data handling.
Today the transfer of digital information is a major
function of the nation's telecommunication system,
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This view of a telephone system, however, may soon
look painfully old-fashioned.

Services on the horizon. In some ways the value of
America's telecommunication system is just being
explored. As the concept of an Intelligent Network
emerges. new services and new applications appear
ahead. Some of the critical technologies are:

Videotex. During the first half of this decade.
U.S. businesses from the American Can Company
to the Times-Mirror Corporation conducted serious flirtations with home-oriented videotex services in which attractively designed pages of
information would be displayed under viewer control on the family's television set. Among the
best-known trials were those conducted by KnightRidder. Times-Mirror. Time Inc .. AT & T. WarnerAm ex Cable. Cox Cable. and the San Francisco
Chronicle.
None attracted a significant suhscriber base.
Services were peripheral. expensi\e. and hard to
use. All have been \\ithdrawn except for the
Chronicle's "Bay Area Teleguide:· the remnant of a
larger attempt.
Meanwhile. the French have a model (while it is
government subsidized and nationally run 1. which
demonstrates the technological possibilities that
could be available for the U.S. cunsumer.
The French system does not depend on the home
television set: it is built around a new. simple
terminal which includes a small video screen and a
keyboard. This terminal. called a minitel. was
loaned at no charge to phone customers willing to
give up paper directories. It is leased to others for
twelve dollars per month. including maintenance.
The entry level use is for dirN·tory information

sen ice.

ever, there were 1
services on the
network.
more
online every
month. Among
providers were 18 of the
country's 22
newspapers and 161
banks and other financial organizations.

Why is the French system succeeding while the
American system struggles?
., Scale: The French introduced their system in
the course of an upgrade
the telephone
system. The French government made a commitment to large-scale production of the
minitel terminals. and offered them at no
charge to those
to use them
instead of the traditional phone book. They
created instantly a user population large
enough to support development and operation of databases. electronic mail, and chat
services. The
of the economic
efficiencies of a mass market for such technologies cannot be overstated.

., Initial cost to consumers: The American
systems were
based on the AT & T
Sceptre terminal which cost ahout 5900 but
was sold for about ShOO or rented for about 529
per month. in order to encourage use. The
minitel is loaned at no cost or leased at 512 per
month 1523.50 with a color screen l.

., Tie to the household TV set:

mini tel is like
an advanced telephone with a built-in screen.
for one-person use. The
generallvvision set.
television
other family
~

., Billing: The
company's billing
svstem
accommodate billing. both for
ib U\\ n <.;en ieee, and for f hose of other
prm

By mid-ilJkh. l.h million minitcl terminals were in
use. 1.15 million uf them luaned and -l50.000 leased.
It was expected the total would reach 2.5 million by
the end of 19.Sh. and current estimates are in !he
range of .1 million. Forty million calls per month are
generated on the minitel nct\\ork. about half of
them for directory sen icc.
Among the most pupular sen ices are electronk·
mail and electronic chat lines. In mid-19kh how·

bctwet'll

and that
services not
. CompuSene
access. electronic
mail. and user group conferences. A great many
databases sene husine<.;s. the professiuns. and varying numbers
hl)l11C users.
ples of these are

Audiotex
Allows customers to interact with a computer that gives
them synthesized voice prompts.
Voicemail
An audiotex service that allows customers to use their
touchtone telephones to leave and retrieve recorded
messages.
Custom Local Area Signaling Services (CLASS)
A series of call management features that will allow
calls.
customers to do such things as selectively
and identify the calling party by a distinctive ring.
Security Monitoring Services
L<'"""''"' remote monitoring and signaling between a
person·s home or business and local emergency services
Protocol Conversion
This is a service that allows computers-whether the
same or different-to talk to each other.

of
of these ""'"'"'"''""
resolution
supervised access.

Potential Consumer
Applications.
These key technologies make the following
services possible or feasible. Doubtless many
others will emerge as well.
.,. \1edical monitoring of patients at home,
with output transmitted to doctors' offices,
hospitals, or clinics;
.,. \ledical "help buttons" which summon
assistance automatically when patients wish
to call;
.,. Systems to monitor home security and
transmit alarms when necessary;
.,.. :\Jctcr-reading and emergency control of
utilities:
.,. Enhanced 911 systems which could
incorporate a household database concerning medical problems of residents, most
efficient route to the home, a diagram of the
home, etc.;
.,. Access to databases for education,
business, professional research, or personal
interest;
.,. Access to library bibliographic and
referenc~: services;
.,. :\ ccess to "job banks" and similar
employment information;
.,. Special services to imprme access for
the disabled and for those not fluent in
English;
.,. Online tnmsanions. including:
shopping
ing
games
making reservations
banking
lit- Electronic political participation, including:
polling information about candidates, issues,
and positions, roting (with enhanced
security prhacy provisions);
•
rental
software;
.,.. Protocol
among different
personal computer
.,. Prospect of automatic language translation.

voice
announcement:
customers to use their Touch,."''''".""'" messages for
to receive roesthem. Customers
select a
them access to
could be used to
reply to
received
received messages
to other persons, and save messages. Messages
could
sent
telephone number
for the voice
dialing the
intended
number. A special staccato
tone would
customers to
messages
in their mailbox.
Multilingual prompts could be available,
allowing non-English
the system.
the privacy
Before the service may be
granted both
the FCC
Greene, who oversees
turing

service
ment the
interested in
are offering such
Project
plated. one
city of the
home
require their own
developed a
simultaneously
known as
telephone line
tion: two for
speed data
database access,
mission such as
alarm

or

;s7

A successful technology test was conducted in
1986. However, in March 1987 the FCC defmed a
portion of the Project Victoria equipment as customer premise equipment, which Pacific Bell is pro·
hibited from providing under current regulations.
The company has requested a modification of the
ruling.
By one means or another, such a development must
become part of the Intelligent Network if multiple
services are to be offered at prices consumers can
afford.
CLASS: Custom Local Area Signalling Services.
The CLASS development makes possible such
services as display of the calling number when a
customer's phone rings; distinctive ringing for pre~
set numbers; blocking calls from certain numbers;
selective call forwarding; call tracing by the
customer; and automatic callback.
Pacific Bell plans to introduce CLASS features in
California in 1989. Two major issues remain unresolved, however:
• Conflicting demands for privacy. For example,
does a customer have a right to know what
number is calling when the phone rings?
• Customer premise equipment vs. network
services. Some CLASS-type services can be
built into telephones or answering machines
which the company is forbidden to offer.
The Task Force is generally in favor of building
features into the network, so that the greatest
number of people can benefit, rather than requiring
people to purchase special equipment.

III. The Intelligent Network and
the Consumer

Most companies
serious attention to
marketing, and talk a lot about serving customers,
but only shareholders and management have a real
stake. Telecommunication in the Information
Age is too important for that.
Consumers have an important stake in the development of Pacific Bell services. Their interests
are much deeper than the monthly bills which
help finance the cost of system decisions. The
company's services have a central place in their
daily lives. To think of ratepayers simply as retail
customers, people who buy telecommunication
services as they might buy movie tickets, is to
profoundly misunderstand the nature ef telecommunication in the Information Age.
We have long since passed the time when POTS
could be considered a luxury, to be available only
to the few. Indeed, we passed that time when the
concept of Universal Service emerged from the
Communications Act of 1934. Ratepayer investment helped finance the development of the
network. As a regulated monopoly, Pacific Bell
has a responsibility to all, not only to the appropriately affluent. If the company is authorized to
offer premium enhanced services, the benefits of
that permission should accrue to consumers, as
well as to shareholders.
Who is the Consumer? Who will be Pacific Bell's
Information Age customers? The 1980 U.S. census
counted 23.8 million Californians. By 1985, the
population had passed 25 million. In the year 2000,
the state's population will be more than 31 million.
Who are these people'?

In 1980, California had the largest Hispanic
population in the United States: 4.5 million.
California's Black population, 1.8 million, ranked
second in the nation, and there was an Asian
population of 1.3 million.
Between 1985 and 1990, the Hispanic and Asian
populations are expected to grow more than 25
percent. The number of Hispanic households is
expected to rise from 1.5 million to 1.9 million,
while the number of Asian households will
increase from 599,000 to 758,000. In this halfdecade the number of Black households will rise
from 698,000 to 768,000, an increase of 10.1
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While non-Hispanic white ..,_,,.,,.,.
will account
more than
of
in 1990,
rate increase will be the
at 5.9 percent.
By the
century,
California will
as a state in which no
single ethnic group constitutes a majority.
Even within these numbers
is certainly an
who live in many
guages, as a
million Asians in
by
434,000 Chinese; 95,000 Indians, 312,000 Japanese,
191,000 Koreans, 553,000 Filipinos, 183,000 Viet~
namese, and 274,000 rep:res~emm
countries.
65) was
miUion
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CALIFORNIA POPULATION BY ETHNIC GROUP
1980-2000
(THOUSANDS)
PERCENT
OF GROWTH

POPULATION
ETHNIC GROUP

1980

2000

1980-2000

NON HISPANIC WHITE
HISPANIC
BLACK
ASIAN & OTHER

15,764.0
4,544.3
1,783.8
1,575.8

17,731.2
9,606.6
2,368.7
3,190.9

21.3%
54.8%
6.3%
17.5%

TOTAL POPULATION

23,667.9

32,896.8

100%

ETHNIC GROUPS AS % OF TOTAL POPULATION
1980-2000
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cash
than $10,000, but more
than 36 percent of Black families and nearly
percent of Hispanic families are in that category.
A study commissioned
Telephone in
1980, projected that
there will be 9.6
million Californians
physical disabilities,
ranging from minor hearing impairments to
blindness or paralysis.
A substantial number Californians are in school
or college. The state's youngsters-4.3 million of
them-spend their school days 9,500 public
school sites. That school population was nearly
43 percent Hispanic, Black, and Asian in 1980,
and these minorities will be a majority of public
school enrollments by 1990. They face enormous
problems: a third of Black and Hispanic students
enrolled as ninth graders 1979 did not graduate
from high school four years later. In addition to
outmoded and under-maintained physical plants,
educational administrators face a shortage of
100,000 teachers by 1990, with half the state's
students speaking a language other than English,
and an adult illiteracy rate exceeding 35 percent.
Nearly two million
are colleges
and universities, 1.2 million them community
colleges. In 1986, the 19-campus California State
University system
more than 333,000
students, the University
campus system .~ ... ·v•v•
colleges
and others accounted

In the heyday of
unskilled worker
Few such jobs
continues to
Americans are now
occupations. Their
is related to
creating, handling, processing, imparting, or
transmitting information. These jobs require
varying information-related
At the very
least they

....

A graduating engineer can expect his/her up-tothe-minute knowledge base to be out of date in
five years. Without an accessible continuing
education program the effective career of today's
graduate engineer will be very short indeed.
America's Information Society has been called,
perhaps more accurately, a knowledge-intensive
economy. It was probably never wise to believe
the old saying, "What you don't know won't hurt
you:· but to believe it today is to commit economic
suicide.
Meanwhile, virtually most new jobs are being
created by small to medium-sized companies, not
the traditional American giants. Furthermore,
these companies often are removed from the highcost urban centers. With most jobs related to
information, and with information technology
available to connect companies to markets regardless of their respective locations, more companies
are seeking lower costs and better living in smaller
cities. To an increasing degree. the jobs themselves may be done wherever the worker happens
to be. Telecommuting is becoming a common
arrangement in many companies.

A communication-intensive age. While technology
is an aspect of these difficult problems, it should
be recognized also as a major part of the solution.
The Information Age offers remarkable opportunities not only for a great many business interests,
but for the lives of the 27 million Californians
soon to enter the decade of the 90s. A properly
designed Intelligent Network can provide crucial,
pervasive, day-in, day-out benefits in the personal
and working lives of aU citizens: it can strengthen
their education system, facilitate health care,
provide small business opportunities, ease the
problems of the disabled and the elderly, help overcome language barriers, and encourage broader
participation in the life of the community. The
Information Age already has affected employment
patterns, and a broadly accessible Intelligent
Network could have a major positive impact on
the jobs people do and on their work environment.
The first steps are to get beyond the post-divestiture
confusion. think through some of the hazards.
implications. and prospects of the current situation. and consider what could and should
happen next.
The Task Force recognizes this potential is a
business opportunity for Pacific Bell and agrees
the company should take advantage of it. We do
so, not as shareholders. but as stakeholders: the
Intelligent Network. as defined by this Task Force.
would be good for California and Californians.
The divestiture and the traditional residence
customer. To most of the folks at home the
AT &T divestiture proceeding was. to be charitable,
baffling. A system generally said to be the world's
best. was turned upside down. There was no
longer any such thing as The Phone Company.
We had to pick a long distance carrier on penalty
of being assigned one we had never heard of. We
were informed we had to choose our own telephones after a lifetime of understanding the
phone system as an integrated whole. Not only
would the local phone company take no responsibilitv for these instruments. but thev disowned
the ja~ks and wiring which we had thought only
they were able to install.

We were told local phone rates would go up. but
long-distance rates would come down. so a house-
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hold's costs would probably come out even. Local
rates did indeed go up, but a third of us don't use
long distance, even though we're now paying an
access charge for the privilege of being able to do
so. On the other hand, when we look at our
monthly bill we learn a crosstown call seems to
have become a kind of long distance call.
The regulatory commissions, established in law to
be the voice of the public interest, are deciding
whether or not to regulate or to leave matters to
the marketplace. The consumer, recognizing that
a telephone is much more than a home appliance,
often found this new, freewheeling marketplace to
be unsettling.
But looking ahead ... While residence customers
are understandably concerned about the complexities, costs, and uncertainties of the restructured
telecommunications industry, some long-range
prospects and implications- good and bad- begin
to emerge. From a vastly diversified telecommunication industry, riding a wave of technological
change, elements of an Intelligent Network service
appeared. The Task Force has considered some
previously latent threats, such as the potential
hazards of bypass or intrusions on personal privacy; has discussed the pros and cons of telecommuting: and has thought about what an Intelligent
Network can do for specific constituencies .

Telecommuting
The ust: ,)f telecommunications technulo!.(\ to transport information rather than people tu a;ci from the
workplace.

..,._ Bypass. Large
now entirely free
to shop for services and equipment that make the
best bottom-line case, are leaving the public
network and creating
own systems. At first
glance, one might
such a decision of
little importance except to the business and its
phone company. Regulated phone companies,
however, must determine rates
distributing
costs across all customers. Although phone
companies serve a
number of residential
customers, very large
customers account
for much of the company's total revenue. At
Pacific Bell, for
it is reported one
percent of the
customers account for
47 percent of the business revenue. If a large
company leaves the public network (or drastically
reduces its traffic), the practical
is that
everybody else's phone
must go up.
This fact introduces one

dilemmas facing

consumer groups, regulators, and phone companies: if system costs are kept very low, large
businesses will find it advantageous to stay with the
company, but the quality of service may suffer
because not enough is spent on improvements to
the network and basic service; on the other hand, if
service is improved to the point at which costs rise
too much, large customers will find it advantageous
to leave, driving the phone bills of ordinary consumers even higher.
In its deliberations. the Task Force was mindful
of the need for balance and the importance of
retaining major business customers on the Pacific
Bell system. However, the Task Force also believes
there are tremendous economic efficiencies in
digital technologies. The technical efficiences of
digital switching capabilities can have positive
impact for the consumer.
Telecommuting. An increasing number of
information occupations can be pursued wherever the worker has a computer terminaL a
modem. and a telephone. This offers a number
of opportunities for workers and employers:
..,_One can work at home. all or part of the
time, avoiding the time and expense of commuting, while working in comfortable ,familiar
surroundings.
..,_Parents may juggle the problems of child
care more effectively by working at home .
..,_Part time work or job sharing may be more
feasible by providing home .. offices'' or coordinating schedules with colleagues.
..,_Those who find it physically difficult to
commute may find it feasible to work at home.
..,_Companies need not invest in so much
physical ~pace for telecommuting workers.
Perhaps office space can be shared by those
who telecommute.
There are, however. less favorable facets to the
question:
..,_Managers are concerned about supervising
.. invisible"workers. This can lead to such techniques as linking pay directly to computermonitored output. This'·piecework"approach
has already raised the concern of the .. elec-

tronic sweatshop" environment from unions,
women's groups, and workers.
..,_ Some information jobs have become so
portable they have been moved offshore, performed by Third World workers, for much less
than U.S. wages.
..,_Work performed at home may not be so
idyllic. Increased family stress can be a byproduct, and physical proximity to the children
while one is engaged in a demanding job can
be unsatisfactory to job, parent, and
children alike.
..,_Working in isolation may seem desirable until
one tries it. Two of the traditional benefits
of work are socializing with colleagues, and
visibility for promotional opportunities.
Pacific Bell has been a pioneer in providing
telecommuting opportunities. At the company's
request, Jack Nilles of the University of Southern
California recently studied reactions to telecommuting by employees in three companies
including Pacific Bell. All who have participated
in the Pacific Bell program were managers. Nilles
found they viewed telecommuting very positively.
They:
..,_felt they could get more done;
..,_felt they had more control over their lives:
..,_found a decrease in work-related stress:
..,_found they could concentrate better working
at home:
..,_had more discretionary time by avoiding
unproductive travel time:
..,_found family relationships improved.

Two principal negatives were reported, although
neither was ranked as strongly as the positives:
..,_Telecommuters didn't know when to quit.
There are no natural stopping points:
..,_They were concerned about a loss of interaction with colleagues and reduced career
advancement.
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Nilles advises the company to clarify the procedures, expectations, and groundrules for telecommuting. For example. unresolved issues
concerning the selection of people for the
telecommuting program and potential unionmanagement questions. This Task Force also
cautions the company to clearly define the goals
of its telecommute project and to provide adequate
resources and direction. The group advises the
company to include consumer groups, unions.
and women's groups in the discussions formulating
telecommuting policy.

The Joint Comment01:s are concerned that "there
not be allowed to de1·elop in this nation an 'information an:s·tocracy ·whereby the "inf'ormation rich"
hal'e access to a 1ride range of' innm·ati1·e sen·ices.
and the "inlormation poor"are left with nothing
but an antiquated and deteriorating network
barezr adequate e~·en j(Jr ordinw:r l'Oice sen ice·: ..
To limitunil·ersal sen·ice to 1·oice serrice onlr
would be the equil'(llenl ol an earlier age limiting
lhe general public to telegraphy. ll'hile offering
enhanced 1·oice serrices to big busine.1s usen."

*National Consumers Leal!Ue
Black Citizens for a Fair \tedia
Council of Churches of :\cw York Citv
!'Jational Association of State Lnivers-ities &
Land Grant Colkgcs
Nati\'e American Puhlic Broadcastinl! Consortium
National indian Youth Council
"
Office of Communications of th.: Church
Federation of Greater Chica;;o
Consumer Interest Research ln,<;titute
Puhlic Interest Computer Association
National Association for Better Broadcasting

Avoiding an Information Rich/Poor Society. The
Intelligent
will become one of the basic
of the
If it were available
only to affluent customers, the effect would be to
accelerate the
a society in which the
~.cwl~:.c;::. are
and the informathat the
tion poor, with the certain
information poor would be economically poor as
welL The Task
applications of the
Intelligent
must be
to California's
education system and
health care structure.
Its services
by virtually
everybody, but
be especially helpful to the
disabled, the
and those with language
differences.

Transparent Interface
A way of connecting information sen ice provider~ and
equipment to the networks in a way that makes access to
services as easy as possihle for the customer while at
the same time makinl! it caw for information service
providers to reach cu~tomers.

Implications for
California's schools
will spend over S75 million in l9H7 for telecommunication
In addition, they will
spend over $300 million on computer hardware
and software. More than SlOO million will be
used for video
hardware.

As joiru com mentors on DOJ Huber report Filing*

?1

"" Privacy. One of the facts of life in the
Information Age is that telecommunication/
information systems record an enormous amount
of information about individuals. If the benefits
of an Intelligent Network are to be achieved,
people must know that information about them
will be protected from unwanted disclosure. The
Task Force recognizes there are significant costs
and difficult decisions involved in assuring that
the network is secure and that there are adequate
procedures to safeguard personal information. but
such protection is vital both to the consumer and
to the company.
consumers are confident
their privacy will not
violated they will be
reluctant to subscribe to new services.

Those numbers demonstrate that California
schools provide good business opportunities for
telecommunication industries. Impressive as they
may seem. however. they reveal more about the
potential market than about the present situation.
The online capability of most schools consists of
a phone in the principars office and one in the
nurse's office.
The need to restructure and revitalize California's
educational system has been documented
eloquently by many recent reports and studies,
including "A Nation at Risk:· "Who Will Teach Our
Children?" the Carnegie Commission's "A Nation
Prepared: Teachers for the 21st Century:· and most
recently. the PACE report "Conditions of Education
in California. 19R6-HT All of these documents
detail a variety of critical issues that are magnified
in California because of the vast geographical and
cultural scope of the state's educational enterprise.
There is an enormous amount of fundamental
groundwork to be done before the technological
benefits of an Intelligent Network can make a
substantial difference for California's educational
system.
Schools and school districts have an overwhelming
need to communicate with each other. Over 15
million memos and letters are sent every day from
school offices. Federal. state. and district reform
and funding mandates create a paper mill of
outrageous proportions.
The schools have a large stake in the development
of an Intelligent Network. They:
..,.. need improved internal communication and
document-handling systems:
.... must teach California's youngsters the skills
of the Information Age:
..,.. need access to more and better instructional
software. which could be provided on a per-use
basis from network storage much as 976 services
are available now:
..,.. need a transparent hardware interface. so that
their jumble of incompatible systems can work
together:

..,.. could enhance teaching through access
to a variety of databases, ranging from
"encyclopedias" to bibliographic references to
government source documents:
..,.. could make online work part of homework, as
well as classwork.
..,.. need a replacement for outmoded, underfunded and often eliminated libraries.

Beyond K-12 education, the Intelligent Network
may be even more pervasive. Given the short
half-life of technical information and the rapid
changes in many technologies, a typical worker
will need continuing education throughout a
working lifetime. This education must be
available where and when it is feasible for the
adult student: at home. at the public library. on
a college campus, or at the workplace. The
Intelligent Network will be critical to this
development.
Here are some specific agenda items:

..,.. Pacific Bell should actively support infusion of
intelligent network services such as electronic
mail. voice mail. and high speed data transfer
into the California school systems. Intra-office.
inter-district. and home-school applications
should be fully explored.
..,.. Pacific Bell should take a leadership role to
develop fully the delivery of courseware (computer software and instructional video) into the
schools. Network-stored software could be
delivered on the Intelligent Network. and Pacific
Bell could monitor use and handle billing for
software developed by other vendors .
..,.. Pacific Bell should help schools and colleges
explore network access to many databases.
including both commercial services and such
noncommercial possibilities as data and
documents from government agencies. courseware from university systems. and information
from social service agencies.
..,.. Pacific Bell should take the lead in develop-
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ing and offering a transparent interface for
incompatible computer systems .
..,.. Pacific Bell should help educational institutions provide a learning environment that
encourages the use of telecommunication and
information technology. Today\ students are
tomorrow's customers .
..,.. Pacific Bell should assure that Intelligent
Network access is extended to rural areas.
Universal access is critical to success in integrating technology into the curriculum statewide .
..,.. Pacific Bell's corporate !:dYing in education
should he f~Jcused on technology-related
services. e.g. plant upgrades to provide wiring
and phones in classrooms. plus access tn network
databases .
..,.. Pacific Belrs out1each and lobbying activities
should include :-,upport for integrated ekctrunic
learning. both in school site'> and at home.
One brief example of integrating network technology and education needs: Voice Computer
Technologies. of Norcross. Georgia. has
developed a system which has reduced the time
re4uired for student registration at New York's
Suffolk
from three hours tu
call and register online.
using only a touch tone telephone. The company's
VCT
to voice commands
prompts to cue
touchtone keypad~

Implications

*Reported in The Journal. June !YiC. pp. -+2--1.1.

older

The: u!der pupu 1un l'>
. Older people
come from a \ariety of ethnic. cultural. language.
education. work. and financial backgrounds.
Todav even the
age for retirement is in
4uestion. Age
cun:-,idcred appropriate.
but in recent year'> a
number of persons
have retired as early as age )). At the same time
opposition to mandatory retirement and concern
about the future liquidity of
social security
svstem have moved retirement age to as late as age
7C). In the future. a:-,
people are "age~
eligible" to be in the
. and physical vigor

K-12 GRADE ENROLLMENT
1985-1986
LEVEL

TOTAL

ELEMENTARY SCHOOL
SECONDARY SCHOOL

3,342,560
1,449,914

STATE TOTAL

4,792,474

SOURCE California Basic Educational Data System (CBEDS)

FALL ENROLLMENTS
IN CALIFORNIA COLLEGES AND UNIVERSITIES
1986
TOTAL

OTHER PUBLIC INSTITUTIONS

1,223,063
333,424
152,065
188,789
12,091
372

TOTAL

1,909,804

CALIFORNIA COMMUNITY COLLEGES
CALIFORNIA STATE UNIVERSITIES AND COLLEGES
UNIVERSITY OF CALIFORNIA
INDEPENDENT COLLEGES AND UNIVERSITIES*
PRIVATE TWO YEAR COLLEGES

*The data for independent colleges and universities do not include all private institutions.
Reporting enrollment is voluntary so totals reflect only those responding.
SOURCE California Department of Finance, report of total and full-time enrollment in California
institutions of higher education. Fall1986.
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along with the lifespan increases, the pendulum
may swing in the work force to a much later age.
Since enactment of the first Older Americans Act
in 1961, significant improvements have been
made in reducing the poverty associated with aging.
In addition, many of those now retiring are in
better health, better educated and have better
financial resources than their predecessors. With
improvement of the financial capability and health
of younger retirees, marketing specialists point to
the potential buying power of this group. Surveys
of older adults including one by the American
Association of Retired Persons (AARPl and
another by a member of the Task Force show they
are interested in using technology that serves their
needs.
Cost of services is a key issue. While statistics
show the purchasing power of the ··young-old"' has
grown. as time passes retirees' fixed income declines
in ratio to the rise in earnings of those in the
workforce. The combination of leaving the workforce too soon and living longer poses an economic
hazard to fixed income pensioners.
Long term illness can result in poverty for older
adults (see chart). The risk of impoverishment is
a significant issue for companies who wish to
retain this market for their products. The companies who want to participate in this market
should help find ways to reduce this risk. Technological devices that would help the frail elderly
remain in their homes could provide both psychological and economic benefits. Home care costs
less than institutionalization and is preferred by
most people.
Implications for disabled people. Although disabled persons may be identified as a group. their
ranks are as diverse as the general population.
They span all ages, races, language groups, and
the full range of economic levels.

'ICiecommunications Oevices for the Oisabled
Specializeu customer telephone equipment for telephone users with disahilirie-, i.e .. sit'hL sound and
motion impairmenb.

They are diverse, even in their disabilities. No
single service or adaptation of services can meet
all their needs. From a technical and consumer
standpoint, providing services to disabled customers has exciting prospects. Through SB60 the
State of California has declared it a public policy
priority to assure disabled people can use the
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network effectively.
California's Senate Bill 60 (SB60) builds upon
the Telecommunications Devices for the Disabled
(TOO) program, which has operated on the
assumption that providing telecommunication
services to deaf people requires giving them one
standard piece of equipment. While this might
make sense in other circumstances, a personal
computer can serve the function of a TOO and
do countless other things as well. A voucher
system could allow the deaf or hearing-impaired
customer to supplement the cost of the TDD in
order to enhance the intelligence of the telecommunication device to be used.
Most disabled people are interested in technologies
allowing them to move and to compete more
freely in the greater community. Disabled children

should have access to the full range of technologies in their schools- not simply for therapeutic purposes, but for the same programs and
activities that are intended for all children. The
disabled want services that will help conserve
physical resources while performing routine tasks
-like household chores or shopping- so that
energy can be focused on work and recreation.
People without disabilities should try to understand
the mindset of people with handicaps. The disabled will surely be offended if they believe people
perceive Intelligent Network services as aimed
solely at monitoring custodial care or merely
enabling them to work fulltime within the confines
of their home, or if they perceive Pacific Bell as
moving in a paternalistic way, not in partnership,
with the disabled community.
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THE DISABLED POPULATION
IN CALIFORNIA
(PROJECTED 1989)

In serving the disabled,
first priority is to
design as much equipment as possible to be used
by everybody, disabled or not. Adaptations for
should be required only
specific disability
when it is obviously impractical to incorporate
them in facilities intended for universal access.
Implementation
significant input and
leadership from disabled people for designs to be
effective and for the disabled community to take
the program seriously.

Hispanics was $17,465, and for Black households
was $14,819.
Adult illiteracy is a much more severe problem
in minority populations than in the community as
a whole.

II

ARTHRITIS & RHEUMATISM
~ ORTHOPEDIC
E) HEARING
VISION
[!] SPEECH
• ABSENCE MINOR EXTREMITIES
E'LJ PARALYSIS
ABSENCE MAJOR EXTREMITIES

a

m

For many members of ethnic minority groups,
particularly newcomers to the United States, the
language barrier is profound. For them, the
Intelligent Network can be important if it is
designed for use by persons who don't know
English. It can be a revolutionary step forward if
it can incorporate automatic language translation
capabilities.
31.9%
26.1%
20.4%
14.5%
2.4%
2.4%
1.9%
0.4%

TOTAL POPULATION WITH IMPAIRMENTS: 9,627,978

Routing of calls to various language centers could
improve the service and access of persons speaking languages other than English. Multilingual
instructions for voice mail, Victoria services, and
CLASS services could eliminate the frustration of
a growing segment of California society. While
there seems to be little industry work toward
automatic language translation, the Task Force
believes research should be accelerated and such
service should be planned as part of the advanced
network.
While this may seem not to be an auspicious
situation in which to establish a small business,
minority business development is indeed a major
avenue to the future. It can be an important
benefit of the Intelligent Network.

Vol.1., Firing and Associates, 12/16/80. Report commissioned

Implications for ethnic minorities. By 1990 Black,
Hispanic, and Asian children will comprise more
than half of California's school population.
Black and Hispanic high school students have
dangerously high dropout rates, and are represented disproportionately on the low end of the
economic scale. In 1985, California's median
household income was $23,618, but the figure for

In the last decade, the establishment and growth
of independent firms accounted for more than
60 percent of new jobs. Some national studies
indicate all the net gain in the creation of new
jobs is the result of growth in small to mediumsized businesses.
To date, minority-owned businesses have participated modestly in that success. Between 1977 and
1982, the average minority-owned business had
annual sales of $36,600, or one-tenth the all-firm
average of $358,000. It is important for minority
entrepreneurs to learn about the Intelligent
Network in order to use it in two ways:
..,.. To increase the productivity of existing small
businesses;
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..,.. To seek new business opportunities in the
information sector itself. using the network
as a hasic part of the enterprise.
For these minority husiness firms. telecommunications products and computer technology are vitally
important to efficient information management.
Electronic media and related products such as
videotex figure prominently in the array of hardware and software which can force competitive
advantage for a small firm. Often these husinesses

')Q

varying degrees of interest to what other people
are saying. When the time comes to vote, only
about half of us do so.
The network. however, offers the potential for
close. personal interaction with people and issues,
resulting in a kind of Electronic Citizenship. For
example, an individual may discuss ideas with
others from throughout the state or nation on an
elecronic bulletin board or conference, find some
issue on which action is necessary, and then use
bulletin boards. or conferences to refine the issue
further and to attract other individuals to the
cause. Electronic mail. voice mail, and telemarketing techniques could be used to organize
~nd obtain funds locally, disseminate newsletters,
provide legislative updates, and send bulletins
to members.
Videotex networks have already been used for
informal polling, and one may anticipate that,
with proper security and provisions for privacy, an
Intelligent Network can be used for polling and
eventually for voting as well.
1985 AVG.

1986 AVG.

HISPANIC

None of this is truly futuristic, since the principal
techniques are in place today. The difference in
an era of the Intelligent Network is that this sort
of activity could be available to many more people.

in the U.S. based on current population survey.

have low capital for front-end investment so the
importance of a public intelligent network is
paramount to their success and for economic
development in the minority communities.
Implications for electronic citizenship. If democracy depends on citizens wrestling with public
issues and expressing their views. the Intelligent
Network can become an important part of the
political process. At present. most of us are part
of a passive political audience. listening with
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IV. Summary and
Recommendations:

The Task Force believes the Intelligent Network
will be one of the key factors as California grows
into the Information Age. We think it will be
a major advantage for California businesses, and
we believe it should become an integral part of
California's education system.
Most of all-from this group's perspective-it
will be important to the full range of citizens in
California. It will facilitate education and training;
provide access to information; make shopping and
banking more flexible and perhaps less expensive;
make more feasible in-home health care monitoring, alarms, and environmental control systems;
and provide new communication channels via electronic mail, voice mail, and similar services.
We believe the Intelligent Network is an important
business opportunity for Pacific Bell. It can benefit
California and Californians if the company ensures
it reaches the widest possible number of people.
POTS- Plain Old Telephone Service-was a
wonderful development, and it serves all of us
every day. But the Intelligent Network is the
key to the future.
The Task Force believes the widest possible
access to information services is necessary-even
fundamental-part of American life. Already most
of us work in information-related occupations; the
pace of change demands continuous and everimproving education. We now face the real possibility of a society divided between the information
rich and the information poor, with the information
poor precluded from most of the nation's jobs.
Universally available information via the Intelligent
Network represents the potential for a level playing
field for all members of our society.
The Task Force recognizes that creation of this
Intelligent Network will require more than Pacific
Bell's technical and marketing ingenuity. Some elements such as the network provision of videotex
or audiotex, are presently constrained by the provisions of the Modified Final Judgement, FCC
actions such as Computer Inquiry III, and other
policy issues. These restrictions pose a serious
problem to the realization of the Intelligent Network we envision.

Our recommendations are addressed to Pacific Bell,
legislators, regulators, the telecommunications
'industry, and consumers, all of whom contribute
to the debate and policy developments on these
key issues:

I

Recommendation # l:
Those rrsponsible for telecommunication regulation should authorize, and Pacific Bell should build
and make available to the people of California, an
Intelligent :\'etwork which incorporates the qualities em isioned in the Task Force's defmition.
Implications for Universal Service. For half a
century, Universal Service has been a goal of the
U.S. telephone industry and regulatory structure.
The traditional definition of this goal has been
affordable access to basic telephone service for
virtually all citizens.
Over time the goal was achieved. The main
mechanism for achieving it was to keep local phone
rates artificially low by means of internal crosssubsidies, principally from long distance and
business services.
When the industry was restructured with the
AT&T divestiture, the system's internal integration
was displaced and traditional cross-subsidies from
long distance rates were no longer feasible. Local
rates began to rise toward cost, and long distance
rates fell, partly as a result of competition. Some
of the system turbulence was moderated by imposing access charges, but there were fears that large
business customers would bypass the operating companies, and some residential customers would be
forced off the network by increased monthly bills.

tunities for Pacific Bell and for other vendors of
information services who would of course pay the
company for access to its customers.
An economic analysis is beyond the scope of the
Task Force's work, but at first glance it is by no
means clear a universally available Intelligent
Network in a regulated monopoly environment
would necessarily mean a dramatic rise in basic
residence rates.
Recommendation #2:
Universal Service should be redefined by regulators
and the telecommunication industry to include
access to the Intelligent Network and to a specific
set of essential applications services, as envisioned
in the Task Force definition.
It is to be hoped affordability can be maintained
without complex cross-subsidies, but if there arises
a conftict between competing regulatory principles,
the availability of the Intelligent Network is more
important than neatness in accounting.
Lifeline Service. The Task Force defines Lifeline
Service as Universal Service extended to the
economically disadvantaged via a publicly subsidized rate for which the Lifeline subscriber receives
a basic quantity of service.
The Task Force appreciates that California has
been a leader in providing Lifeline service, and
recognizes those who need Lifeline will also need
the core Intelligent Network services.

In spite of increases in local phone bills, Universal
Service was not damaged significantly because
cross-subsidies continue from the intraLATA long
distance traffic and low income subscribers have
been protected by Lifeline Service.

In considering the concept of an "intelligent"
network, the Task Force felt the core question was
both political and technical: should significant
processing power be designed into the network,
or should the network merely transport signals
between users and vendors, with the "intelligence"
located in others' peripheral equipment rather than
within the network?

The Task Force recognizes there are both cost and
revenue implications in its recommendation of a
redefinition of Universal Service. Obviously there
will be significant costs (as well as economies of
scale) in extending the Intelligent Network throughout the service area. However, the availability of
the network also presents clear marketing oppor-

In order to form an opinion on this sensitive issue,
the Task Force followed a line of reasoning that first
discussed the benefits of an intelligent networkhowever provided- and if they would be important
to virtually all Californians. We then discussed
what would be the most efficient and economical
way to see that they are available to all. Results of our
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discussions lead to the following recommendation:
Recommendation #3:
In order for the benefits of the Information Age to
be available to virtually all Californians in the most
efficient and economical way, Pacific Bell must
design the intelligence into the network and
incorporate the most important elements of the
system into a redefined Universal Service.
Rates and the Need for Regulation. In this report
consumers, who historically favor subsidized rates
for basic residential service, are recommending
that Universal Service be radically redefined to
include many new, advanced features. Our scenario
holds some remarkable business opportunities for
Pacific Bell and other companies, and we believe
these opportunities to be in the interest of consumers. While a detailed economic analysis is
beyond the scope of the Task Force, we note that
several factors come into play:
...,. Subsidized charges for Universal Service;
...,. Potentially profitable new markets proposed
by the Task Force for Pacific Bell;
...,. Fees paid by information providers for access
to system subscribers;
...,. Economies of scale in extending the Intelligent Network to all subscribers;
..,.. The prospect still further services which
can be offered at low incrementa! cost to the
company, once the Intelligent Network is in
place and users are familiar with it.

It is by no means obvious, therefore, that additional
"basic" services mean a marked rise in consumer
charges. The capabilities of a ubiquitous intelligent
network should provide substantial new revenues to
Pacific Bell.
This Task Force supports continued regulation of
Pacific Bell by the California Public Utilities
Commission in a way that will maintain sources
of subsidy to assure Universal Service. However,
the members also recognize the need for flexibility
within the process. We do not believe the issue
is one of regulation vs. deregulation, but rather of
a new regulatory process to accommodate the
Information Age needs of the California consumer

4

and the needs for Pacific Bell to compete adequately in a highly competitive industry.
We believe California has the opportunity to
establish a model of regulation that meets the needs
of the Information Age.

I

The Council advises the Company and the CPUC
to analyze carefully the potential of a new regulatory process, and to think in terms of the needs of
tomorrow for the consumers not narrowly on the
telephone uses and definition of today. Basic
services protected under any arrangement must
guarantee access to the intelligent network and
universal service as defined by this group for all
ratepayers. If not, the vision of the information age
potential for this state will be deficient and acce~s
to benefits it can provide will continue to be available to only the privileged few.
A ''safety net" of protection to the consumer from
escalating telephone costs must be guaranteed,
while at the same time participation in the information age is accessible to all Californians.
Presumably, such a scenario will be welcome at
Pacific Bell, but we cannot expect such a reception
elsewhere, as much of the industry has an understandable interest in restricting the Bell Operating
Companies to their historic role as transport systems. The Task Force believes, however, that while
such a position may be good business for some,
it is poor public policy in the Information Age.
We believe the public interest would be served
only by ubiquitous network based processing and
information services. On the other hand, a future
system in which the network is essentially a conduit, dependent upon intelligence at the periphery,
would become an economic and social barrier for
most of our constituents to participate fully in the
benefits of an information based society.
dat
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Assuring Privacy. One of the prime characteristics

of the Intelligent Network is that customers' privacy must be respected and protected. The Task
Force recognizes that in a system which involves
many service providers, privacy cannot be assured
by the operating company alone. We address
Pacific Bell, the regulatory agencies, legislators
and service providers in the following:
Recommendation #5:
Telecommunication companies, regulatory
agencies, consumers, and legislators, working
together, should de\ise appropriate standards and
techniques to assure system security and protect
user privacy. It is recognized they are difficult
issues and significant costs, but in a democracy few
things are ultimately more important than the
personal privacy of the indhidual.
Information technology and work. The Task Force
has noted previously that the Information Age
already has transformed·'the ways in which Americans make a living: most of us are engaged in
information-related work. We can expect many
new businesses to be information industries. The
concept of the Intelligent Network, a system
designed essentially to facilitate information work
and information exchange, suggests remarkable
opportunities for the operating company and its
customers alike.
One of the changes the Intelligent Network will
encourage is that of decentralizing work. Many
people already do all or part of their work at h<?me,
using a computer, modem, and telephone. This
concept of telecommuting is clearly attractive
to many companies and workers, but there are
hazards as well. The Task Force encourages this
trend but cautions that careful thought and planning are required:
Recommendation ·· h:
The lntelli!.!• nt '-.t·!\\Ork has the potential to
hanJ.:P the \\ays in hieh a sulhrantial amount
of llw '-•H:i<'t\ \ \\orh.
done. Pacific Bdl. union!~,
p!~, and ol
appropria inter st
jointlY stw; the implication!~ ,f such
·!,. l'ln
icnf'i a'> ll'l ..·commuting, in
twir undoubted ad,~mtagl''i
hilt: awiding a n1 11-!l' of potential!~ seriou!l pilfalb
and ahu-.e~. -.uch a 'lodal ic,olation. lack of promotahilit~ and oti, rs.
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Education. One of the largest potential opportunities for the Intelligent Network is in public
education. California public education involves
4.3 million elementary-secondary students and
1.7 million college and university students, with
9,500 school sites, 7,500 administrative offices,
and 134 college and university campuses, accounting for a massive share of the annual budgets of
the state and its cities and counties.
The Task Force believes that the Intelligent
Network can and should become an integral part
of the education systems of the State, and that
lifelong learning will take place in schools and
colleges, at home, in public libraries and community centers, and at the workplace.
Recommendation # 7:
Pacific Bell and the leaders of public education
should jointly plan applications of the Intelligent
:"ietwork to enhance education in schools and
colleges, in the workplace, in public libraries and
community centers, and at home. In the Information Age a rising standard of exnllence is required
in education, and there must be an educational
continuum that begins in kinderl.!arten and extends
through one's working life and beyond. The ntelligent ~etwork will he integral to that continuum.
Recommendation #8:
Pacific Bell should expand its expertise in in..,tructional telecommunications applications. A separate entity dedicated to educational applications
and market dnelopment should he formed uti,izing staff with professional experience in education.
Serving All Californians. From a human perspective, one of the greatest virtues of the Intelligent
Network will be its potential for helping people to
overcome personal hurdles such as physical disabilities and language difficulties.
The Intelligent Network can make home-based
health care monitoring systems more feasible, at
great cost savings to patients and to health care
providers and insurers.
In considering service to those with physical disabilities, the emphasis in equipment design should
always be on making it usable by as many people
as possible, rather than on many "custom" designs.
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Nevertheless, the Intelligent Network suggests
many opportunities for the disabled to compete
more effectively in the workforce and to participate
more actively in the life of the community. Access
to the network by the disabled must be a priority.

II

Almost by definition, an Intelligent Network can
provide easier access to those who are not fluent
in English, and that capability will become
increasingly important to Californians in the years
ahead. Synthesized voice prompts for advanced
services can be in many languages, and information
services can be concentrated so that the service
can be made available in many languages. There
has been less progress with automatic language
translation, but that is clearly a crucial future
technology, and the Task Force urges Pacific Bell
and others to press ahead with development.

Recommendation #12:
The Intelligent Network Task Force suggests that
it remain in place to meet with Pacific Bell on
a semi-annual basis to discuss progress on the
recommendations. Additionally, after extensive
first hand experience and discussion of Information
Age issues, we can be effective consumer advocates
before political and regulatory bodies and facilitate
partnerships between the groups we represent.
The recommendations of the Task Force can
represent a "win-win" situation for Pacific Bell and
the citizens of California.

Recomme!Hiation #9:
Pacific Bell, health care providers, and consumt:r
groups should work jointly to de,eJop applications
of tht.· Intelligent :\etwork for in-home health rare
monitoring facilities, emergenry call systems, and
related servkes.
Recommendation # W:
Pacific Bell should assure as the Intelligent
:\etwork evohes there are suitable prmisions for
access by those whose disabilities preclude usc
of "conventional'' facilities. The rompany should
acthely seck ways in '' hich the network can
enhanrc the abilit~ of disabled persons to rompete
in the job market and othem ise participate fully
in the life of the rommunity.
Recommendation #11:
Pacific Bell and its colleague companies should
press ahead with development of automatk languagt.• translatitm and other tedwiqut•s to facilitalt'
use of the Intelligent :\dnork h~ those not flueut
in English.
Pacific Bell must work in concert with consumer
groups if the potential of the intelligent network
is to be realized. Consumers have a stake in the
public policy decisions currently in debate. Discussions with legislators and regulators can be more
effective if coalitions based on mutual trust and
benefit are formed.
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Pacific Bell and its Services
PACIFIC BELL CUSTOMERS
7.6 MILLION RESIDENCE CUSTOMERS
900,000 BUSINESS CUSTOMERS

• Pacific Bell

Pacific Bell is the largest unit of Pacific Telesis,
the regional company that was created at the time
of the AT &T divestiture. Pacific Bell's territory
is most of California, and the company provides
21 million Californians with local and long distance access and related services. The company
addresses three distinct markets:
..,. interexchange (long distance) carriers;

0

Other Phone
Companies (21)

..,. residence customers;
..,. business customers.
Nevada Bell is part of the Pacific Telesis Group.
A subsidiary of Pacific Bell, Pacific Bell Directory,
publishes the white and yellow pages, plus other
specialized directories, in California and Nevada.
Other Pacific Telesis companies provide cellular
phone services (PacTel Cellular), paging (PacTel
Paging), office systems and local area networks
(PacTel InfoSystems), a variety of technical services
(PacTel Spectrum Services), and sales of products
in retail outlets (PacTel Products, a joint venture
with Vodavi Technology Corporation).

•

Pacific Telesis International has business interests
in Great Britain, Japan, South Korea, Spain, and
Thailand.

A

VISION
SAN FRANCISCO PUBLIC LIBRARY
INFORMATION AND KNOWLEDGE CENTER
FOR
THE 21ST CENTURY

AN "INFORMATION AGE 11 FOR EVERYONE?

•

TELECOMMUNICATIONS AND INFORMATION SERVICES IN CALIFORNIA'S
FUTURE
Informational Hearing
February 1, 1988
State c;;apitol
Presented by Ken Dowlin
City Librarian
San Francisco

TijE PUBLIC LIBRARY IN THE INFORMATION AGE

;t1

MISSION

The Mission of the San Francisco Public Library is to serve as
the focal institution in the city for publicly subsidized access
to information and knowledge through:
COLLECTIONS
FACILITIES
TRAINED PROFESSIONALS
A MACRO CATALOG
A NETWORK
STRATEGIC GOAL
The STRATEGIC GOAL of the San Francisco Public Library is to
create the focal institution to meet 90 percent of the public's
subsidized access to information, knowledge, and reading
material; and to participate in networks to meet the other ten
percent.

STRATEGIES

The strategies that will be used to accomplish the Strategic Goal
are:
COLLECTION DEVELOPMENT

•

COMMUNICATIONS DEVELOPMENT

FACILITIES DEVELOPMENT

NETWORK DEVELOPMENT

ORGANIZATION DEVELOPMENT

RESOURCE MANAGEMENT DEVELOPMENT

TECHNOLOGY DEVELOPMENT

In the rush to embrace new technology the traditional resources
contained in a public library tend to be overlooked.
The San
Francisco Public Library has:
OVER 2,000,000 BOOKS
HUNDREDS OF THOUSANDS OF DOCUMENTS
MILLIONS OF PHOTOGRAPHS
THOUSANDS OF PHAMPLETS
THOUSANDS OF VIDEO TAPES
HUNDREDS OF ONLINE DATABASES
AND MAPS, NEWSPAPERS, MUSIC SCORES, FILMS

On the other hand the libraries tend to overlook the community's
need for accurate, timely and understandable information that is
focused on the users specific problem or concern.
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Amin Rahme
Speech to Calif. hearing
Feb 1, 1988
Thank you.

Chairwoman Moore, honorable legislators and officers, ladies and
gentlemen. We are grateful for this opportunity.

As usual, it appears that the State of California is setting the

pace for the nation.

You do so this time by taking action to be

sure your constituency has every opportunity to enjoy the benefits
of the information age -- not only in theory. but in
practice.

That Is the subject of my brief remarks today.

Is the so-called information age real and will it be truly available
to all consumers?

I must say, candidly, that while much information exists - some
say we get too much of the wrong kind -- it often remains beyond
the reach of most Americans because of cost, complications and
other obstacles.

I submit to you today that the Information age is not yet here for
most Americans. We in industry and some in government have
talked about this for years, but it has not happened.

It may be

that the people in this room can make happen what has been

!/3

almost discussed to death.

So you can immediately describe my remarks as a Call to Actionthe same call you make by virtue of these hearings.

No society on earth has more information and services than the
U.S. It has almost become our principal export product. Yet, the
rank-and-file citizen faces significant obstacles in drawing upon
much of this information.

To state it another way: what good is information if you can't get
access to it on a timely, affordable, selective and simple basis?

Permit me to state the problem simply:

I.

The American consumer to date has not been offered a device
that simply and cheaply gives him and her direct access to
information and services.

2.

To date, no network or system is providing a wide range of
affordable services in the mass U.S. market.

3.

To date, no mass market has been created so that the service
and information provider is motivated to develop and offer
such services.

This .... despite earlier predictions that the personal computer

would find its way into most homes and offices. It appears that
less than

percent of the market is using PCs for non business

use.

So,

the vast majority wait this moment for someone to remedy

this situation -- to provide practical means to place these services
literally at our fingertips.

e

-

That is why U.S. Videotel was created

to make use of tremendous existing resources of technology and

information.

That brings me to the French experience -- well worth reviewing.

France now has more than 3.5 million users with terminals that
give them more than 6000 different interactive services, ranging
from entertainment to edutation.

That new information industry

has created 6000 new, permanent jobs; and is growing daily.

Back home, we at U.S. Videotel took some actions:

•

1.

Knowing that enormous amounts of information and services
can be available, we acquired the best technology in today's
world,

including

the

French

minitel

technology,

then

enhanced and adapted it to the U.S. marketplace to enable
the consumer who does not have a PC to gain access to
information -- information and services our industry has
promised for years.

This technology will also help create a

consumer market and encourage those who provide these

services.

2.

We modified this technology to create the videotel network
that is now in place.

It permits the use of a PC or this

simple, inexpensive terminal that plugs into an ordinary
telephone jack, and gives the user immediate ability to
communicate with others, order products, take courses in
school, and even

re~ster

their response to a candidate for

public office, plus many other services

-- all affordable to

most people.

It has been said that the videotel terminal has about the same

intelligence as a microwave oven. That, indeed, is its remarkable
value, because everyone can use a microwave ... and this terminal.

This, then, is my message today: technology is now available that
meets the consumers needs: affordable and easy-to-use devices and
services with tangible value that is also entertaining.

,·.. c.L.Jt-n ·
~,_. ~..J,t-t.·C...

This information age is for the masses and not only for the
affluent. The creation of the mass market is what will cause the

•
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development of new information, and new services that can
enhance communication, education, business development, job
creation and many more benefits.

So here is my call: the technology is available, and more services
are being created daily.

I propose we

get on with the job of

/9{p

making available what already exists. Lets use what we have in
hand. New products and services will come as this industry matures
and grows. We need to give the consumer what we now have. If we
don't, Ladies and Gentlemen, someone else will, and we may be
inviting a new information age that is stamped "Made in Japan."

•

Lets get the job done starting now.

With your permission, Chairwoman Moore, I would like to briefly
show this committee what I have been talking about.

GV-TEN
THE GUINNESS VIDEOPHONE NE1WORK

ounn•as VIDEO
TBLBCOIIMUMICATIOMS IDUCATIOMAL KB'I'WOilK

1. OUJNNI!SS VlDI!OPHONE NETWORK (OV-TEN)

2. GATEWAY TO OTHER NETWORKS
S. VIDEOPHONE OPERATING INSTRUCTIONS
4. NETWORK INFORMATION AND NEWS

5. HOW TO .JOIN THE OV-TEN METWORK

TYPI a lfUMBBil - tMn PRII88 the lllfTIIJl
Copyrlfllt

kef

Corp.

OUlNNESS Is a VIDEOPHONE INFORMATION METWORK
tllat lias been designed for Individuals end families.
OM pert of tile Network (11 above) Is a date bese
eontelnlnc programs end Information ereeted by Ouinness
programmers end eutllors to llelp people meet their
Individual needs.

Another pert of tile Network (U above) eonneets
Videophone users to other estebllslled Networks for
additional servlees end programs.
People will eell OV-TEN on a
rents for SlO per month.
sophlstieeted telephone futures
number storage, diary reminder,

Oulnness Videophone tllat
The Videophone eontelns
eueh as a epeekerphone,
ete.

/~(

OV-ftN
l.

OUDUUI:!IS VIDEOPHONE Kln'WORK

oumm..ma

5 «:ents/mlnute

Information~-

I.

a.

BOTLIMI
Eleetroole OMierlll(
BLI!CTilOJOC LliBIL\JlY

Publlllhlfti/Ref-e

4.

BLI!CTilOmt: TIACHU

5.

OPIKLIRB

ldueatloft Mil O.mes

••

'·

I.

lntrodlletlom
PKISOKAL CRAHNBL

5 eents/mlnute
10 eents/mlnute

tt eents/mlnute

s

eents/mlnute

s

eents/mlnute

'

eents/mlnute

Private Conllllunleatloft
COMIIIImm"f II..LW.I.
RIILI' mliiiGO "''Y-Tmf"

Mo C1w(e

TYPI a mJIIIIDIIt - t1111111 P!UI!IIJ tile IDITU _,.

THE GUIDELINE II 11111 lm~ely qanllled eleetronle dlreetory of prodllets 111\d
""lees for eon~~Umers.
Tile Guideline II prc~~rammed to alJow bualneaes to
enter or C!hilnge their Information at MY time through a Videophone ualftl the
Oulnness simple autllorlftl ~J~tem.
Follow OV-TEN'II dl-lon menua or dlreet
OV-TEN tllfoulh your own key word~.
THE BUYLINE Is a dlreet eleetroole 11'1811 orderlnc and proeesslnc prc~~ram.
Through media advet"tilllftl a bualnns ean promote Its Buyllne eall eode.
Consumers ean enter this eode to order a prodllet, find more Information on the
advertised prodllet, or ieem about other prodllets and ·""lees offered.
THE ELECTRONIC LIBRARY emplofl a llmpie authorllll system that allows
anyone ualnr 11 Videophone to - t e lnrormatloft for the Library et any time.
Videophone users will pey Ul eents pet' minute to view a progTem In the Llbr11ry
end one half of the revll!fluet reeelved will be peld dlreetly to the person or
organlutlon who ereated lt.
THE ELECTRONIC TEACHER -t11ins ~stleated edlleatlonal prc~~rams
produced by Ollinness authors.
Tile Vide<lphoM will llmulate a one to one
dlsell!ISion between the end Ill prof-~ edueator on tubjeets reared to the
sehool currteulum.
Tile Teaehef will expend to lnelude progTams for adult
education.
THE OPENLINE ill a simple ehllt ~~~~m~lee that
eommunieete simultaneously on a ecmmon ehennel.

allows

Videophone

users

to

THE PERSONAL CHANNEL permits VIdeophone -rs to establish their own
private or public mailboxes to eommunleate with family, friends, II!ISoeiates, or
the general publle.
COMMUNITY NEWS enables Individuals, (foups, businesses, ronmment ageneles,
and associations to exprea Ideas, publish important Information, and announce
events thouilh a well O!'fl:anlr.ed publie bulletin board.

WHAT IIAJU!S OUINNI!SS GOOD FOR YOU!

• THROUGH

THE

NEXT

DEVELOPMENT

IN

TELEPHONE

DESIGN

GUINNESS BRINGS YOU A UNIQUE HOME LIBRARY.

•

WITH A VIDEOPHONE YOU CAN HEAR IT, lEE IT, AND PRINT IT
OUT FOR FUTURE USL

•

GV-TEN HAS SOMETHING FOR THE ENTIRE FAMILY.

•

PUBLISH YOUR OWN INFORMATION.

•

SEND

MAIL,

COMMUNICATE

WITH

OTHERS,

OR

PURCHASE

SOMETHING FROM AN ELECTRONIC MAIL ORDER CATALOGUL
•

PROMOTE BUSINESS IDEAS, CREATE YOUR OWN NEWSLETTERS, OR
ENTER A PRODUCT INTO THE ELECTRONIC BUYLINL

•

THE

NETWORK IS PROGRAMMED SO

ANYONE

CAN

USE IT,

BOARDS

LET

AT

ANY TIME, FOR ALMOST ANY REASON.
•

COMMUNITY

NEWS

AND

LOCAL

BULLETIN

YOU

TELL-IT-YOURSELF AND SEE WHAT OTHERS HAVE TO SAY ABOUT
WHAT INTERESTS YOU AT THE MOMENT.
•

THE VIDEOPHONE RENTS FOR $10.00 PER MONTH.

•

USE THE NETWORK FOR AS LOW AS $ CENTS PER MINUTE.

•

A BETTER MEDIUM FOR COMMUNICATING IN A COMPLEX WORLD.
OV-TBN - YOUR BEST CONNBCTJON

GUINNESS VIDEO INFORMATION NETWORK (GV-TEN)
655 Redwood Highway - Suite 220
MIU Valley, CA 94941
(415) 381-0111
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AMVOX

*

A California Corporation

*

Formed February 1987

*

Purpose: Deployment of a low cost nation-wide
telephone answering and voice messaging network.

*

Primary markets: Residential and Small Business

*

Corporate Headquarters in Carpinteria, CA

*

Operations Center in Los Gatos, CA

*

Began operations July 1987

*

Began sales October 1987

*

38 employees (1/31/88)

*

12,000 customers (1/3/1/88)

*

Served States {Operational or Under Construction)
1/31/88 22 - CA, TX, FL, NY, IL, LA, AZ, TN, DC,
MD, WA, GA, AL, MI, PA, UT, WI, OR,
MN, NB, OH, RI, CT.
1/31/89 50

*

*

Served Locations in California
1/31/88 27
1/31/89 68
7/31/89 97
Nation-wide distribution

CALIFORNIA'S STATE POLICY SHOULD NOT BE CONGRUENT
WITH THE CURRENT FEDERAL EXECUTIVE POLICY

The Three Myths Of current Federal Executive Policy

1.

We should deregulate the Bell Operating Companies,
despite the risks to fair competition. We can assure
that they will not abuse their monopoly power.

2.

We should deregulate the Bell Operating Companies
since they are the only ones who can bring the
benefits of information services to the public and
close the "Information Services gap" between the
United States and the rest of the world.

3.

The Bell Operating Companies should not be required
offer new Information Services through structurally
separated subsidiaries because of the resulting loss
of efficiency.

AMVOX PRESENTATION
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CALIFORNIA'S STATE POLICY SHOULD NOT BE CONGRUENT
WITH THE CURRENT FEDERAL EXECUTIVE POLICY

Myth #1: We should deregulate the Bell Operating Companies,
despite the risks to fair competition. We can assure
that they will not abuse their monopoly power.

1.

This position is a total reversal of the position of

the Federal Communications Commission and the Department
of Justice in less than 5 years. The abuse of monopoly
power was a prime motivating force in The Unites States
vs. ATT, Western Electric, et. al. This case resulted in
the Consent Decree which caused the divestiture of the
Bell Operating Companies.

2.

A second, significant, motivating force behind the

Consent Decree, was the admission of the FCC of its
inability to regulate ATT, particularly with respect to
cost allocations and the opportunities for crosssubsidization. This issue is even more complex today,
since the corporate structures of the Regional Bell
Holding Companies have become much more convoluted since
divestiture.

AMVOX PRESENTATION
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Myth #1 Continued

3.

The General Accounting Office has found the FCC's

proposed accounting safeguards to be inadequate and
unrealistic.

4.

As recently as 1986, our own Public Utilities

Commission reported extensive evidence of crosssubsidization.

5.

The FCC has been strongly biased against competition

in many of its recent rulings. Computer III, in its
handling of customer Proprietary Network Information is
typical.

AMVOX PRESENTATION
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CALIFORNIA'S STATE POLICY SHOULD NOT BE CONGRUENT
WITH THE CURRENT FEDERAL EXECUTIVE POLICY

Myth #2: We should deregulate the Bell Operating Companies
since they are the only ones who can bring the
benefits of information services to the public and
close the "Information Services gap" between the
United States and the rest of the world.

1. Only in the United States, is there such a rich
diversity of unsubsidized data and voice services. In
th~

overused French Minitel example, terminals, paid for

by the taxpayers, were given away to encourage use of
the system.

2. In the area of data services, Compuserve, The Source
and General Electric Information Services are only three
examples of the many companies who are, today, making
hundreds of data bases and information services available to the public in California and across the nation.

AMVOX PRESENTATION
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Myth #2 Continued

3.

In California, alone, there are more than 20 voice

mail service companies offering services to residential,
small and large business users.

Rates start at less

than $10 per month, clearly within the reach of those
users who find the service useful.

4. The issue in the information services market today,
is not supply, but rather demand. The 90+% of the
taxpayers and ratepayers who have yet to see value in
these services should not be forced to take the risk of
subsidizing these services before they are convinced of
their value.

AMVOX PRESENTATION
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CALIFORNIA'S STATE POLICY SHOULD NOT BE CONGRUENT
WITH THE CURRENT FEDERAL EXECUTIVE POLICY

•

Myth #3: The Bell Operating Companies should not be required
to offer new Information Services through structurally
separated subsidiaries because of the resulting loss of
efficiency.

1. What efficiencies will be lost? The FCC's doctrine of
Comparably Efficient Interconnection provides,
primarily for the fact, that tariffed facilities will be
comparably priced to both the Regional Bell Operating
Company's unregulated Information Service Provider and
their non-monopoly competitors. Without rate efficiency,
what are the other efficiencies in question? It is those
other efficiencies, for example, the handling of
Customer Proprietary Network Information, that raise the
greatest fears of abuse of monopoly power.

2. Traditionally, monopolies have used their market
power to drive out competitors, giving themselves a free

AMVOX PRESENTATION
6

2/1/88

hand in the marketplace. Regulation has been one of the
forces preventing this from occurring. Without effective
regulation, greater concentration of power is
inevitable.

3. California, with its great tradition of entrepreneurship, should encourage the formation of private capital
to bring the benefits of the Information Age to the
state and the nation. The only encouragement required
would be the credible assurance of protection from the
monopoly power of the telephone companies.

AMVOX PRESENTATION

2/1/88
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THE DECISION

The legislature should decide who will take the
risks of entrance to the Information Age. Will it be the
entrepreneurs and early adopting consumers? Or, will it
be the taxpayers and the ratepayers of the State of
California. Will the rewards for success go to the
entrepreneurs? Or, will they go to the monopoly
shareholders? The current FCC and Department of Justice
have made up their minds. The California Legislature
must make up its mind and act accordingly.

AMVOX PRESENTATION
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lOIS OPERATING IT?

~

he system is literally operated by the community.
he Cleveland Free-Net computer is physically
ited on the campus of Case Western Reserve Univty. The project director is Tom Grundner, an
.stant professor in the School of Medicine, the pro's computer scientist is Roger A. Bielefeld, and
system manager is Sharron Carlson.
irect operation of the various areas of the system,
1ever, is in the hands of hundreds of community
mteers called "sysops." These individuals--be
' doctors, lawyers, space scientists, or simply
biests and enthusiasts--are the ones who contribtheir time and talents to actually operate the system.
he Free-Net is truly a community comp~er.

"-.......

ct

~~

~~
I

-o

fJ

Cl'j

ffi~

~

0
0

-

ft~

~~
~0

oju
>~

IW CAN OTHER CITIES SET UP
YSTEMS LIKE THIS ONE?

Y GO THROUGH ALL THE TROUBLE AND
•ENSE OF SETTING UP AND OPERATING A
LTI-USER COMMUNITY COMPUTER
TEM, THAT ANYONE CAN ACCESS, TO
~EIVE A WIDE VARIETY OF INFORMATION
) COMMUNICATIONS SERVICES-· FREE?

~

cause it's time.
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The Cleveland Free-Net is an
affiliate of the Society for
Public Access Computing
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TM. Grundner, Ed.D
Executive Director
The Society for Public Access Computing
Box 1987
Cleveland, Ohio 44106
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he software that drives the Cleveland Free-Net
wned by a non-profit corporation called the
iety for Public Access Computing (SoPAC).
being made available to qualified parties
n any other city in the country who wish to start
nilar system, on a lease basis, for $1 per year.
nyone interested in receiving more information
10w to start up a Free-Net system should write:

N
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WHAT IS THE CLEVELAND FREE-NET?
To put it in its simplist terms, the Cleveland
FreeNet is a free, open access, community
computer system.

Cleveland Free-Net
System Map

WHAT DOES THAT MEAN?
A computer located on the campus of Case
Western Reserve University in Cleveland,
Ohio has been programmed to serve as a
community information and communications
resource. The system will allow anyone with
a home or an office computer (or a terminal)
and a device called a "modem" to call in and
have access to a wide variety of electronic
services and features.

WHAT KINDS OF SERVICES AND
FEATURES ARE AVAILABLE?
This is a difficult question to answer because
the list is always growing. At present a partial
list includes:

*
*

'l2

v

Electronic Mail
Electronic Contact with Elected Governmental Representatives
* Online Computer User Groups
* A "podium" for "electronic speeches"
* A variety of Special Interest Groups
such as:
Air and Space
Handicapped
Science Fiction
Chess
Culinary Arts
* Online Medical Information
* Online Dental Information
* An electronic "schoolhouse" for teachers
parents, students, and administrators
"' \nd much more ...

WHO IS ALLOWED TO USE THE SYSTEM?

HOW MUCH WILL IT COST ME?

Quite Simply, anyone.
There are two categories of users: "visitors" and "registered users." A visitor can go anywhere, read anything,
and use almost all of the system's features. In order to
send and receive electronic mail, or post messages on
some of the open "bulletin boards," you must be a registered user. To register, you can either download a registration form from the system, or ask us online to
mail you one. You then fill it out, return it, and we
will mail you a User ID and a password. That is all
there is to it and there is no charge.

Nothing. It is free to the user in much the san
that a public library, for example, is free. It is a
unity resource.

WHAT KIND OF EQUIPMENT WILL I NEED?
You will need a microcomputer (or a computer terminal) that has a device called a "modem" attached to it.
This device will allow your computer to connect to
ours via a telephone line at either 300 or 1200 baud
("baud" is a transmission speed). You simply dial
(216) 368-3888, follow the instructions for your
particular computer or modem software, hit "RETURN,"
and you are on.

THEN WHO IS PAYING FOR IT?
Good question! Saying that something like th:
free to the user is not the same thing as saying it
nothing to operate
This project was initially made possible by ad<
from the Information Systems Division of AT&1
was then joined by Ohio Bell Telephone Compan
CWRU School of Medicine, and University Hosp
of Cleveland. Since these initial contributions we
received (and continue to receive) all manner of su
from organizations and individuals throughout the
Cleveland area.

The Society for Public Access Computing

WHAT IS COMMUNITY COMPUTING?

(Draft Text from a Forthcoming Brochure)

T.M. Grundner, Ed.D
The Society for Public Access Computing
Box 1987
Cleveland, Ohio 44106
(216) 368-2733

A Non-Profit Corporation

Developers of the Free-Net Community Computer Network

;}/3

A popular government without popular information, or
the means of acquiring it, is but a prologue to a farce or a
tragedy, or perhaps both. Knowledge will forever govern
ignorance, and a people who mean to be their own governors
must arm themselves with the power which knowledge gives.
- James Madison

What is Community

Page 1

THE
Fre
o en, c mmun y computer systems represent
a relative y new
omputing
These systems
provide high volume. multi user. information and
communications servic s to a community in much the same way
as a public library, for example, serves a similar function
with the printed word.

•

A multi-user ompu
is established at a central
location in a metropolit n area. The machine is connected
to a number of teleph n
ines through a series of devices
called "modems." Runn ng on the machine is a computer
program that pro ides its users with everything from
electronic mail services, to information about health care,
education, technology, government, recreation, or just about
anything else the operators would like to place on the
machine.
e en ral sys em is general y operated by a paid
staff of hree people a pro ect director, a system manager,
and a clerical assis ant.
ese three people are called
system administrator • The various services on the system
are maintained by volun eers from the community who have a
particular profess onal or a cational skill or knowledge
that they are
ng
nt i
e nto a common
computerize
iv d a s are known as system
operators o
Anyo e
or school
mp
time, 24 h u
number make
their screen
would like.
accomplished

t
with ac ess to a home, office,
a modem ca contact the system any
They simply d al up a central .phone
and a seri s of "menus" appears on
allow them to select the services they
s free and all of it can easily be
user.

In effect the ommuni y Computer occupies a new middle
ground between
e
ge commercial systems, such as the
Source and C mpuSe e and the single line BBS systems often
operated by hobbyists
It has the sophistication and ease
of access of the multi- ser commercial systems, yet is
locally owned, a
operated by the community itself--each
system with its own distinct local flavor and set of
interests.
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HISTORY
The development of free, open access, community
computing has it's origins in an experiment conducted at
Case Western Reserve University in Cleveland, Ohio.
In the Fall of 1984, Dr. Tom Grundner of the
Department of Family Medicine at CWRU set up a single phone
line, computerized, "Bulletin Board" system to test the
effectiveness of using this medium as a means of delivering
community health information.
Known as "St. Silicon's
Hospital and Information Dispensary," it allowed lay people
to call in using their home or business computers, leave
medically related questions and have them answered by a
physician with 24 hours.
The experiment proved so
successful that it attracted the attention of the
Information Systems Division of AT&T who funded a largeD
project to expand and develop this interactive concept.
Based on this donation, Dr. Grundner began work on a
full scale "community computer system" on an AT&T 3B2/400
computer with 15 incoming phone lines.
If St. Silicon was
an "electronic hospital," this new system was to be an
"electronic city" which included a "Post Office" for
electronic mail and "buildings" representing areas as
diverse as law (the Courthouse), medicine (the Hospital),
education (the Schoolhouse), arts (the Arts Center), and
government (Government House).
On July 16, 1986 this new
system, called the "Cleveland Free-Net," was opened by
Governor Richard Celeste of Ohio and Mayor George Voinovich
of Cleveland, and was hailed as the nation's first,
completely free, open access, community computer.
One of the central tenets of the project was to give
the software the widest possible dissemination yet still
maintain needed quality control.
Accordingly, the software
was made available on a lease basis for $1 a year to any
qualified party from any city in the country.
In July of
1987 the ''Youngstown Free-Net" became the first system to
come online under the terms of this lease arrangement with
dozens of other cities in various stages of preparation.

THE ELECTRONIC CITY
The metaphor used in the Free-Net software is that of
an "electronic city."
This choice was no accident.
Virtually every institution in society has an information
dissemination function of some kind.
In that the Free-Net
represents literally a new medium for the dissemination of
information, the system was designed to accommodate almost
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anyone's dissemi ation ne ds.
Some examples from the first
Free-Net system in Clevel nd, Oh o which illustrates the
flexibility of this format would include:
The Schoolhouse which finally allowed Cleveland area
public and private schools to be able to teach telecomputing
to their students.
Because there was no cost attached to
using the system and because it's multi-user nature allowed
them to be able to login when they needed to; they were able
to teach the use of electronic mail, run projects within and
between schools, access c mmon educational databases, and
conduct a host of other projects that previously could only
have been dreamed abou •
The Hospital (St. Silicon) became one of the most
exciting areas on the system.
With it, medical educators
from throughout the Cleveland area were able to experiment
with literally a new means of delivering community health
info mation.
Included we e lay oriented features such as
the "Doc-in-the-Box" question and answer area, as well as a
variety of features for medical professionals.
As a result
of the popularity of the hospital, St. Silicon became the
springboard for a wave of interest around the country in
using telecomputing as a new medical information medium.
The
t Office is a s andard feature on all Free-Net
systems.
It is a true account to-a count electronic mail
system with all the power, sophistication, and security
found on the major telecomputing networks.
In addition to
use by private individuals, it also became a boon for the
business community.
Small and medium sized businesses found
they could not only link various components of their company
together via the Free-Net, but they could link themselves
with suppliers and customers--all at no cost.
The Arts Center brought to light another need--that of
linking the arts community together.
Less experienced
artists could seek advice from more experienced artists.
Writers could electronically "publish'' their work and
receive commentary.
Performances of theater and dance could
be announced.
Artists in the various electronic media could
ask and receive technical advice and support.
A whole
segment of the community that one would not normally
associate with computers and high technology came online and
supported one of the most popular areas of the system.
The list of features in the "electronic city" could go
on and on.
There was an electronic "Podium" where anyone
who wanted to stand-up and give an electronic speech, could
do so; a "Veterinary Clinic" where questions about pets an
animals could be answered; a "Courthouse" where legal
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information could be obtained; a "Museum;" a "Government
House;" and special interest groups ranging from air and
space, to the handicapped; to playing chess; to the culinary
arts.
The point here is that all these features were online
because there were people and organizations in the Cleveland
area who volunteered their time and effort to make those
features happen. The electronic city format became an
experiment in community involvement that worked beyond the
designers wildest dreams.

FINALLY: SOME OBSERVATIONS
The following are observations based upon our
experience so far with the development of community
computing systems. As you consider the field of community
computing and/or the possibility of establishing a system in
your area, you might want to keep them in mind.
First, ~have found that these community computers
clearly represent the leading edge Qi ~ ~ medium.
Telecomputing is not radio, not television, not print; but
has characteristics of all three plus some additional ones
of its own. It is literally a forth medium. That fact
alone will inevitably lead to developments and uses that we
can not now even begin to imagine.
Second, ~have found that there now exists a critical
people who ~ prepared !£ utilize this ~ medium.
Perhaps the best way to illustrate this is by analogy to the
development of the public library system.
In the middle of
the last century there was no such thing as the free public
library. Eventually literacy got high enough (and the cost
of books cheap enough) that the ~ublic library became
feasible.
We believe in this century we have gotten to the
point where computer ''literacy" has gotten high enough (and
the cost of equipment cheap enough) that we will see a
similar demand for free public access community computer
systems going well into the next century.

~

£i

Third, that there is ~ certain sense Qf inevitability
!£the development Qf community computing. We find
ourselves simply unable to imagine a 21st Century in which
we do NOT have community computer systems just as this
century had it's public libraries. Moreover, we believe
that the community computer will have at least as much
impact on the next century as the public library has had on
ours.
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One implication of this belief, however, is that a
great deal of work must occur between now and then.
Hundreds and eventually thousands of communities will be
bringing these systems online in the next 10 to 20 years.
To help make that happen, we are making the Free-Net
community computer software available to qualified parties
in any city, on a lease basis, for $1 per year, through an
organization called SoPAC.
THE SOCIETY FOR PUBLIC ACCESS COMPUTING (SoPAC)
By early 1987 the Cleveland Free-Net had received
dozens of requests for more information about their system
from various cities around the country. It was clear that
an umbrella organization would be needed to help financially
and technically support this growing network of community
computer systems. To meet this need, on April 7, 1987 the
Society for Public-Access Computing (SoPAC) was incorporated
as a non-profit corporation in the District of Columbia.
Non-profit tax status under article 501(c)(3) of the
Internal Revenue Code was granted on July 20th 1987.
The central mission of this organization is four-fold:
1) To establish selection criteria for the establishment of
Free-Net systems around the country; 2) To assist in the
process of bringing those systems online with technical
assistance, staff training, etc.; 3) To establish and
enforce quality control standards for the operation of those
systems after they come online; and 4) To help raise monies
in support of both the individual systems as well as for the
operation of the network as a whole.
SoPAC holds the copyright on the Free-Net software and
is the agency through which that software is leased.
If you
would like to obtain more information on SoPAC, on community
computing, and/or on how to obtain the Free-Net software
please write to:
T.M. Grundner, Ed.D
Executive Director
The Society for Public Access Computing
Box 1987
Cleveland, Ohio 44106

The WELL
Whole Earth Lectronic Link
27 Gate Five Road, Sausalito, CA 94965
415/332-6106 (modem); 415/332s4335 (voice)

Testimony of John Coate to the California Assembly Committee on
Utilities and Commerce Feb 1, 1988
Will there be an information age for everyone? Will we see a
day when these tools cut across racial, economic, and
demographic boundaries so that in society's collective mind
there is a true kind of democracy? It sounds good, but before
that could ever come about I think certain things have to happen
and some things have to not happen.
In the next few years there will be a lot of telecomm services
offered. I think the ones that will make it will be the ones
that give their subscribers the sense that they are more
connected with other people, more involved with society, and
more up to date on what is happening in the world rather than
some dry info service that mostly involves sitting alone looking
at pretty color graphic screens on a machine that is logged into
a bigger machine somewhere at the end of a long phone line.
Certainly there will be ever-growing specialized business
applications that will be well serviced by many providers, but
the title of this hearing says "everyone", so that is why I say
that unless there is a very strong human element that comes
through an information service the general population would
rather watch television, go to a movie, or a bar, or wherever,
than soak up all this available info. Especially if they have
to pay for it.

And I also don't think that what will or will not fly as far as
info-based services goes is necessarily going to be determined
in what I would describe as a "top down" manner.
We'd love it at the WELL if there was a terminal in every home,
including rural areas. But whatever system does get implemented
had better be well planned by a broad base of knowledgeable
people, rather than just the first system that gets a big

contract. This technology is still so new and changes so fast
that as soon as some huge system - either private or public gets installed there is a good chance that something much better
will become available. In these still early days, much of the
innovation is coming from the small systems. And the standards
are still being debated as to which is the best.
"Information rich or information poor" is a catch-phrase many of
us have heard or used. This is the heart of the matter and it
really could go either way.
First, and perhaps above all else there has to be a high rate of
literacy to become involved with these tools. Certainly without
that, one will be left in the dust as the technology advances.
Without strong technical and liberal education that includes
funding for equipment in the schools and low cost use of the
phone lines there is danger of a great rift developing.
And you need intellectual curiosity. You have to like
conversation. You need enough of a world view that you like to
reach out. To quote my collegue Erik Fair, "If California is to
benefit from this technology, it will have to have a well
educated workforce."
The WELL is essentially a conversational medium and it is
through conversing in conferences, email, and real-time that the
fabric of the community is knit.
There are WELL conferences that are task oriented and some that
consist of people throwing out their ideas, telling their
stories or arguing political and social issues. After talking
with people about all kinds of different things over time you
get the feeling that you know that person even if you have never
met face to face. We have also found that meeting face to face
can enhance the community feeling although it is not required.
There are numerous WELL regulars who haven't met anyone else "in
person". The essence of networking is building trust through
coversing about a range of subjects. People aren't going to
give out their best contacts to people they don't know fairly
well.

We have a conference where computer literate WELLers assist
non-profit groups in learning to use their computers. The
CompuMentor project is a pioneering effort that brings skilled
help to community-oriented groups without a lot of money having
to be spent. There is reliable information about AIDS in the
health conference. Politics, parenting, stock market~ work,
The Art Com Network, science, sexuality, music, sports. Real
relationships are formed when many aspects of people's lives are
involved, including but not limited to just the business part.
But before it can expand to a radically larger segment of the
population, namely people in rural areas where the phone costs
are prohibitive or anywhere that someone could profit from
online interaction but can't afford to buy all the equipment,
the needs of these people must be considered. The basic costs
must stay low and there cannot be a false sense of adversity
between those who need their basic phone rate kept at an
affordable level and those individuals who use these so-called
"enhanced" services to their personal and business advantage but
are not large corporations who will qualify for proposed bulk
use discounts under the name of "flexible pricing".
Much of the debate will continue to center on the cost of the
phone call. One aspect of which is the data vs voice debate. I
submit that there is a third category. The currency of our
network is voice-equivelant messages traveling through the wires
as data and that is not and should not be considered the same as
credit card transactions and other "hard data". I think this
grass roots telecomm movement could be harmed by being lumped in
with that category of data communication.

If California is to have any hope at all of having a large and
varied popular use of these information tools then I think you
as legislators must watch over this movement and help us figure
out how all the people can share in it. This state and this
nation need these forums.
Certainly they point to an enormous potential for our whole
society to communicate with itself. These computer tools are
new tech ways for people to carry on what is really an ancient
thing - communicating. Coming together to say whatever we want
to say knowing that there will be no reprisal or censorship.
And maybe doing some business as a result.

THE

WELL IS:

Public conferences
... access to a unique community of people
aspects of ;::omputers
... more than 80 conferences on

• A computer conferencing system
• A place to get information
• Revolutionary low price
• An online meetingplace

... join in discussions on a wide range of topics
...
...
...
...

get top quality technical advice from experts
learn the UNIX system online
talk with software developers
discuss politics, religion, environment, parenting, sports, music, education

Private conferences
Any business, non-profit organization or private group can have a private conference:
.. instant communication
... formulate policy online for immediate action
... versatile and powerful, ready when you are

Welcome'
You are now logged in to the WELL.
PicoSpan T2.5; designed by Marcus Watts
copyright 1984 NETI; all rights reserved

Electronic mail and online conversation

You have mail.

... the end of "Telephone Tag"

OK(? or sum for help): mail
Mail version 2.18 5/19/83. Type? for help.
"/usr/spool/mail/br": 3 messages 3 new
>N 1 mmc WedJuly3113:13 13/364"Re:teacher"
N 2 art Wed July 31 13:56 12/258 "Re: teacher"
N 3 garf Wed July 31 16:0713/495 "Re: dinner"

. . . send private messages to one person or several
messages can be stored for future reference

~ Login with any computer/modem combination

W ... transfer text files between incompatible computers
... inexpensive laptops can have the full power of a UNIX machine

The WELL lists all your waiting messages
each time you check ln.

J-

$8.00
S3•00

per month
per online hour

•
•
•
•
•
•
•

It's simple to join:
Have your computer/modem dial
415/332-6106

•

When the WELL responds with its login:
prompt, type
newuser
follow

instructions.

[,ong-distance
access is now
thru TYMNET.

~

What can The WEL
do for you?

•
•
•

Cut mail costs
Save travel time and expense
Reduce paperwork
Improve communications with associates
Foster cooperative work from different
locations
Keep records of all your transactions
Technical support and user groups for most
popular computers
Put you in touch with a wide variety
of people
Cut across time zones
can
Reduce time constraints
respond at their convenience
Help avoid "Tt·lephone

THE

WELL
·~·:::~-:~

'·~:~:~;f:;i~~~{0~;;_, "".

the Well

Now the WELL
NINET

office for

106

Voice: 4151332-4335

»PREss··
lnfonnation Services, Ltd.

FACT SHEET

X*PRESS Information Sen i..::es. Ltd. is a partnership cetween two maJor
inf0rnnrion comp:~nics: Tck-Communi::ltions. In.:- .. the brgest
m u I t i p k s :. s t e m c ::it' ];:: o::: c r :1 t ·:· r 1 n t h e C n i t c d S ta t c s. s c n i n g more t h :1 n 4. 2 m i II i c n
subscriber::. and \L.:G ra v. -H il J. 1n c .. one of the world· s k:1 ding s c1ppl ie rs of in for r.n t i·.Jn
to busincs~ and industry. the profe::sions, go\Crnment :1nd cdu.:::!tion.
tclccommunic:~tions :~nd

X*PRESS offers two prcdu.:-rs to the consumer marker. X*PRESS X*Change
provides a bro:1d infc·rnntion f·:Jrnnt th:~t is family and cdu::~ti·~·n oriented. X"'Ch:1nge
taps a \irtually limitless resource of information deli,ered ·. ia .:-Jblc teiC\ ision lines t-J
person:1l computers. The X*Ch:1nge menu includes su.:-h inf•::.rnntion a~ src. .::k qu.::.res
three t i me s d :1 i I y. n e v. s, sports. confer c n c in g. shopping :1 n d we at ncr. from info r r:D t ion
sources in.:luding Sundard &: Poor's. AP, Agence Fran-::e Presse. TASS. Xinhua. J..:.yodo,
:1nd other :>.JtionJl :1rd i:Hcrr:::nic·n::. 1nform:1tion pro\ide:-s. X*Ch:1nge is offered as 3
b3sic c:1blc senicc. :::~nd IS currently 3\:lil3ble to O\·er 3.050.C<C'O r.omes 3nd thous:~nds of
schools nationwide.

The origin:1l X*PRESS scnice. now marketed as X*PRESS ExecutiYe. focuses
prin1:1rily on the business and fin3nci31 user with continuously-upd::ned sc..::uriti.:s quotes
from Standnd & Poor's. fin3ncial information and business news. nnrket st:ltisti.:-s. 3nd
corpor3tc press rck:1ses. X*PRESS Exc.:-uti\e is offered 35 3 premium 2:1bk ser\ i.::e
with a rcccmmcnded fee .:;f S 19.95 per month .

.\1 iII ions of \\ or d s i n a ' 3 s t r 3 n g e of c ::1 t ego r i e s are r e: e i \ c c from 3 p p r G x i n: 3 t c l y
30 infornncion pro' idcrs d:1ily :lt :\."'PRESS Information Sen ices. Ltd. The d3t:l is
uplinkcd 3long with the digit31 audio signal of C;\~ (Ga!JXy I, transponder-;) using
General Instruments \'ideocipher Infocipher 1500P technologies. It is 3lso tnnsmitted
on the Cinem3x transponder of G313xy I. With the addition of a low-cost GI interface
3nd Wegener modubtor c:ud. a system is set to send the X*PRESS sign3l downline.

Tc re:ci\C the sign:J.l, the c:::~tle subscriber must purch:1se 3n :X*Ch:1nge or
Executi'e kit directly from X*PRESS Information Services. Ltd. The kit cont3ins 3
decoder, softw3re 3nd connectors.
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Cabletime Forum

Keeping the Promise:
Cable, Education and Fun
by Unda Spohn

Since television's humble black and white beginnings, many educators have been at odds
with the medium, claiming it distracts from the serious educational process. But a recent
cable TV innovation has produced a service that boasts education, information and fun. It's
called X· PRESS X· Change, a basic cable service that delivers news, educational, financial and
consumer information to personal computers via cable lines. It's a whole new concept.
Schools throughout the nation are receiving an unusual gift from their local cable system
and Denver-based X' PRESS Information Services, Ltd. The X' Change service is provided free
of charge. including hardware and software. All each school needs to have is a compatible
personal computer.
X'Change helps young people learn in a new way that's stimulating and fun; they tap into
live news right off the satellites to augment their studies.
Although delivering X' Change is a study in electronic complexity, students will find the
software easy to use. Satellites transmit a continuous stream of news and information to cable
receiving centers. live. unedited news and information is then sent to schools, as well as
home subscribers. who can also get X'Change as part of their basic cable service from
participating systems.
Students can explore the continuing stream of f:lcts and enhance their computer literacy
skills at the same time. They can use the keyword search feature (for IBM and·compatible
computers) to track down topics of interest instantly and display them on the monitor.
X' Change offers foreign news services for students in language courses. It's also tdeal for
following current events, science and social studies.
Students learning about the business world can set up their own hypothetical stock
portfolio and get current stock quotes three times each day. Practice investing may somedav
lead to some real profits. The stock quotes on X· Change are also available to home users at no
extra monthly charge.
X'Change can also be used for sheer personal enjoyment. Young people "-ill love the
immediacy of reviews of current movies, books and music. Comprehensive sports scores and
schedules, weather, best bargain shopping and features round out the service.
The best thing about X • Change is that it offers a chance to talk back. A unique conferencing
feature allows students, parents and teachers to share their views in on-going dialogues on
such wide-ranging topics as parenting, politics and rock music. Because x· Change is an
ever-changing programming service, it can listen to its users and give them what they want to
read.

Participating cable systems are rolling out X' Change this spring and will continue to offer it
to more and more schools as the year progresses. Call 1·800· "7PC-NEWS for complete
information about X'Change.
Developing specialized programming services has always been the hallmark of the cable
industry, and X'Change represents a new door opened into the world of personalized
information for subscribers. Cable is keeping its promise.
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with a band, entertainers and
a
trip down the nearby American
River. Tracy hopes to have a reunion
every year. "We feel a part of an
online community, and it gave us a
chance to meet people face-to-face,"
he says.
Despite its seemingly carefree atmosphere. RockNet members take themselves seriously. "We pride ourselves
on providing up-to-date, accurate information," says Tracy. Fifteen regular
reporters contribute a total of eight to
10 stories a day. Much of the news
comes from wire services, radio stations and record companies. Reporters
are music and journalism professionals
based all over the country.
"Thanks to telecommunications. we
can disseminate information faster,"
says the editor of the rock news section
who goes by the handle "Killer Bee."
"Because our network is so well organized, we can be more comprehensive.
stories to subscribers
sometimes before they hit other news
media."
The service is divided into news and
"backstage talk .. sections. "Some
information may be based on a rumor
overheard at a concert." says Tracy.
Such story. which may or may not be
true. is
in the second category.
But users can actuall.y "meet" the
they read about. Stars such as
Q and Barry Manilow and indussuch as Les Garland. former
program director for MTV. have apas guests in live conferences. In
Nrwl"mt,,.r singer/songwriter Del
Shannon-who has written music for TV
and for Juice Newton-appeared in conference. Lou Gramm from Foreigner:
Eric Burdon. founder of the Animals:
Paul Kantner, formerly of the Starship
and now with the KBC Band: members
of Night Ranger and others have also
been online. Tracy has more big names
lined up but "we don't announce it until
just beforehand. Entertainers often work
at night (when conferences take place)
and other engagements may arise. I won't
disappoint subscribers by saying someone
will appear until rm absolutely certain ...
Rock stars field online questions
about their personal lives, how they got
started in the rock music business and
who influenced them musically. Says
Tracy, "They're more relaxed than
during a regular interview because the
questions come slowly and we [himself
and the star] can chat in between."
Out of the glare of the public eye, they
Spinning discs
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Orchestrating the event: Les Tran. Lisa Cheung and Gina King prepare for an online discussion with Del Shannon

wood. the conference area can be a
fascinating place. "Every night. we
have CJs (computer jockeys) come
online and moderate." says Palozola.
"Sometimes discussions get very intense."
One of the CJs. Gina King. spends
about 12 hours each week in conference with stars including the Beach
Boys and Martha Davis from the Motels. "My goal is to get people's minds
going," King says. "I value their opinions and I like hearing their ideas."
King says because rock ·n· roll itself can
be controversial and rebellious. conferences generate exciting discussions.
"Most recently there has been a lot of
discussion about censorship,·· King
says. "People get really excited about
this issue. They also complain about
the lack of creativity in the music business. especially with MTV." RockNet
allows subscribers to discuss issues
openly. "One of the things people

RockNet is its anoexpress their minds
them physically,"
include censorship in lyrics.
an ongoing debate between heavy
metal (Dokken. Judas Priest) and mainstream
(Heart, Eurythmics). and
Prince
either hate him or love
him,"
Participants
discuss concerts
seen, new
videos,
effects and other happenings
the
world.
"You get a lot of different opinions." states ·•Killer Bee," whose
negative review
a Grateful Dead
concert incited some users. "But that's
whv we're here: to
an inside
look"-not
found in the

rock in general. so we get all ages and
types." Members also include disc
jockeys. producers and professional
musicians. "They exchange ideas and
information among themselves and
advise aspiring musicians."
The data libraries contain technical
information and cover trends in radio.
rock film and video. in addition to
oldies and new music. Files of computer music (popular tunes you can
hear on your own system) and GIF
graphics image files of singers are available. The latter includes nearly 100
pictures of rock stars and album covers. ranging from "Sgt. Pepper's
Lonely Hearts Club Band" to Tina
Turner and Bon Jovi. "We're on the
cutting edge of something new and
exciting," says Tracy. "Telecommunications is a wide-open field, and can only
become more interactive." So type GO
ROCK and see what the noise is all
about.

Images from RockNet's GIF Gallery
Nearly 100 GIF graphics images of rock stars and album covers, ranging from Sgt. Pepper's
Lonely Hearts Club Band to Tina Turner, are available
the RockNet Forum. Type GO
ROCK. select the RockNet Forum and access Data Libraries
and l3.
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AIDSnef1'M, a world-wide
Madame
I feel that today MacNET is
AIDS Kesean;n uonnnmuca:non '""''"'rn
connnunications called desktop
probably the
genera1non
were
and developed in California.
connnunications.
But in addition to

to
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brief words about:

• California's
information-based <:nr·•.. ru·

•
I) CALIFORNIA
because of beauty
world. California has
more striking than
responsibilities and OP1POrtW1l1tt~~s
for the information

The slow growth
disappointing.
connnunications has not
Leadership
whole.

mHEALTH
of health information
the potential health
can have in terms

cno1sen to
and work in California not only
a bellweather for the nation and for the
forefront of innovation in many fields, but none
to acknowledge its
an information services infrastructure
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today I can't describe the myriad
like to give you a feeling for
cornmuni1cations technologies and the impact they

What would it mean
all
to
access to health information and health
decision-support tools
hours a day, 7 days a
their homes, workplaces, schools, and
recreational areas? It would certainly mean earlier entry into the health care system for conditions
that required health services and a dramatic cut unnecessary use of health services. It would also
could finally be realized because we could
mean the potential of prevention and health
provide quality health information to the
at the maximum point of motivation, on an
ongoing basis, in the
health impacting decisions and behaviors are made.
we know
we would likely see a 35% reduction
From current research on
in patient visits for minor illnesses
a
in health visits overall from universal
access to a Personal Health Information
programs alone. Prevention and
health promotion programs made possible
the emerging connnunications technologies,
especially health risk assessment, can be expected to save more lives and cut costs even further.
What is the State of California willing to do now to save tens of thousands of lives a year while
freeing up billions of dollars that would
be spent unnecessarily on disease care annually?
The savings from Health Ppromotion
Technologies (HPCTs) directed to MediCal
and Medicare alone would allow
to
headway toward bridging the
growing gap
the resources to meet those needs.

Why is it that we are not doing this today? It is not because we do not have the knowledge. It is
not because the technology isn't here. It is because we as a state and as a nation have yet to solidify
the societal vision and political will that is necessary to put in place an information services
infrastructure.
We have the electronic horseless carriage, if you will, but we need the information highways and a
sophisticated network of information service stations to fuel information age opportunities like the
personal health information system. This is not going to mature this month or this year. But it had
better come together in the next decade or California will have a hard time competing with other
states and the United States will have a difficult time competing with other nations that have already
committed to developing themselves as leading information societies.
AIDS net DEMONSTRATION ON MACNET: (live demo on video projector)
INFORMATION AND WISDOM: As a fmal thought, I would like to talk about the difference
between information and wisdom. We must keep in mind that the goal is not just more
information. We already have more information than we can manage. We need more applicable
knowledge. Even more importantly, we need more wisdom or knowledge which considers human
values. Health applications of interactive communications technologies will be, perhaps, one of the
most productive conduits, along with educational applications, for maintaining our state's and
nation's commitment to ever increasing health and prosperity.
To build systems of wise interactive communications will require that we, as policy makers, attend
to more than just equity of information reception. We must also consider the issues surrounding
the democratic production of knowledge, public safety, and the quality and financing of
information services. If these and other issues are not addressed early on, we are likely to end up
with another mind-numbing medium like television rather than mind- expanding medium.
Unfortunately, we are already seeing good examples of mind-numbing commercial videotex
services emerging.
The future of the American information age is now rising over California. Our decisions and
actions regarding information services should not only be directed to help California enter the
information age; we must rise to the challenge of dragging America into an age of wisdom,
California first
Thank you.
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tabases will be distributed for free, others
will require some access charges. We are
also trying to work out arrangements so that
AIDSnet participants can communicate with
AIDS researchers on other systems, such as
the AIDS Coordinators of state and local Public Health Departments who are networking
through the Public Health Foundation.

• Interactive electronic forums for on-going
discussions and information exchange,
including:

* Virology /Molecular
* Epidemiology
Epidemiology

* Prevention/ Education
* Vaccines/Treatment
* Psychosocial
* Clinical Descriptions
* Public Policy

We strongly feel that splintering the AIDS
research community on different incompatible communications systems is a mistake.
For this reason we are approaching the
American Foundation for AIDS Research
(AmFAR), the Centers for Disease Control
(CDC), the World Health Organization
(WHO), and other similar organizations to
encourage the drafting of concensus
strategies for AIDS research communications on domestic and international levels.

Product Support
• Information and 3rd party support on
software and hardware products. Questions
and suggestions can be posted on bulletin
boards to be answered by developers or
other business users.

Features of AIDSnet

AhoutAIDSnetFo~

AIDSnet currently offers you the following
features for improved productivity in AIDS
research.

Psy chosocia 1

There are four kinds of bulletin boards available on AIDSnet:
l. Public Information - restricted posting
and non restricted viewing;

Communication
• Intuitive Use. The MacNET environment
controls the user interface and connects
via public packet switch networks to the
host mainframe computer.

2. Public Discussion - non restricted posting
and viewing:

• Easy file transfer.

3. Private Information - restricted posting
and viewing;

• Icon based E-mail system that is natural to
use, fast, automated and inexpensive.
• Searchable bulletin boards (BB) and
databases offering easy access to desired
information.
• Free central memory and programming to
serve custom, proprietary and premium
bulletin boards and databases.
Information
• A more efficient mechanism for quick
distribution of research findings.
• Remote co-authoring of papers and
proposals.
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4. Private Discussion- non-restricted posting
and viewing (for those assigned special access).
Current Posting Procedures
To post messages in non-restricted posting
areas,· follow this procedure:
There are two menu items for posting. They
are only available when the person signed on
has posting access to a BB. The first is located on the File Menu, called "Create Folder."
It does just that, requesting a subject in the
process. The second is located on the Mail
Menu, call "Post to .... " To activate this item,
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Databases:
Databases are sets of related information. A
database might be a speakers' bureau, a
bibliography, a list of hazardous chemicals being
released into the environment, or technical data
on any subject.

Computer Conferences:
Conferences are sophisticated bulletin boards.
Users can post information on a topic and respond
to statements by others. Private conferences are
useful for planning, management, joint research,
and group decisions. Public conferences are well
suited for news, announcements, calendars, and
general information on anything from acid rain to
the Greater Yellowstone Ecosystem.

EcoNet keeps me in touch with co-workers
and ongoing projects when I'm traveling
around the U.S., Alaska and abroad--

EcoNet is a vital part of our
information campaign to explain
the importance of rainforests and what
must be done to preserve them. It also
brings the conservation movement
together in a network which promotes
cooperation and unity.

Lance Craighead, Craighead Environmental
Institute, Jackson, Wyoming.

Randy Hayes, Director, Rainforest Action
Network, San Francisco
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(No deposit required.)
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YES, I'm interested but cannot sign
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;"''""'"'rl of new ae\telo•nm

Address

Referred

.a)
G)

c

0
0

EcoNet
3228 Sacramento Street
San
CA 94115
(415) 923..0900
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PEACE NET

What exactly is PeaceNet?
"PeaceNet" is a computer-based
communication system helping the peace
movement throughout the world
communicate and cooperate more
effectively and efficiently. With a large
minicomputer based in northern California
connected to Telenet (a common carrier),
PeaceNet users can communicate globally,
usually through a local phone call.

Does PeaceNet require a special
computer?
No. PeaceNet is compatible with virtually
any personal computer or computer
terminal outfitted with a 300 or 1200 baud
modem (also 2400 baud in some locations).

Does PeaceNet connect with other
networks?
Yes. PeaceNet "gateways" with several
other international systems such as
Dialcom, GEnie, The Source, UUCP,
BitNet, and EIES.

Who is using PeaceNet?
Nearly two thousand people are using
PeaceNet, including members of the
American Peace Test, Beyond War,
Coalition for a New Foreign Policy,
Internews, National Freeze, North
American Congress on Latin America,
Nuclear Times, the Christie Institute, and
Parliamentarians Global Action.

How much does using PeaceNet
cost?
PeaceNet's rates are among the cheapest
anywhere. With a $10 sign-up fee, you get
a user's manual and a free hour of off-peak
computer time (weekday evenings,
weekends, and holidays). Then you pay a
monthly charge of $10, which gets you
another hour of off-peak computer time
each month. Every additional peak hour is
$10 and every additional off-peak hour is
$5. There is also a small charge for users
requiring a large amount of storage space.

Are discounts possible?
Yes! For every new user you bring online,
we'll give you two free hours of off-peak
computer time or additional storage space.
If you come with a list of ten or more new
users, we can offer group discounts as well.
Information providers may also be eligible
for discounts.

Who is running PeaceNet?
PeaceNet is a nonprofit project of the Tides
Foundation, a San Francisco-based public
charity. PeaceNet is managed by three
nonprofit national peace organizations
with a combined membership of over
10,000: the Center for Innovative
Diplomacy, Community Data Processing,
and Foundation for the Arts of Peace. A
council consisting of a representative from
each organization and several other
people is responsible for Peace!\:et's
operations. Peacel\:et also has an ad\'isorv
council representing the mainstream of the
American peace movement.

How has PeaceNet been funded?
Thus far, PeaceNet has been funded
primarily through grants and gifts. Soon.
however, fees from users will support the
system.

How can I help?
join us' Bring your friends and colleagues on
board as well. We also can use your input to
develop information resources, conferences,
and databases.

COOPERATION

THROUGH

TELECOMMUNICATIONS

Dial Locally, Act Globally
lf you have a personal computer and a

modem, PeaceNet will let you talk, plan,
and work with people throughout the
United States and in over 70 countries, all
without expensive travel.

Harness Powerful Computer
Technology
PeaceNet offers easy-to-use tools for
posting your events on international
bulletin boards, preparing joint projects
through electronic conferences, and finding
the latest information on everything from
Star Wars to Nicaragua.

Save Time and Money
Peace Net allows you to send messages,
letters, or documents faster than Federal
Express™ for pennies per page. No more
phone tag; no more unnecessary copying,
addressing, folding, stuffing, and mailing.
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Electronic Mail
Use PeaceNet's electronic mail system to
send and receive private messages to and
from nearly 2,000 PeaceNet subscribers, Telex
users, and many other networks around the
world.

Electronic mail is quick, reliable, secure, and
easy to use. Maintain regular communications
without the need to print, stuff, address, and
put postage on regular "land mail," play
"phone tag," or heed time-zone constraints
using the phone.

Conferences
Conferences are just like specialized bulletin
boards. They ease group communications by
structuring messages so that it is easy to see
who has contributed what, when. By using
these conference tools a geographically
distributed group can carry on frequent and
responsive communications.
PeaceNet's conferences are used to distribute
timely information about a number of
discrete subjects. Some organizations are
using them to facilitate group decisionmaking and task-sharing processes.
Conferences can be set up in a private fashion
for a small group of users or they can be
established as a public resource.

Databases
PeaceNet's databases provide easy access to
large quantities of information and allow for
custom searching and output (printing)
formats.
Among the databases PeaceNet is working on
are: lists of peace groups, speakers,
foundations as well as bibliographic,
legislative, and project information.
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YES, sign me up for Peace Net.

O

I'll pay through my credit
card (Master/Visa/ Am Ex):

on card if
different than below

j
Expir. Date

Card Number

O

0

I prefer to pay by check.
Enclosed is a $50 deposit to
open my account.

YES, I'm interested but cannot sign
up right now. Please keep me
informed of new developments.

Name

Organizational Affiliation

Address
State, Zip

¥

!

Peace Net
3228 Sacramento Street
San Francisco, CA 94115
(415) 923-0900
Telex: 154205417

PeaceNet's conferences contain comprehensive and up-to-date information on
dozens of the issues that concern you.
By using PeaceNet's conferences (the "c' option on the main command line) you can stay in touch
with others
your field, learn about fast-breaking developments, participate in coordinated
planning and events, receive weekly newsletters the same day they are published, and focus on the
information
are most interested in, all without leaving your home or office.

System Wide Conferences Related to the use of PeaceNet:
help
ideas
intlaccess
micro
netnews
sysdocs
welcome

Questions and answers on using IGC Networks
Explorations of applications for the IGC Family of Networks
Information for accessing IGC Networks from outside the U.S.
Discussions of microcomputer issues
News
information about IGC Networks
IGC Networks system documentation and update reports
Well, I'm on IGC Networks, now what?

System Wide Conferences of General Interest:
gen.newsletter
nsp.resources
pn.announcements pn.alerts
pn .clossifieds
pn.conferences

Articles for newsletters, all topics
New Society Publishers' resources for activists
General community-wide announcements
Short and time urgent announcements
Goods and services available from, and sought by, PeaceNet users
Directory of PeaceNet conferences

cornet. alerts
cornet. congress
carnet.elsalnews
carnet.irancontra
carnet.ladb
carnet.nicanews

Central America human rights alerts, urgent action requests
Congressional news on Central America issues
News items about events in El Salvador and related U.S. policy
News of the Iran-Contra scandal and investigations
Twice-weekly Central America update; Latin America database
News items about events in Nicaragua and related U.S. policy

Civil Liberties:
mcli.peacelaw

-

Meiklejohn Civil Liberties Institute summaries of facts and law in

Arms Control:
clw.hotline
constituent .xprs
fcnl.updates
nwfc.lobby
nwfc.local

Council for a Livable World nuclear arms control hotline
Overnight message delivery service to Congress and White House
Friends Committee on National Legislation legislative updates
Current information on Freeze legislation; updated weekly
Local Freeze groups sharing information about their work
Sample
releases/ statements to adapted locally
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Human Rights:
ai.uan

-

....

Amnesty International UrgenfAction Network
·•

Nuclear Weapons:
apt.alerts
apt.general

. ··

1'1

-

Information about nuclear weapons tests
Information about the American Peace Test

u

Socially Responsible Investing:
ethinves.core
ethinves.dod
ethinves.forum
ethinves.invest
ethinves.nukeutil
ethinves.safrica
eth inves.starwar

--'-

A·reference for ethical investors and researchers
Other Department of Defense contractors
Miscellaneous background infonnation and discussion
Socially responsible investment vehicles
Nuclear utilities
South Africa and the Divestment Movement
--- Star Wars contractors

-

South Africa:
sscan.news

-

Southscan, a weekly bulletin on events in Southern Africa

j
'I

Star Wars and Space Development:
iscos.bulletin
sw. fortnightly

-

ISCOS weekly bulletins on space related issues
Spacewatch newsletter: Fortnightly

II
I

Pacific Rim:
nusp.freezone

-

Global nuclear free zone issues, focus on the Pacific and Palau

J

Organizational/Statewide Conferences:
bw.introduction
gp.notlnews
pn.oh
pn.ia

-

Basic information on the Beyond War Foundation and its activities
Greenpeace's weekly national newsletter
Ohio peace studies and peace action communities
Statewide forum for Iowa's PeaceNet users
I

Third World:
twr.nl

I

ii
I:

-

!i I

Third World Resources quarterly newsletter

i

i'l

Presidential Candidates:
pres.<presidental candidate> - Presidential candidates' schedules and position statements for:
bush, dole, dukakis, dupont, gephardt, goreJ haig, jackson, kemp,
laxalt, robertson, simon ...

II
iI
I,
II

II

y''

US-USSR Citizen Diplomacy:
aci.ceb
cid.citdip
cid.mfp

--

Ark Foundation's Citizen Exchange Bulletin
The people and groups in US-USSR citizen diplomacy
Initiatives cities are launching in foreign affairs
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ASSEMBLY UTILITIES &COMMERCE
HEARING FEBRUARY 1, 1988

AN "INFORMATION AGE" FOR EVERYONE?
TELECOMMUNICATIONS AND INFORMATION
SERVICE IN CALIFORNIA'S FUTURE

J. N. THOMPSON
STRATEGIC BUSINESS
PLANNING MANAGER
GTE CALIFORNIA

ASSEMBLY UTILITIES AND COMMERCE
HEARING FEBRUARY 1, 1988
An "Information Age" For Everyone?
Telecommunication and Information Services in California's Future.
Agend Responses:
1.

1

What are the new Telecommunication and Information Services
Californians may expect to see next year? Next five years? Next
decade? Who will offer these services and whom will they offer them to?
The next few years of expanded services promise to be an interesting
"experiment" that tests the ability of service providers to predict
the marketplace.

Recent history documents that service providers have

been able to target only a very small segment of the market with new
applications.
In the next year services that evolve will continue to be oriented to
select segments, primarily in the business markets.

However, some

service will appear for the residential market based on the deployment
of Common Channel Signaling System Seven Technology (SS7}.

Examples

of services for both market segments will be:
A.

Business -More effective integration of voice and data will
facilitate interactive service, such as enhanced electronic mail,
between distant customer locations.

B.

Residential - Improved Custom Calling services such as distinctive
ringing, enhanced call waiting and nuisance call tracing.

In the 5 to 10 year horizon the picture is nearly unlimited as
technology is deployed.

However, the legal and regulatory environment

may either constrain or encourage the growth of services that may be
offered to each segment.
These services will be provided by many suppliers.

Depending upon

their classification by the FCC, some of those new services will only
be available through unregulated enhanced service providers (ESPs).
These services will be available to all public switched network
service subscribers when offered by regulated carriers.

ESPs will

only offer these services when they perceive a profitable market
opportunity.
2. What will be the consequence of these new services on the quality of
life of Californians?
GTE California believes that the impact on our society and overall
quality of life will be very positive.

As services evolve and are

fine tuned to meet the marketplace needs there will be higher levels
of convenience for all users.
California has historically led the nation in technological
innovation and development.

Within the decade intelligent telephone

network applications will evolve to meet the changing needs of an
urban society.

This network will expand upon the smart school concept

by linking schools, hospitals and entire communities together.

The

first services to reach the home subscriber will be: banking,
shopping, bill paying, telecommuting and entertainment e.g. video on
demand.

These services will provide the end users with convenience

and effective utilization of time as the telephone gradually replaces

the car.

GTE California sees our customers enjoying these services as

early markets entrants.
3.

Should the state have a formal policy dealing with these information
service issues?
Although GTE California is not bound by the present FCC mandate to
file an Open Network Architecture (ONA} plan we have been following
the proceedings very closely.

Since the long term success of any

"Information Age" for Californians will be dependent upon universal
availability of that information to society, we believe the state
should actively support that effort.

We also feel that, at a minimum,

the CPUC should review the ONA plan of Pacific Bell and encourage the
sharing of that plan with other regulated carriers in California.
California's information needs can best be met by establishing
standards that utilize the backbone of the existing public switched
network.
Since the pricing of these services will be directly related to their
universal availability, the state will have to monitor this activity
and its potential effect on the general public.

GTE California wishes

to caution the role of the legislature and or regulator to be sensitive
to the needs of the providers of new services so as to encourage risk
taking to support market growth.
4.

How should new services be defined by statute? How should regulated
carriers be treated as relates to these new offerings? Should other
providers be licensed?

0c1Y

As stated above, GTE California has been monitoring the FCC ONA
guideline developments very closely.

Although GTE California is not

bound by these provisions we do not see any major problems as of yet.
However, several issues are not yet resolved which are very important
to California's general ratepayers for telephone service.

These

issues include such things as service definitions, costing processes,
pricing to ESPs, and who will be allowed to be an ESP.

In these

areas GTE suggests that the CPUC act as a monitor to ensure ratepayers
are retained in whole as the ESPs are provided access to these end users
through the regulated network.

GTE California sees no need, as of

yet, to require licensing the ESPs because they will be using
regulated network access services to reach end users.

It is important

to note that if these ESPs become facility based providers GTE will
suggest a review of licensing requirements.
5.

How can California best protect its interest in the present FCC
hearings which may impact the "Information Age 11 in California?
California's telecommunication community is perhaps one of the most
advanced in the nation.

Since FCC proceedings and ultimately plans

and guidelines will be shaped by input from those affected, GTE
California recommends a joint and active role by the carriers and the
CPUC.
GTE California believes that the definition of Basic Service Elements
(BSEs) will be the key to success or failure of the
take off!

11

Information Age"

The industry must be provided with a core set of BSEs that

are consistent on a national basis.

We believe the consortium of

carriers and regulators are responsible for this standardizing.

As

noted above the pricing of these BSEs will also be critical to the
success of this market.

Since the "gateway" of BSEs will be the local

loop, GTE sees a vital role for the CPUC with oversight by the
legislature.

Such joint participation will ensure California

congruency with the FCC and protect California's future in the
"Information Age."
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Mr. Tom Garcia
Government Relations
GTE Cal1forn1a
1121 "L" Street I 704
Sacramento, CA 95814
Dear Tom:
The fo11ow1ng are responses to the questions requested by the Uti11t1es and
Conrnerce Comn1ttu on "An Information Age for Everyone?" These responses are
submitted 1n the context of the services GTE California wi11 evaluate and/or
provide over the foreseeable future.
(1) Californians can expect to see the following information services:
TtM11ne

~1"Y1CI

l yr.

Electronic Paxroent Services
• Electronic Point-of-Salt
- Electronic Welfare Distribution
- Electronic Lottery Access
- Universal Telephone Banking
- On-Line Bill Payment
- Electronic Ticketing
Electronic Sholaina/Order1ng
- Cable V eo shopping
- On-Lint Cata1ogs
Ma1l/Messaq1na
- Community Voice Mail
- Te1ema1l Services
• Personal Electronic Services

~1e~tronic

Electronic Public Media
• On-Line Pub11c Service Term1na1
- On-Line Driver Information/Testing

Mr. Tom Garcia
1/26/88
Page 2
TiM811ne

§!rv1ce

1 yr.

Electronic Surveillance
- Community House Detention
• Latchkey Child Supervision

5 yrs.

Telemetry Services
- Home Alarm Security
- Environmental Control
- Medical Alert
Interactive Video Services
• Smart Classroom
- Home Video Instructional Media
- Electronic Shopping (full motion)
- Distributed Testing Services

10 yrs.

Consumer Expert Systems
- Interactive Problem Solving
- On-Line Diagnostic Services
ISDN Services
- Video Phones
- Video-on-Demand
~ Consumer ISDN/CPE Compatibility

These services w111 be provided by a variety of service providers.
Telecommunications companies, f1nanc1a1 institutions, large retailers, and
independent network operators will offer these types of services. These
services will offer alternatives for information users to use a variety of
sets of information in many different formats, and information providers to
provide information from multiple locations using a variety of access mediums.
(2) The consequences of these services will have a profound effect on the way

information w111 be accessed and used by the general public, businesses,
residences, financial institutions, and retailers.

For consumers it moans convenience. Information wt11
centralized to a decentralized point where 1t is more
to use 1nformat1on. It should drive down the cost of
such a manner that more consumers w111 be able to get
various types of access and input devices.

be moved from a
convenient for consumers
using information in
1nformat1on using

For businesses it w111 mean having eas1er and more economical ways of
co1lect1ng and dispensing 1nformat1on. As an examp1e, for a bank to have

Mr. Tom Garcia
1/26/88
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automated tellers in multiple locat1ons is another method of extending their
points of presence and points of sale in order to give banking services to
consumers who would ordinarily have to come to the bank to conduct their
business.

1

For ut11it1es, like telecommunications companies, it w11l mean the technology
that is available today, such as ISDN, can be used 1n ways to make these types
of information services pervasive. Essentially, communities of interest can
be brought together over common enhanced information systems where these
1nformat1on services are shareable.
The positive aspects far outweigh the negative implications of a pervasive
information society. A noted futurist, John Naisb1tt, says that information
1s power. If by virtue of the provision of these types of information
services we are able to put more information 1n the hands of information users
then by def1nit1on we are empowering 1ndiv1duals, consumers, citizens, et a1.,
to use information in any number of imaginable ways.
It is theoretically possible to create an information barrier, an information
gap between segments of today 1 s society. It is also possible that the skill
levels to access and interact with new 1nformat1on services may not be
properly cultivated. The cost and equ1tab1e distribution of these new
technologies may become relegated to those w1ll1ng to pay for the pr1ce of
the&e services, further widening this information gap.
(3) The state shou1d have a formal information po11cy that deals w1th information
services. This policy should ex1st in the form of a m1ss1on statement that
promotes the proliferation of these types of information services. This
policy should encourage the major providers of these types of serv1ces to
consort or work together in such a way that the services could be provided in
a cost effective manner for all users of these types of services.
Since this 1s an emerging industry, it is relatively early to say exactly what
controls should be 1n place. This is an embryonic industry where the cost of
technology, the types of useful services, and the consumer demand that w111
support the cost structure for prov1d1ng these services are all unknowns. If
there is any consideration given to formal po11cy in terms of protecting the
state and individuals of the state it should primarily focus on the area of
privacy and truth-in-information. This policy should ensure that as c1t1zens,
as producers, as consumers and 1nd1v1duals of the state, that the privacy of
1nformat1on or the misuse of 1nformation is carefully considered as these
types of services become available throughout all sectors of the state.
This policy should encourage the ava11abi11ty of these services by bringing
together leaders in the telecommunications and privata sectors of the
industry- the major players who are at the forefront of the provision of these
types of services 1n the form of consortiums with the state to ensure that
there are compat1b1e technologies, methods of equitable de11vary, access, and

Mr. Tom Garcia
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training. In some cases, even rate subs1dy may be necessary for those who
need assistance to maintain information access parity. Major corporations
should be 1ncenttd to invest in 1nformat1onal types of services working 1n
tandem with the state to make available high priority programs that would
enhance the worth of social, economic and the c1v1c life of the citizens of
California.
(4) The prol1ferat1on of information services has occurred by allow1ng individuals
in the unregulated sector to pursue means that would provide the greatest
economic value 1n terms of their investment driven by consumer demand for
these types of services. To suggest how these services should be identified
and defined by statute should be carefully considered before statutes are put
in place to regulate the provision of these services.
An example is the overnight package industry. The postal service imposed no
regulation for overnight package de11very except the use of postal boxes.
Competition from all types of providers for this type of service has emerged
and there 1s a worthwhile service that 1s provided to all of us by surface
carriers, such as UPS, by a1r11ne carriers as well as those that carry
information e1ectron1ca11y.
This is an example of an industry that came about not as a direct result of
statute, nor was statute imposed very early on when it was in 1ts formu1at1ve
stages, but has been 1eft alone and the freehand of the economy has given us
the information that allows that service to seek its own level and manage
1tself properly.
Information is a fungible good, it 1s d1ff1cu1t to control, in other words it
is a social product. In the med1ca1 industry, al1 doctors 1earn very early 1n
their career a Latin statement that says, •premis Nt Nocere.• It means,
'First, do not harm.' In the emerging information services industry, statute
should be introduced when, and on1y when, there are 1ndications that
individuals or institutions wi11 be harmed tither soc1a1ly or economically as
a result of the use of these services.
The information industry 1s at best at a very embryonic stage. If 1t is
manipulated more than is just, then 1nformat1on wi11 become art1f1c1a1. It
will not be produced in the way that society or consumer demand suggest that
these services be provided to them. Regulat1on shou1d be kept as an
alternative 1n the development of these services. The industry is best served
when all service prov1ders can equally part1c1pate to provide the highest
qua11ty service and at the lowest pr1ce.
(5) No comment.
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TESTIMONY OF BOB LEE- PACIFIC BELL
INTRODUCTION
Madame Chair, members of the Committee, thank you for inviting me to appear. I am

I

Bob Lee, Executive Vice President of the Marketing Department at Pacific Bell (a Pacific
Telesis Company). Among many other tasks, Marketing develops products and
services for Pacific Bell.
We greatly appreciate the invitation to appear before the Committee today. The
questions of telecommunications and Information Age services are important ones,
not only to Pacific Bell, but to users of such services, to potential entrepreneurs and
established providers, to regulators and policymakers -- in fact, to the state as a whole.
Like you, we see tremendous potential in the Information Age. In my remarks, I
would like to paint a vision that could become a reality for Californians.
CURRENT STATE OF INFORMATION SERVICES
Frankly, I am struck by the similarity of the questions and themes of today's hearing
when compared to those considered by this Committee in June of 1986. The important
questions from this Committee then, as now, included access to services, impacts of
new services, regulatory frameworks and public policy.
And yet, in the intervening 20 months, there have not been significant breakthroughs
in expansion of information services to the broader base of potential consumers in
California.

Until recently, public expectations for the Information Age were high. The

progression of the telegraph, telephone and computer promised continuing
achievements in education, work and home life. Access to electronic information
services would make everyday tasks easier and faster for all. Consumer choices would
increase, and "information on demand" would become a familiar reality.
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THE INFORMATION AGE POSTI'ONED

But, nearing the end of the 1980's, the promise of the Information Age vision remains
unfulfilled. Why? It's not that the technology for electronic information services does
not exist. Rather, everyone is pursuing a piece-part of the whole; today, we lack a
cohesive vision of the Information Age.
In the meantime, worldwide attention is focused on the most successful approach
bringing videotex services to residential users-- "Minitel". Telecom France linked a
mass market of residence and business users to providers. As some of you here know
from personal observation, via more than 3 million terminals and 6,000-plus services,
France has created a new way of sending and receiving messages, looking up
information, and performing routine transactions for residence consumers and small
businesses. I understand that in one month last fall, more than 4.8 million connecthours were logged by users, and that access to their National Electronic Directory
accounted for an additional 1 million connect-hours -- or some 100 minutes of use per
terminal, on averp.ge.
I believe that France's Minitel approach shows us that new electronic services need be
no harder to use, and will be no less beneficial than the telephone already is. In fact,
imagine if the French had applied equal vision and energy to developing voice services
as well as videotex. These might be available to households and businesses there not
yet equipped with Minitels. This, too, is a lesson for us all.
CENTRAL QUESTIONS

The Committee has requested comment on a number of key questions. Let me address
them in turn.

1.

What services might be offered? Our view of the future envisions a

technologically-sound telecommunications network, continuing to provide reasonably
priced universal telephone service. We seek to provide easy access to a wide range of
information services, offered by a number of different vendors to the vast majority of
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Californians. Electronic directories can offer not only lists of all information vendors,
but also other useful directory information. At first, many of those services will be
accessed by that familiar terminal: the telephone set.
•

Information Processing. More and more today, large and small computers

are controlling communications networks. The public telecommunications network is
capable of doing much more than just transporting signals. It could ease access to, store,
and process information on everything from emergency medical facts to the nearest
automobile repair shop.

This is a "gateway" concept that you have heard so much about. We believe that
gateways will be especially useful when combined with electronic directories capable of
sorting information at the user's direction. A gateway could make access to and
between local and distant electronic information services -- both of a voice and videotex
nature-- easier. Our gateway vision is just this: to open the way for customers to
simply and easily connect with information and service providers in logical and cost
effective ways.
Pacific Bell could bring the benefits of scale to the marketplace via gateways capable of
assisting both voice and screen-based services. Today, a provider of a specialty database
(such as legal information) can well afford to develop easy-to-use interfaces, and market
to a known audience. This is the information "boutique". Then, there are providers
today who package some services to a select audience, akin to an up-scale department
store. However, we envision a third concept, much like a shopping mall, wherein a

variety of services of widely-differing price and purpose coexist only a few "electronic
steps" from one another.
This is an analogy, to be sure, but it is vital that mass-market gateways encourage and
make possible many, many applications. Some services will have real value, but
limited "willingness-to-pay" -- such as transit and road reports, or availability of
licensed child-care facilities in a neighborhood. These too must be available to
consumers along with the more specialized and expensive offerings. Mass-market
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gateways will "prime the pump" for diverse services.
•

Voice Storage And Retrieval. VSR functions underlie valuable services

such as voice mail, which could be provided by Pacific Bell on a broad scale to the
California consumer. Without purchasing an answering machine or any other
equipment, subscribers could create, send (to individuals or simultaneously to groups
of people), and receive recorded messages through their telephone set (either a Touch
Tone phone or a rotary phone with a digitizing pad). This would avoid repeatedly
missed calls and allow subscribers to communicate whenever they want, without
requiring that the other parties be immediately available.
•

Protocol Conversion. At the present time, there are a myriad of computer

types being used by individuals and businesses. Because many have distinct designs, it
is often difficult and expensive for different types to communicate with each other. If
code and protocol conversion capabilities were widely available to everyone on a
convenient basis, different types of computers could easily "talk" with each other
without requiring each party to obtain expensive software and terminal equipment.
The results could include tremendous expansions in productivity, in the flow of
information, and in the size of the U.S. computer market. Provision by the Pacific Bell
network would be especially advantageous to the occasional user, who might not want
to pay a monthly subscription fee.
In fact, I believe that you already know about the foundation of future network services,
perhaps without being aware of it. Our network has three powerful features that are
always there, whenever you use the phone: Information, Connectivity, and
Navigation. Whenever you call to find a phone number, you are actually asking for

"information." Whenever you use the phone, you depend on "connectivity", the fact
that the network goes everywhere, all the time. And if you have ever asked an
operator to help you place a call, you already know about "navigation".
Some of the preceding may seem hypothetical. Let me offer specific examples, perhaps
as small pictures, touching on two key problems California faces today: education, and

Page 6

health and public safety.
EDUCATION: Building, for example, on the voice store and forward capabilities

possible in the network, I envision a number of innovative applications. Some
examples include:
•

replacing the "teacher's note" with 24-hour voice mail, encouraging

parents, teachers, counselors and administrators to easily communicate concerns.
Students will no longer lose notes ... but more importantly, spontaneous and informal
communications will flourish.
•

developing interactive lesson plans, available by telephone. Couldn't we

intermix this with voice mail allowing the student or parent to summarize the plan
back to the teacher, or ask questions?
•

providing schedules of classes and educational testing, with on-line

registration and availability of preparatory sessions.
I especially believe that these kind of applications can and should be provided in many
languages, so that we can provide sensitive, personal and economical programs to
"mainstream" children who have recently arrived in our state.
HEALTH AND PUBLIC SAFETY: Our society's need for timely, situation-specific

information can overwhelm both private and public agencies. Here, examples that
come to mind include:

•

real-time earthquake situation reports, coupled with general precautionary

information, as a form of new voice mass-announcement services

•

information about AIDS, in several languages, targeted to special

audiences as well as general information needs.
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In this last example, I am struck by the opportunity to creatively mix media and
technology. What if voice announcements were combined with voice mail? If I have a
question, a "help line" might not speak my language and understand my culture, or be
open in off-hours.
What if... after hearing a topical message, I could enter a voice mail mode, generate my
own confidential ID number, and leave my anonymous message? That message could
be routed to the right counselor or medical expert, and the reply sent back, keyed only to
that confidential ID.
Not only are the caller's needs met, but the vital community resource people, often
volunteers, could provide their expertise at the time and place of their choosing. These
concepts of personalization, confidentiality and time-shifting could help re-invent how
we volunteer our skills to one another in California.
2.

When can this type of services be offered? Each of these services has its own

time frame, costs and potential geographic availability. But the most important
limitation to delivery is, at the current time, the prohibition embodied in the
Modification of Final Judgment, or MFJ, against our provision of information services
such as those I just outlined. I won't belabor this limitation, since I know you are
keenly aware if it.
A potential dilemma is right here in California, however. The cooperation and
motivation of all players in the public policy arena will be required here, as much as it
will to ease the MFJ restrictions. In order to provide truly ubiquitous information
services in California, Pacific Bell must continue its modernization program,
particularly to ensure the delivery of information services to the rural areas where, in
many respects, information services stand to benefit the population most.
Traditionally. state public policymakers have suggested that any utility investment
without a payoff in the short term is imprudent. Yet the infrastructure for the
Information Age must be put in place now, in order for that core usage to develop and
the full benefits to be realized. This is clearly an area where Pacific Bell, the CPUC, the
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legislature and other concerned stakeholders need to work together to develop a
program of planned network modernization, to ensure that the benefits of the
Information Age happen in timely manner.
There is a second aspect to timing, one of people, habits, and "priming the pump".
Information services themselves are on a continuum of timing and evolution, from
voice to videotex and beyond.
At this very moment, it is voice services which could be further developed -- and
become much richer and more diverse. I see a great need to understand and offer
essential applications, perhaps through the "menus" and other capabilities of a network
gateway building upon experience with "976".
In three to five years, we could have videotex, and mixes of voice and videotex, on a
scale exceeding that of France, or any other country. This is not to under-emphasize the
potential of videotex, but we believe that habits -- and terminal devices -- may change
in increments of years rather than months.
Electronic directories building on the Yellow Pages will draw users by offering usable,
timely information. Questions such as: "Where is the closest urgent care center?

What are the hours of the library?

Which book stores carry Spanish-language

publications?"
Into the 1990's, it will be the market itself that drives applications. We seek to tear
down the technology boundaries between "voice" and "data", so that they can be
intermixed as the need demands. By then, having the greatest range of providers and
innovation will be crucial to a growing market with sustained interest in, and
participation by users across the state.
A key question, then, is not exactly what those services will be next year or in the next
decade, but to whom will they be available, how widely will they be used, who will
benefit, who will be providers, and perhaps above all-- what can be done to simplify

Page 9

access by consumers and providers? The information industry has long been crafting
"laundry lists" of possible services and their benefits, but too little has actually
happened. The question is: how might we make it easier for the Information Age to
grow?
That raises another concern. What if information services are increasingly perceived as
only the province of large business, or of special interest groups? Or as a "frill"
altogether?
My answer, then, is that the present opportunity for impact on real problems-- like
education, health, community services and small business development-- will be
postponed again, or muted altogether. The essential nature of electronic services fit so
well with our state: the capability of moving information rather than people or forms,
linking scarce resources, providing personalization with privacy... those are not
attributes we should lightly dismiss.
3.

Should California have a process to develop a forward-looking information

policy? Yes. To make progress, there's a need for a shared vision by the information
industry, regulators and policymakers about what the future could hold for customers.
Central to the creation of that vision, and making it a reality, is the energy and interest
of the legislature, exemplified by this hearing today.

Right now that shared vision isn't there. As a result, local telephone companies like
Pacific Bell are today unable to contribute resources and expertise to the industry,
expanding the availability of information services to the many customers who could
benefit from them. Central to the coherent formation of an information policy by the
State will be the California Public Utilities Commission, and information providers
themselves. Pacific Bell encourages California to be a forerunner in establishing an
Information Age vision, and to take steps to make that vision a reality. Just as France is
now viewed as a world model for the Information Age, having moved beyond theory
to real acceptance of its Minitel system in homes and businesses, California has the
opportunity to become the preeminent model for the rest of the United States.
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4.

Should new electronic services be identified and defined by statute? In general,

no. If necessary, such measures should be taken only as a consequence of an
information services policy implementation, followed by greater consumer and
business experience. California Public Utility Commission regulation of such services
is, as you know, the subject of a current Order Instituting Investigation (Oil) in which
you, Madame Chair, have filed testimony. That seems the proper arena for this
question at the moment. Certification is also a thorny issue. Creating more levels of
oversight for a young industry is problematic. These issues we will raise in the Oil
proceeding.
5.

How should state agencies meet the Information Age? Pacific Bell encourages

the participation of state agencies in on-going information services policy formation-and use of information services themselves. We believe that electronic services hold
real promise to reduce costs and increase service for state agencies at the same time.
REGULATORY ISSUES

As this Committee knows, on September 10, 1987, the U. S. District Court issued an
Order in which it described its vision of the direction in which our country should be
headed, a vision very similar to that which Pacific Telesis Group set forth last year
before the U.S. Senate Commerce Committee. The Court said:
"It is a cliche to state that we live in an Information Age, but it is also true.

Information

is today as central to the service economy which increasingly prevails in this country as
iron and coal were to England around the turn of the century.

Whatever causes the

more efficient, rapid, inexpensive dissemination of specifically needed and requested
information to all segments of the population, is likely to give this nation and its
economy a significant advantage over countries not similarly equipped." (Order, p. 179)

At the same time, the Federal Communications Commission is deeply involved in
information services oversight. Just today, Pacific Bell filed its Open Network
Architecture plan with the FCC In two days, the FCC will close a comment cycle on the
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National Telecommunications and Information Administration's petition for a
declaratory ruling.
In the face of such regulatory actions on all fronts, can California make policy
harmonious with national regulation? The best way that state and federal policies can
be reconciled is through frequent and open communications between regulators,
lawmakers, consumer groups, associations, and businesses. The Court has received
comments from this Committee's Chairwoman on the critical gateway question, for
example.
As we look at information services, the void is the lack of an enabling infrastructure, a
wide range of third-party applications, and a mass market. Given the opportunity,
Pacific Bell could provide the "kick start" necessary for services to become successful.
Again, let me offer a specific example.
Voice mail is a means of "one-to-one" (or "one-to-many") messaging using that most
basic of terminals -- the telephone. My own experience with voice mail is an daily one,
and were it not for the fact that I work for a large corporation, I doubt that I would have
access to such a time-saving service. With a Touch Tone key pad, users can send and
receive messages nearly anywhere, anytime. What are two of the hurdles we face in
moving voice mail to the mass-market in California?

•

Barrier: the MFJ restricts Bell Operating Company-supplied messaging.

Needed: removal of information services restrictions on storage and forwarding
of voice and other customer-supplied content. (It is important to note that the
FCC has just approved our plan to offer voice mail services, but we still do not
have the approval of the Greene Court.)

•

Barrier: lack of flexibility to adjust prices of supporting, profitable network

components (i.e., call forwarding). Needed: Pricing flexibility for certain network
components that makes voice mail affordable without concerns of cross-subsidy.
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We are actively working with each of the underlying issues before the CPUC, FCC, the
U.S. District Court and the Congress.
THE DEPLOYMENT OF NEW TECHNOLOGIES

Given these realities, I must be candid about expectations as to what new services
Pacific Bell is capable of delivering in the.current circumstance. Each opportunity and
its services carry with it their own time frames, costs, and potential geographic
availability. Today, Pacific Bell's technology deployment decisions are based largely -and appropriately -- on the economics of the new services which will be enabled as a
• result of deployment of new network technology. Our present regulatory environment
dictates a conservative deployment strategy. In

addition~

we fully recognize that no one

company or entity can provide all of the success factors necessary for a vibrant, fullyparticipatory Information Age in California.
But Pacific Bell -- and other local telephone companies, I believe -- are ideally
positioned to play the role of facilitating Information Age services by providing the
economies of scope and scale to make them successful, and available both to
information providers and to a "critical mass" of users.
I cannot, however, predict exactly what the market will provide the consumer. We
have seen the indications for the future through services already available in the
United States, albeit on a limited basis, and observe the explosive growth in France.
THE FUTURE

Clearly, the promise of the Information Age lies not only in the deployment of new
technology, but in the participation of customers. Information services need to attract a
"critical mass" of users to be successful. Consumers will choose, when they are allowed
to do so, services that best meet their needs and make their lives more rewarding, their
personal time more efficient. As more customers are able to choose the information
services they want, their selections will lead to the development of still better
technologies and services. It is this combination of customer choice and an open
market for information services, not regulatory and legal limitations, that will make
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sure that all potential participants-- customers, information providers, and local
telephone companies-- can contribute to bring about the promise of the Information
Age.
Let me conclude by again thanking you for the opportunity to present Pacific Bell's
views on the future of the Information Age in California. This hearing has
demonstrated our shared commitment to making that vision a reality in the near,
rather than distant, future, and to make California the model for the rest of the United
States.
Although state policymakers are working hard to move toward the future, at the
national level there is no vision of the Information Age for America. We would like
to encourage a partnership with you to create that vision. Indeed, this hearing can
initiate a joint effort by the legislature, the CPUC, and our industry to create change, not
only in California, but at the national leveL Through continued study, deliberate
policymaking, and coordinated advocacy, this partnership can provide the impetus to
ensure the full benefits of the Information Age are enjoyed throughout California.

Statement of AT&T
before the
Assembly Utilities and Commerce Committee
February 1, 1988
An "Information Age" for Everyone? Telecommunications
and Information Services in California's Future
Madam Chairwoman, Members of the Committee, good afternoon.
Robert Stechert, External Affairs Vice President for AT&T.

I am
Thank

you for this opportunity to address the Committee.

My remarks this afternoon will describe AT&T's position concerning
information services and their provisioning, in the context of the
legal and technical frameworks which are now being established,
and which will make the "information age" a reality.

At the outset, I must make clear that the best way for information
services to develop to their full potential is for them to be
competitively provided without regulatory and other constraints
wherever possible.

Competition assures the broadest range of

consumer choices and the greatest assurance of entrepreneurial
innovation.

However, AT&T recognizes that some of the components required to
furnish information services may not lend themselves to
competitive provisioning.

This was an important issue raised in

the recent United States District Court's review of certain lines
of business restrictions that apply to the Bell Operating
Companies under the Modification of Final Judgment (MFJ).

There,

some parties argued that information services had not developed in
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the United States as they had elsewhere in the world, such as
France and Japan, because the Bell Operating Companies were in a
unique position to provide the transmission capabilities required
for these services but were prohibited from doing so by MFJ
restrictions.

AT&T agreed that this might be the case and therefore, AT&T did
not oppose any modification of the information services
restriction necessary to promote widely available information
services.

Other parties adopted similar positions and,

accordingly, the Court determined that, with appropriate
safeguards to ensure that competition will develop in the
provision of information services wherever feasible, the Bell
Operating Companies should be permitted to provide information
services.

The Court found that information services such as Videotex have
grown slowly in the U.S.

In contrast, abroad, particularly in

France, growth has been more rapid, and large numbers of small
consumers have ready, inexpensive access to electronic information
services.

The Court described at length the operation of the

French "Teletel" system, but noted that there, all information
content is controlled by the information providers, not the
telephone company.

The telephone company provides only a content-

neutral transmission and switching conduit and billing services.

-
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The court concluded that similar growth in consumer information
services in the

u.s.

(such as home banking, stock brokerage, home

shopping, and data retrieval) could result if the Bell Operating
Companies were permitted, like the French telephone Company, to
offer the "content-neutral" transmission system through which
other firms could offer such services .

•

The Court thus decided to permit the Bell Operating Companies to
offer transmission "gateways," on the assumption that only they
have the ability and incentive to adequately establish enough
gateways to make information services widely and economically
available.

Specifically, the MFJ was modified to allow the Bell

Operating Companies to perform the gateway functions of data
transmission, address translation, protocol conversion, billing
management, and introductory information content.

However, the

Bell Operating Companies will continue to be barred from providing
the information service content itself (for example electronic
yellow pages) and from manufacturing the home terminal associated
with information services.

The Court is now considering in the context of the antitrust
decree precisely how, and with what safeguards, the Bell Operating
Companies will participate in this market.

There are a few

technical issues to be resolved concerning the "gateways" as they
relate to interexchange routing and billing functions.

However,

AT&T believes the Court can clarify these matters without impeding
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the Bell Operating Companies' provision of information service
functions and without limiting consideration of the many proposals
that have been suggested as a means to enhance the Bell Operating
Companies' gateway functions in this vitally important industry.

The legal framework for development of information services has
thus been established and a broad range of services is becoming
increasingly available.

One principal technology that will make

an information environment possible is embodied in the
international standards of the Integrated Services Digital Network
(ISDN).

AT&T is committed to the kind of open network and systems

architecture embodied by ISDN because it offers a path to
universal conductivity and interoperability among products and
services furnished by a vast variety of vendors, both here in the
United States and abroad.

Accordingly, capabilities are

incorporated into the design of products and services throughout
AT&T's lines of business from AT&T data terminals and computers to
System 75 and 85 PBXs to electronic switching systems,
transmission equipment, and AT&T network services such as Software
Defined Network and MEGACOM.

When the standards applicable to ISDN are fully deployed
throughout the networks of both local exchange and interexchange
carriers, information services will clearly benefit.

For example,

in today's environment, without ISDN a telephone line cannot be
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used to transmit or receive voice and data simultaneously.
ISDN

permitting access

s

to a

With

of information

Deployment of ISDN will not only facilitate information service
development and deployment, and support telecommuting on the

•

public switched network, it will relax the need for private data
lines and networks.

But ISDN is only the state of the art, not

the end of the line.

It is an internationally coordinated step

toward a network where voice, data, signalling, and video will all
reside together.

As a result of the actions in the United States District Court,
there now exists a legal framework to ensure that information
services will be provided by those uniquely positioned to make
them widely available at affordable rates while preserving a
competitive marketplace for other providers.

As a result of the

development and deployment of ISDN, there also exists a technical
framework that will allow information services to develop to their
full potential.

